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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

b ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005

or

) TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period From to

Commission file number 1-13317

DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 13-3460176
(State of Incorporation) (LR.S. Employer
Identification No.)
6305 El Camino Real 92009
Carlsbad, CA (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant s telephone number, including area code:
(760) 931-5500

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common stock, $0.001 par value
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act.  Yeso No p
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act.  Yeso No p
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yesp Noo
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
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incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  Yes b Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one).

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer p Non-accelerated filer o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yeso Nop

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by
reference to the price at which the common equity was last sold as of June 30, 2005 was $229,555,324. Documents
incorporated by reference: Portions of the registrant s definitive proxy statement for its 2006 annual meeting of
stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Form 10-K.

The number of shares of the registrant s common stock outstanding as of March 8, 2006 was 44,565,084.

Table of Contents 3



Item 15.
EXHBIIT 10.41
EXHBIIT 10.44
EXHIBIT 23.1
EXHIBIT 31.1
EXHIBIT 31.2
EXHIBIT 32.1

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
INDEX TO ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Business
Risk Factors
Unresolved Staff Comments

Properties
Legal Proceedings
Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

PART 11

Market for Registrant s Common Equity. Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Selected Financial Data

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Controls and Procedures
Other Information

PART III
Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Principal Accounting Fees and Services

PART IV
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Page

14
24
24
25
26

26
27

28
42
43

43
43
45

47
47
47

48
48

48




Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this report, including, but not limited to, statements regarding the development,
growth and expansion of our business, our intent, belief or current expectations, primarily with respect to our future
operating performance and the products we expect to offer and other statements contained herein regarding matters
that are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are subject to the safe
harbor created by those sections. Future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, future press
releases and future oral or written statements made by us or with our approval, which are not statements of historical
fact, may also contain forward-looking statements. Because such statements include risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements are set forth in the section entitled Risk Factors and in the
section entitled Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and
elsewhere throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and, except as required by applicable law, we undertake
no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the
statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

PART I

Item 1. Business

We are a provider of storage systems for organizations requiring high reliability, high performance networked
storage and data management solutions in an open systems architecture. Our storage solutions consist of integrated
hardware and software products employing a modular system that allows end-users to add capacity as needed. Our
broad range of products, from medium capacity stand-alone storage units to complete multi-terabyte storage area
networks, provides end-users with a cost-effective means of addressing increasing storage demands without
sacrificing performance. Our RIO Xtreme™ products provide high performance and large capacities for a broad
variety of environments. Our SANnet® products have been distinguished by certification as Network Equipment
Building System, or NEBS, Level 3 and are MIL-STD-810F (a military standard created by the U.S. government)
compliant based on their ruggedness and reliability.

Our products and services are sold worldwide to end-users primarily through our channel partners, including
original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, systems integrators, or Sls, and value added resellers, or VARs. In May
2002, we entered into a three-year OEM agreement with Sun Microsystems, or Sun, to provide our storage hardware
and software products for private label sales by Sun, and that agreement was recently extended until January 2011.
The OEM agreement now provides for automatic renewals for additional one-year periods, unless either party notifies
the other of its intent not to renew within the specified time period. We have been shipping our products to Sun for
resale to Sun s customers since October 2002. We continue to develop new products for resale by Sun and other
channel partners and expect to begin shipping several new products in 2006.

In February 2004, we acquired all the outstanding shares of Chaparral Network Storage, Inc., or Chaparral, a
privately held storage system provider. As a result of the acquisition, we have designated our Colorado facility as a
research and development hub and continue to use Chaparral s team of engineers and facility support personnel.

In July 2005, we entered into a Development and OEM Supply Agreement with Network Appliance, Inc. and
Network Appliance B.V., collectively, NetApp. Under the agreement, we are designing and developing general
purpose disk arrays for a variety of products to be developed for sale to NetApp. We believe that once

2
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sales under this agreement increase, which is expected to occur over the next several quarters, our revenue dependence
upon Sun will be significantly reduced.

In January 2006, we entered into a Master Purchase Agreement with Fujitsu Siemens Computers GmbH and
Fujitsu Siemens Computers (Holding) B.V., collectively, Fujitsu. Under the agreement, Dot Hill and Fujitsu will
jointly develop storage solutions utilizing key components and patented technologies from Dot Hill. The agreement
does not contain any minimum purchase commitments by Fujitsu. The initial agreement term is five years.

As part of our focus on indirect sales channels, we have outsourced substantially all of our manufacturing
operations to Solectron Corporation, or Solectron. Our agreement with Solectron allows us to reduce sales cycle times
and manufacturing infrastructure, enhance working capital and improve margins by taking advantage of Solectron s
manufacturing and procurement economies of scale.

We were formed in 1999 by the combination of Box Hill Systems Corp., or Box Hill, and Artecon, Inc., or
Artecon. We reincorporated in Delaware in 2001. Our website address is http://www.dothill.com. Information
contained on our website does not constitute a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, our Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those
reports that we file with the SEC are currently available free of charge to the general public through our website.
These reports are accessible on our website promptly after being filed with the SEC and are also accessible through
the SEC s website which may be found at http: //www.sec.gov. In addition, you may read and copy the materials we
file with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain
information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Industry Background

Growth of Data Storage
The efficient generation, storage and retrieval of digital data and content has become increasingly strategic and
mission-critical to organizations. The volume of this data continues to grow rapidly, driven by several factors
including:
the proliferation of different types of data, including graphics, video, text and audio;

the emergence of Internet-based communication protocols which enable users to rapidly duplicate, change and
re-communicate data;

new regulations and corporate policies requiring additional storage, such as compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, requirements imposed on healthcare companies and evolving regulatory requirements for financial
services companies;

the implementation of enterprise-wide databases containing business management information;
gains in network bandwidth and the technology for managing and classifying large volumes of data; and

the development of the information lifecycle management, or ILM, and the expansion of the disk-to-disk backup
market, due to new applications of technologies that offer improved alternatives in the trade-off between
performance and cost of ownership.
According to International Data Corporation, or IDC, the total storage capacity of all worldwide external, disk
storage systems shipped will grow by 60.3% on a compounded annual basis between 2004 and 2009, reaching
8.3 million terabytes, or TB, in 2009.
Traditionally, storage vendors have designed products for markets differentiated by capacity, performance, price
and feature set. These storage markets are typically identified as:
Entry-level. Entry-level storage products are designed for relatively low capacity, simple, stand-alone data storage
needs for which price and simplicity are the main purchasing considerations. Vendors address this
3
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market primarily through an indirect sales channel approach employing retailers and VARs that assist information
technology, or IT, managers in identifying, purchasing and installing the product.

Midrange. Midrange or departmental/workgroup storage products are designed for higher capacity and
performance than entry-level products, but still feature ease of use and manageability, and are attached to a local
server tailored to the needs of the local users. In this market, storage providers primarily sell their products to local IT
managers through VARs and regional or small SIs.

High-end. High-end or data center storage products are designed for use by larger organizations where data
storage and management is critical. These organizations require large capacity, high performance, automation,
extreme reliability, continuous availability, systems interoperability and global service and support. In this market,
storage providers sell their products with a combination of a direct sales force and indirect channels, including OEMs,
large SIs and managed services providers.

In addition to dramatic increases in the overall volume of data, the storage market has been influenced by the
following major trends:

Migration to Network Computing. Computing processes and architectures have evolved from mainframe
computing systems toward a centrally managed network computing environment characterized by multiple operating
systems and server platforms that must share information. Organizations require large-scale data storage solutions
offering:

increased connectivity capabilities;

greater capacity;

higher performance;

the ability to share data among different platforms;
greater reliability; and

greater protection.

Organizations have responded by implementing tailored networks, optimized for data storage functions that
facilitate data access and protection.

Increasing Focus on Total Cost of Ownership and Return on Investment. IT managers are increasingly focused on
lowering the total cost of ownership and increasing their return on investment on each technology purchase. IT
managers evaluate total cost of ownership and return on investment based upon several metrics, including initial
purchase price, ease of provisioning, scalability, reliability and redundancy, ease of management, IT staff
productivity, operating costs and after-sale service and support.

Storage Area Networks

Customers require storage systems that enable them to capture, protect, manage and archive data across a variety
of storage platforms and applications without sacrificing performance. Historically, the Small Computer Systems
Interface, or SCSI, was the primary method of connecting storage to servers. Subsequently, the Fibre Channel
protocol was developed, which enables storage devices to connect to servers over a networked architecture, allowing
end-users to connect multiple storage devices with high bandwidth throughput over long distances and centrally
manage their storage environment. Centrally managed network storage systems are designed to provide connectivity
across multiple operating systems and devices and may be based on either open or proprietary technology standards.
IDC estimates that by 2009, worldwide storage systems hardware, software and services revenue will total
$79.6 billion, with disk storage systems representing 33% of this total, or $26.3 billion.

IDC also estimates that worldwide storage systems hardware, software and services revenue will grow at a 5.4%
compound annual growth rate, or CAGR, from $61.1 billion in 2004 to $79.6 billion in 2009, and that disk storage
systems will grow at a 3.1% CAGR from $22.6 billion in 2004 to $26.3 billion in 20009.
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Storage area networks, or SANSs, apply the benefits of a networked approach to data storage applications, allowing
large blocks of data to move efficiently and reliably between multiple storage devices and servers without interrupting
normal network traffic. SANs provide high scalability, connectivity and fault-tolerance, which permit I'T managers to
create and manage centralized pools of storage and backup devices with redundant data paths. With the addition of
file-sharing software, SANSs also allow multiple hosts to share consolidated data, dramatically reducing the need to
duplicate, move and manage multiple files in a wide variety of data-intensive applications. SANs primarily employ
Fibre Channel technology.

Demand for High Performance, Affordable Network Storage Solutions

Customers increasingly demand higher performing, affordable solutions to address expanding storage
requirements, interoperability across disparate systems, the need for improved connectivity and rising data
management costs. Customers are also demanding open standards architecture and modular systems that allow them
to add capacity as needed. These demands have created significant opportunities for network storage system solutions
that are affordable and provide high performance.

Reliability

Perhaps one of the most important requirements for many customers is that their stored data is available, and that
the systems upon which they are stored be reliable. For example, internet-related customers can lose significant
revenue for every minute their sites are inoperable and users can not access data from the web site. Similarly, the
operations of corporate customers can grind to a halt if precious data is lost or unavailable. For these reasons, a
storage system s reliability is often the critical factor in making a choice among storage systems.
Our Solutions

We offer a broad line of networked data storage solutions composed of standards-based hardware and software for
open systems environments. Many of the performance attributes demanded by high-end/data center end-users are
incorporated into our products, at prices that are suitable for the entry-level or midrange markets. Our end-users
consist of entry-level, midrange and high-end/data center users, requiring cost-effective, easily managed, high
performance, reliable storage systems. Our product lines range from approximately 146 gigabyte, or GB, to complete
32 TB storage systems. These offerings allow our products to be integrated in a modular building block fashion or
configured into a complete storage solution, increasing OEM flexibility in creating differentiated products. Modular
products also allow our indirect channel partners to customize solutions, bundling our products with value-added
hardware, software and services.

Our products and services are intended to provide users with the following benefits:

Low Total Cost of Ownership and High Return on Investment. Our products combine reliability, flexibility,
scalability and manageability into one of the smallest form factors in today s market. Our product set provides
end-users with a low total cost of ownership due to our products extreme reliability, the simplicity of our

plug-and-play technology, decreased service and support costs and modular system approach that allow end-users to
add capacity as needed. The modular nature of our products addresses our end-users desire for a storage solution that
does not require a large, upfront investment in a monolithic structure with unused capacity. In addition, we believe
that our SANnet II storage systems are among the most space-efficient in the storage industry, maximizing our
customers limited space and significantly reducing their costs. By extending and leveraging our customers installed
storage system and architecture, we are able to provide solutions that offer both a lower total cost of ownership and a
higher return on investment.

Modular Scalability. Our products are designed using a single cohesive modular architecture that allows
customers to size and configure storage systems to meet their specific requirements. This modular architecture also
allows customers to easily expand and, in some cases, reconfigure a system as their needs change, permitting them to
extend the useful life of and better utilize their existing systems.

5
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Reliability. We believe that high reliability is essential to our customers due to the critical nature of the data being
stored. We offer enterprise-class reliability in our product lines and integrate the latest in technological advances to
meet expanding market opportunities. We design redundancy, high reliability, high performance and ruggedness into
our SANnet II storage systems. Redundant components have the ability to be replaced while the system is online
without interrupting network activity. All of our SANnet II disk array products currently offered are certified to
operate under extreme climatic and other harsh operating conditions without degradation in reliability or performance,
as attested to with the NEBS Level 3 and MIL-STD-810F certifications.

Open Systems, Multi-Platform Support. As an independent provider of storage products, we are well positioned to
provide storage solutions on a variety of platforms and operating systems, including Linux, Unix and Windows. Our
SANnet II line of systems supports multiple servers using different operating systems simultaneously. This
multi-platform compatibility allows customers to standardize on a single storage system that can readily be
reconfigured and redeployed at minimal cost as the customer s storage architecture changes.

Manageability. The ability to manage storage systems, particularly through software, is a key differentiator
among storage vendors. SANscape®, our storage management software, enables customers to more easily manage and
configure their storage systems and respond to their changing system requirements. In addition, SANpath®, our
storage area networking software, further enhances performance and reliability.

Following the acquisition of Chaparral in February 2004, we began integrating the technology purchased into our
products. We continue to offer customers existing Chaparral products and to integrate Chaparral s storage controller
technology into new products and product lines.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to focus on profitable growth and capture an increasing share of the open systems storage solution
market.

Focus on Profitable Growth. We have focused our business strategy in several ways to enhance our margins and
increase profits.

Utilize indirect sales channels. We have adopted an indirect sales model to access end-user markets primarily
through our OEM, SI, distributor and VAR channel partners. This allows us to benefit from our channel partners
extensive direct and indirect distribution networks, installed customer base and greater sales, marketing and global
service and support infrastructures.

Outsource manufacturing and service operations. We outsource substantially all of our manufacturing operations,
which allow us to reduce manufacturing infrastructure, enhance working capital and improve margins. In addition, we
encourage our channel partners to provide support and service directly to end-users.

Develop and Expand OEM Relationships. In May 2002, we entered into an OEM agreement with Sun under which
Sun resells our SANnet II and SANscape products to its customers under Sun s private label. Our agreement with Sun
was expanded in January and March 2004 to extend the term by three years and include additional products under the
agreement. In September 2005, the agreement was extended to January 2011 and now provides for automatic renewals
for additional one-year periods, unless either party notifies the other of its intent not to renew within the specified time
period. In addition to Sun, we have other OEM partners, including Motorola, Inc., or Motorola, NEC Corp, or NEC,
Fujitsu Siemens Computers and NetApp. We intend to continue seeking additional OEM relationships with other
industry leaders to sell current and future products and expand the number of products offered to existing OEM
partners to enable them to address new markets.

Grow and Extend Technology Leadership. We view our core competencies as the research, design and engineering
of modular open storage systems. We believe that focused research and development on advanced, cost effective
storage technologies is critical to our ongoing success. We intend to accelerate our expenditures on technology
development and integration in order to offer more complete storage solutions and enhance our

6
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existing products to benefit our channel partners efforts to increase sales. We introduced our SANnet II Serial
Advanced Technology Attachment, or SATA, during the second quarter of 2004. We introduced products integrating
the Chaparral storage controller technology in 2005.

Pursue Strategic Alliances, Partnerships and Acquisitions. We will continue to evaluate and selectively pursue
strategic acquisitions, alliances and partnerships that are complementary to our business. We believe that growth of
the network storage market will create additional opportunities to expand our business. In addition, we believe the
most efficient pursuit of these opportunities will be through strategic alliances and relationships, which allow us to
leverage our existing design and marketing infrastructure while capitalizing on products, technologies and channels
that may be available through potential strategic partners.

Our Products

We design our family of open systems storage hardware and software products with the reliability, flexibility and
performance necessary to meet I'T managers needs for easily scalable cost effective solutions. We currently offer
storage systems in Fibre Channel, SCSI and SATA configurations. Our software offerings consist of storage
management applications, which can manage any one or all of our storage system configurations, and performance
enhancing software that we sell bundled with our storage systems or license separately to OEM customers.

All of our current SANnet II products are NEBS Level 3 certified and MIL-STD-810F compliant. NEBS
guidelines were originally developed by Bellcore, now Telcordia, as ultra-high reliability standards for
telecommunications equipment, including storage products. There are three levels of NEBS specifications. The most
rugged and reliable equipment is rated carrier-class NEBS Level 3. The NEBS standards mandate a battery of tests
designed to simulate the extreme conditions resulting from natural or man-made disasters and cover a range of product
requirements for operational continuity. MIL-STD-810F is a military standard created by the U.S. Government. It
involves a range of tests used to measure the reliability of equipment in extreme conditions, including physical impact,
moisture, vibration and high and low temperatures. These standards address system ruggedness and reliability, which
are important requirements for end-users.
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Our primary products include the following:

Product Line

Hardware
SANnet IT SCSI

SANnet II FC

SANnet II Blade

SANnet II SATA

RIO Xtreme

Software
SANpath

Table of Contents

Description

2 unit high, 12
to 36 drives,
Ultral160 SCSI
DAS storage

2 unit high, 12
to 108 drives, 2
Gigabit Fibre
Channel DAS
and SAN
storage

1 unit high,
drives, Ultra320
SCSIDAS

2 unit high, 12
to 72 drives, 2
Gigabit Fibre
Channel DAS
and SAN
storage

5 unit high, 24
to 108 drives, 2
Gigabit Fibre
Channel DAS
and SAN
storage

Storage area
networking
software

General
Availability

4Q02

1Q03

1Q04

2Q04

3Q04

1Q00

Capacity

146 GB to 10
TB using 300
GB SCSI drives

146 GB to 32
TB using 300
GB FC drives

146 GBto 1.2
TB using 300
GB SCSI drives

800GB to 28
TB using 400
GB SATA
drives

1.75 TB to 32
TB using 300
GB FC drives

N/A

Target Market

Entry-level and
Midrange

Entry-level and
Midrange

Entry-level

Entry-level and
Midrange

Midrange

Entry-level and
Midrange

Features

Compact

3.5 inch high
enclosures, fully
redundant arrays
of independent
disks, or RAID,
using SCSI
connections,
expandable
storage capacity
Complete SAN
solution in a
single enclosure,
scalable
performance and
capacity without
interruptions
Highly rack-
optimized
design, connects
to low-cost
server SCSI
ports

Complete SAN
solution in a
single enclosure,
scalable
performance and
capacity without
interruptions
Complete SAN
solution,
scalable
performance and
capacity without
interruptions,
optimized for
high bandwidth
applications

Load balancing,

multipathing,
path fail over,
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path fail back
and LUN
masking
SANscape Storage 1Q00 N/A Entry-level and  Graphical and
management Midrange command line
software consoles with
diagnostics,
monitoring and
reporting

SANnet Il Family of Storage Solutions. We began the introduction of our SANnet II family, during the fourth
quarter of 2002. SANnet II provides enterprise class functionality to the entry-level and midrange storage markets at
attractive prices. Through our SANnet II family of networked storage solutions, we offer compact, rugged RAID
arrays that support SAN and direct attached storage, or DAS, configurations. The SANnet II products provide
excellent up-time and are tested to operate in extreme environmental conditions. In addition, our SANnet II products
share a common modular architecture and unified management system that integrates our SANpath and SANscape
management software.
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SANnet 11 SATA. We launched our SANnet II SATA storage product in the second quarter of 2004. It is an
entry-level storage product for IT managers requiring a compact near line storage solution.

SANnet Il Blade. We launched our SANnet II Blade product during the first quarter of 2004. It is an entry-level
ultra-compact storage solution for DAS architectures.

SANnet Il FC. We launched our SANnet II FC storage product in the first quarter of 2003. It is a Fibre
Channel-based online storage product for IT managers that require a SAN solution.

SANnet 11 SCSI. We launched our SANnet II SCSI product during the fourth quarter of 2002. It is an entry-level
ultra-compact storage solution for DAS architectures.

RIO Xtreme Family of Storage Solutions. We introduced our newest generation of open systems storage products,
our RIO Xtreme family, during the third quarter of 2004. RIO Xtreme provides high performance to the midrange
storage markets at attractive prices. Through our RIO Xtreme family of networked storage solutions, we offer
compact, fast arrays that support SAN and DAS configurations.

We acquired the controller technology used in RIO Xtreme in our acquisition of Chaparral.

Software. We develop application software technologies and products that are complementary to our overall
storage solutions. Our host-based software is delivered as two primary application suites: SANpath and SANscape.
Our software supports widely used open systems platforms, including Linux, Unix and Windows.

SANpath. SANpath is our storage area networking software that improves system performance and enables
storage multipathing to ensure comprehensive reliability, availability and serviceability. Originally released during the
first quarter of 2000, SANpath functions with SCSI or Fibre Channel host connections and storage hardware,
including our SANnet II storage solutions deployed within either DAS or SAN architectures. All SANpath managed
environments may be re-configured without interruptions to operating systems or applications. SANpath provides a
number of features, such as: path failover, load balancing, dynamic volume management, the reassignment of storage
volume without server restarts and secure storage volume assignment via access control lists.

SANscape. SANscape pis our storage management software that facilitates the monitoring, configuration and
maintenance of our SANnet II storage solutions using a Java-based graphical user interface and a variety of tools.
Originally released during the first quarter of 2000, SANscape also creates an optional consolidated interface for the
administration of SANpath. SANscape can be used to manage various storage solutions deployed throughout an
organization. Its event tools monitor the storage solutions under management and report status changes to
administrators by email, pager and other means.

Sales and Marketing

We market and distribute our products globally through our channel partners. Our channel partners consist of
OEMs, SIs and VARs, which we use to cost-effectively pursue a wide range of potential end-users. We rely on
multiple channels to reach end-user customers that range in size from small businesses to government agencies and
large multinational corporations. We have established a channel partner program consisting of tiers that distinguishes
and rewards our channel partners for their levels of commitment and performance. We maintain a sales and marketing
organization operating out of our headquarters in Carlsbad, California, with regional offices in Germany, Japan, The
Netherlands, Singapore and the United Kingdom as well as several smaller localized field sales offices throughout
North America. Our products are sold under the Dot Hill brand name and under the names of our OEM customers.
Generally, our customers have no minimum purchase requirements and have certain rights to extend, delay or cancel
shipment of their orders without penalty. One of our customers has the right to return a percentage of product within
90 days of purchase, subject to certain terms and conditions.

OEMs
Our primary distribution channel is through OEMs. We have several OEM relationships and are actively

developing new ones. Currently OEM partners include Motorola, NEC, NetApp, Fujitsu and Sun. OEMs
9
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generally resell our products under their own brand name and typically assume responsibility for marketing, sales,
service and support. Our OEM relationships allow us to sell into geographic or vertical markets where each OEM has
significant presence. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, OEM sales represented 85.9%, 89.6%
and 91.3% of our net revenue, respectively. Sales to Sun accounted for 83.4%, 86.3% and 86.2% of our net revenue
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Indirect Channels

Most of our non-OEM products are sold in conjunction with Sls, distributors and VARs who work closely with
our sales force to sell our products to end-users. Our indirect channel partners generally resell our products under the
Dot Hill brand name and share responsibility with us for marketing, sales, service and support. We believe indirect
channel sales represent an attractive growth opportunity and intend to expand the scope of our indirect channel sales
efforts by continuing to actively pursue additional indirect channel partners, both domestically and internationally.

Marketing

We support our OEM and other indirect channels with a broad array of marketing programs designed to build our
brand name, attract additional channel partners and generate end-user demand. Our product marketing team, located in
Carlsbad, California, focuses on product strategy, product development roadmaps, the new production introduction
process, product lifecycle management, demand assessment and competitive analysis. The product marketing team
also ensures that product development activities, product launches, channel marketing program activities and ongoing
demand and supply planning occur on a well-managed, timely basis in coordination with our development,
manufacturing and sales groups, as well as our sales channel partners. The groups work closely with our sales and
research and development groups to align our product development roadmap to meet key channel technology
requirements.

Our Relationship with Sun

In May 2002, we entered into a three-year OEM agreement with an annual renewal to provide our SANnet II and
SANSscape products for private label sales by Sun. This agreement was recently extended until January 2011 and now
provides for automatic renewals for additional one-year periods, unless either party notifies the other of its intent not
to renew within the specified time period. During October 2002, we began shipping to Sun the first product in our
SANnet II family of systems, SANnet II SCSI, for resale to Sun s customers. We began shipping our SANnet II FC to
Sun in March 2003, our SANnet II SATA to Sun in June 2004, and our SANnet II Blade to Sun in March 2004. We
are developing new products targeted for sale by Sun and expect our relationship to continue to expand. There are no
minimum purchase agreements or guarantees in our agreement with Sun, and the agreement does not obligate Sun to
purchase its storage solutions exclusively from us.

As of December 31, 2005, Sun held warrants to acquire 1,394,269 shares or 3.1% of our common stock
outstanding for prices ranging between $2.97 and $3.25 per share. Under the terms of the warrants, we are obligated to
file a registration statement with respect to the resale of all of the shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise
of the warrants.

We believe that our relationships with market leaders like Sun strengthen our credibility in the marketplace,
validate our technology and enable us to sell our products to a much broader customer base. In addition to expanding
and enhancing our relationships with current OEM customers and other types of channel partners, we intend to add
additional OEM customers as a part of our overall strategy.

Because of our relationship with Sun, we are subject to seasonality related to Sun s historical sales patterns.
Generally, sales for the second quarter of our fiscal year reflect the positive impact attributed to Sun s historically
strong sales in the last quarter of its fiscal year. Conversely, sales for the third quarter of our fiscal year typically
reflect the impact of decreased sales to Sun for the first quarter of its fiscal year.

10

Table of Contents 16



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

In July 2005, we entered into a Development and OEM Supply Agreement with Net App. Under the agreement,
we are designing and developing general purpose disk arrays for a variety of products to be developed for sale to
NetApp. We believe that once sales under this agreement increase, which is expected to occur over the next several
quarters, our revenue dependence upon Sun will be significantly reduced.

In January 2006, we entered into a Master Purchase Agreement with Fujitsu. Under the agreement, Dot Hill and
Fujitsu will jointly develop storage solutions utilizing key components and patented technologies from Dot Hill. The
agreement does not contain any minimum purchase commitments by Fujitsu. The initial agreement term is five years.
Customer Service and Support

We recognize that providing comprehensive, proactive and responsive support is essential to establishing new
customer accounts and securing repeat business. We provide comprehensive, 24 hours a day, seven days a week,

365 days a year, global customer service and support, either directly or through third party service providers, aimed at
simplifying installation, reducing field failures, minimizing system downtime and streamlining administration.
Through direct and third party service providers, we maintain a global network of professional engineers and
technicians who provide telephonic technical support in various languages from strategically located global response
centers on a 24 hour, seven day basis. In addition, we provide four hour on site service response on a global basis. We
also offer all of our customers access to SANsolve, our web-hosted interactive support knowledge base that gives our
customers the ability to find answers to technical questions as well as initiate and track all support issues.

We have also taken steps to better align our service and support structure with our indirect sales model. We have:

encouraged our channel partners to provide support and service directly to end-users. For example, Sun, our
primary channel partner, provides all but the fifth and final level of support and service to its end-users; we
provide that final level of support and service;

focused on providing the higher levels of support for a fee and the establishment of authorized service
providers; and

engaged Anacomp, Inc., or Anacomp, to be the exclusive provider of on-site maintenance, warranty and
non-warranty services for customers who purchase new maintenance agreements for our prior generation SANnet
product family and other legacy products. Anacomp also manages our non-warranty customers and is the
exclusive distributor of spare parts for our legacy products. In addition, Anacomp provides first and second level
technical support for all of our product lines.
We plan to continue to maintain our current service offerings, including onsite support contracts. These services
will be performed either directly by us, or through the increased use of third party service providers.
Research and Development
Our research and development team has been focused on developing innovative storage and networking products,
storage management software for the open systems market and the integration of our recently acquired storage
controller technology into Dot Hill designed storage systems. We have a history of industry firsts, including the first
successfully commercialized hot-swappable SCSI disk array and RAID storage system for the Unix environment, and
the first NEBS Level 3 certified and MIL-STD-810F tested line of storage systems. We believe that our success
depends on our ability to continuously develop products that meet changing customer needs and to anticipate and
proactively respond to highly evolving technology in a timely and cost-effective manner. We also generally design
and develop our products to have a modular architecture that can be scaled to meet customer needs and modified to
respond to technological developments in the open systems computing environment across product lines.
11
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Our areas of expertise include Linux, Unix and Windows driver and system software design, SAN storage
resource management software design, storage system design and integration, controller and router design and
technology and high-speed data interface design. We are currently focusing development efforts on our
next-generation family of storage systems and on our software products. Projects include the launch of additional
members of the SANnet II family of systems, improvements to our storage software offerings and next generation
high-speed solutions that will take advantage of the latest transports and technologies.

Our research and development activities are directed by individuals with significant expertise and industry
experience. Our total research and development expenses were $12.0 million, $18.0 million and $23.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

Since 2002, we have outsourced substantially all of the manufacturing operations for our SANnet I and SANnet II
systems and RAID controllers to third party manufacturing companies. By outsourcing manufacturing we have been
able to reduce expenses related to our internal manufacturing operations and focus on our research and development
activities. Under our OEM agreement with Sun, Sun has the right to require that we use a third party to manufacture
our products. This external manufacturer must meet Sun s engineering, qualification and logistics requirements.
Intellectual Property

Our success depends significantly upon our proprietary technology. We have received registered trademark
protection for the marks SANnet®, SANpath®, SANscape®, Stratis®, Dot Hill®, Dot Hill Systems® and the Dot Hill
logo. We have attempted to protect our intellectual property rights primarily through copyrights, trade secrets,
employee and third party nondisclosure agreements and other measures. We have registered trademarks and will
continue to evaluate the registration of additional trademarks as appropriate. We claim common law protection for,
and may seek to register, other trademarks. In addition, we generally enter into confidentiality agreements with our
employees and with key vendors and suppliers.

As of December 31, 2005, we had been awarded a total of 14 U.S. patents, two of which were awarded in 2005.
Six patents generally cover RAID controller and SAN technology, which we believe could provide us with a
competitive advantage. In addition, as of December 31, 2005, we had one allowed U.S. patent, and 38 filed
U.S. patent applications. If we are unable to protect our intellectual property or infringe intellectual property of a third
party, our operating results could be harmed.

In December 2005, we entered into a Patent Cross License with International Business Machines Corporation, or
IBM. Pursuant to the Patent Cross License, each party acquired a nonexclusive worldwide license under certain of the
other party s patents related to information handling systems. The license term extends for the remaining life of the
patents and any new patents that are granted to either party through December 31, 2008. In connection with the Patent
Cross License, we paid IBM a one-time licensing fee of $2.5 million.

Competition

The storage market is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapidly changing technology. We compete
primarily against independent storage system suppliers, including EMC Corp., or EMC, Hitachi Data Systems Corp.,
or Hitachi, Engenio Information Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of LSI Logic Corp., or Engenio, and Xyratex Ltd., or
Xyratex, We also compete with traditional suppliers of computer systems, including Dell Inc., Hewlett-Packard
Company and IBM, which market storage systems as well as other computer products.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have longer operating histories, greater name recognition and
substantially greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources. As a result, they may have more
advanced technology, larger distribution channels, stronger brand names, better customer service and access to more
customers than we do. Other large companies with significant resources could become direct
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competitors, either through acquiring a competitor or through internal efforts. Additionally, a number of new,
privately held companies are currently attempting to enter the storage market, some of which may become significant
competitors in the future.

We believe the principal competitive factors in the storage systems market are:

product performance, features, scalability and reliability;
price;

product breadth;

timeliness of new product introductions; and

interoperability and ease of management.

We believe that we compete favorably in each of these categories. To remain competitive, we believe we must
invest significant resources in developing new products, enhancing our current products and maintaining high quality
standards and customer satisfaction.

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, we had 275 full-time employees, of whom 65 were engaged in sales and marketing, 106
in research and development, 55 in manufacturing, 34 in general management and administration and 15 in customer
service and support. We have not had a work stoppage among our employees and none of our employees are
represented under collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.
Executive Officers of the Registrant at December 31, 2005

Name Age Position Officer Since
James L. Lambert 52 Chief Executive Officer and Vice August 1984*
Chairman
Dana W. Kammersgard 50 President August 1984*
Preston S. Romm 52 Chief Financial Officer, Vice November 1999
President, Finance, Treasurer and
Secretary

* Note: In 1999, Artecon and Box Hill merged to form Dot Hill Systems Corp. Artecon was founded in 1984 by
James Lambert and Dana Kammersgard. Both Mr. Lambert and Mr. Kammersgard were officers of Artecon from
its inception until the merger, and have been officers of Dot Hill since that date. Effective March 1, 2006,

Mr. Lambert retired as our Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Kammersgard was appointed as our
Chief Executive Officer and President.

All officers are elected by our board of directors and serve at the pleasure of our board of directors as provided in
our bylaws.

James L. Lambert has served as our Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since August 2004. In March
2006, Mr. Lambert retired as our Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. From August 2000 to August 2004
Mr. Lambert served as Director and our President, Chief Operating Officer and sole Chief Executive Officer. Since
August 1999, he has also served as President, Chief Operating Officer and Co-Chief Executive Officer. A founder of
Artecon, Mr. Lambert served as President, Chief Executive Officer and director of Artecon from its inception in 1984
until the merger of Box Hill and Artecon in August 1999. Mr. Lambert currently serves as a director of the Nordic
Group of Companies, a group of privately held companies. He is also a member of World Presidents Organization.
Mr. Lambert holds a B.S. and an M.S. in Civil and Environmental Engineering from University of Wisconsin,
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Dana W. Kammersgard has served as our President since August 2004. In March 2006, Mr. Kammersgard was
appointed as our Chief Executive Officer and President. From August 1999 to August 2004, Mr. Kammersgard served
as our Chief Technical Officer. Mr. Kammersgard was a founder of Artecon and served as a director from its
inception in 1984 until the merger of Box Hill and Artecon in August 1999. At Artecon, Mr. Kammersgard served in
various positions since 1984, including Secretary and Senior Vice President of Engineering from March 1998 until
August 1999 and as Vice President of Sales and Marketing from March 1997 until March 1998. Prior to co-founding
Artecon, Mr. Kammersgard was the director of software development at CALMA, a division of General Electric
Company. Mr. Kammersgard holds a B.A. in Chemistry from the University of California, San Diego.

Preston S. Romm has served as our Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Finance and Treasurer since
November 1999. Mr. Romm has also served as our Secretary since April 2001. From January 1997 to November
1999, Mr. Romm was Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of Verteq, Inc., a
privately-held semiconductor equipment manufacturer. From November 1994 to January 1997, Mr. Romm was Vice
President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of STM Wireless, Inc., a wireless data and voice equipment
manufacturer. From July 1990 to November 1994, Mr. Romm was Vice President and Controller of MTI Technology
Corporation, a provider of data storage systems. Since March 2004, Mr. Romm has served as a director of Netlist,
Inc., a developer of high-density memory subsystems that use proprietary printed circuit board designs. Mr. Romm
holds a B.S. in Accounting from the University of Maryland and a M.B.A. from American University.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business, results of operations and financial condition may be materially and adversely affected due to any of
the following risks. The risks described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks we are not presently
aware of or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations. The trading price of
our common stock could decline due to any of these risks. In assessing these risks, you should also refer to the other
information contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including our financial
statements and related notes.

Under our OEM agreements with Sun, NetApp and others, our customers are not required to make minimum

purchases or purchase exclusively from us, and we cannot assure you that our relationship with these key

customers will not be terminated or will generate significant sales.

Our business is highly dependent on our relationship with Sun, and we believe will be dependent, in the future, on
our relationship with NetApp, once sales to that customer begin to increase. Sales to Sun accounted for 86.3% and
86.2% of our net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 respectively. Our OEM agreement with
Sun had an initial term of three years and was extended in September 2005 for an additional five years through
January 2011. Our OEM agreement with NetApp has a term of three years from the first commercial product
shipments by NetApp, which is currently scheduled forth the second half of 2006. There are no minimum purchase
requirements or guarantees in our agreement with Sun or NetApp, the agreements do not obligate those customers to
purchase storage solutions exclusively from us on a continual basis and either customer may cancel purchase orders
submitted under the agreement at any time. Further, either customer may terminate the entire contract prior to the
contract expiration date upon the occurrence of certain events that are not remedied within a specified cure period.
The decision by these customers to terminate their respective contracts, to cease making purchases or to cancel
purchase orders would cause our revenues to decline substantially. We cannot be certain if, when or to what extent
any customer might cancel purchase orders, cease making purchases or elect not to renew the applicable contract upon
the expiration of the current term. We expect to receive a substantial majority of our projected net revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2006 from sales of our products to Sun and NetApp. We cannot assure you that we will achieve
these expected sales levels. If we do not achieve the sales levels we expect to receive from these customers, our
business and result of operations will be significantly harmed.
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Any decline in Sun s or NetApp s sales could harm our business.

A substantial majority of our revenues are generated by sales to Sun, and we expect a substantial majority of our
future revenues to be generated by a combination of sales to Sun and NetApp. If Sun s or NetApp s storage-related
sales decline, our revenues will also decline and our business could be materially harmed. In addition, Sun s quarterly
operating results typically fluctuate downward in the first quarter of their fiscal year when compared with the
immediately preceding fourth quarter. Further, in June 2005, Sun acquired StorageTek, which is a fellow provider of
storage systems. Additionally, Sun purchases products from Engenio. During October 2004, Engenio announced that
it had broadened its OEM agreement with Sun. Under terms of the expanded agreement, Engenio will provide Sun
with new modular storage technology and will co-develop future Sun storage products. While we do not currently
believe that Engenio s relationship with Sun or Sun s acquisition of StorageTek will impact our sales or our relationship
with Sun, we cannot predict with certainty the impact that these circumstances will have, if any, on our future sales to
Sun.

In addition, it is likely that NetApp s sales of any storage products supplied to it by us will fluctuate on a quarterly
or seasonal basis, which fluctuations will affect our financial results. Due to the infancy of the relationship, we can not
be certain of what affect these fluctuations will have on our quarterly results, if any.

Lower than anticipated sales to NetApp could harm our business and render our expectations inaccurate, which

could lead to a decrease in our stock price.

During the third quarter of 2005, we entered into a Development and OEM Supply Agreement with NetApp
pursuant to which we will design and develop general purpose disk arrays for a variety of products to be developed for
sale to NetApp. We expect that sales to NetApp will increase, and have predicted that in the future, sales to NetApp
will reduce our dependence upon Sun significantly and increase our revenue substantially. There are no guarantees
that our relationship with NetApp will be successful, or that we will achieve the expected volume of sales to NetApp.
Our agreement with NetApp does not provide for minimum purchase quantities, and allows for NetApp to terminate
the contract or stop purchasing from us upon the occurrence of certain events. If our sales to NetApp fall substantially
short of our predictions and, to the extent that our current stock price reflects anticipated increases in our revenue or
profits based on sales to NetApp, our stock price likely will fall.

We are dependent on sales to a relatively small number of customers.

While we intend to expand sales to channel partners, we expect to experience continued concentration in our
customer base. As a result, if our relationship with any of our customers were disrupted, we would lose a significant
portion of our anticipated net revenue. We cannot guarantee that our relationship with Sun, NetApp or other channel
partners will expand or not otherwise be disrupted. Factors that could influence our relationship with significant
channel partners, including Sun and NetApp, include:

our ability to maintain our products at prices that are competitive with those of other storage system suppliers;

our ability to maintain quality standards for our products sufficient to meet the expectations of our channel
partners; and

our ability to produce, ship and deliver a sufficient quantity of our products in a timely manner to meet the needs
of our channel partners.

None of our contracts with our existing channel partners, including Sun and NetApp, contain any minimum
purchasing commitments. Further, we do not expect that future contracts with channel partners, if any, will include
any minimum purchasing commitments. Changes in the timing or volume of purchases by our major customers could
result in lower revenue. In addition, our existing contracts do not require our channel partners to purchase our
products exclusively or on a preferential basis over the products of any of our competitors. Consequently, our channel
partners may sell the products of our competitors.
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Our business and operating results may suffer if we encounter significant product defects due to the

introduction of our new, integrated systems.

We completed the integration of RAID controller technology we obtained in our acquisition of Chaparral into
certain of our storage systems resulting in the introduction of new, integrated systems.

Our new, integrated systems, as well as our legacy products, may contain undetected errors or failures, which may
be discovered after shipment, resulting in a loss of revenue or a loss or delay in market acceptance, which could harm
our business. Even if the errors are detected before shipment, such errors could result in the halting of production, the
delay of shipments, loss of goodwill, tarnishment of reputation or a substantial decrease in revenue. Our standard
warranty provides that if our systems do not function to published specifications, we will repair or replace the
defective component or system without charge. Significant warranty costs, particularly those that exceed reserves,
could adversely impact our business. In addition, defects in our products could result in our customers claiming
property damages, consequential damages, personal injury or even death, which could also result in our loss of
customers and goodwill. Any such claim could distract management s attention from operating our business and, if
successful, result in damage claims against us that might not be covered by our insurance.

The loss of one or more suppliers could slow or interrupt the production and sales of our products.

Solectron, our third party manufacturer, relies on third parties to supply key components of our storage products.
Many of these components are available only from limited sources in the quantities and quality we require. Solectron
purchases the majority of our RAID controllers from Infortrend Technology, Inc., or Infortrend. Solectron may not be
able to purchase the type or quantity of components from third party suppliers as needed in the future.

From time to time there is significant market demand for disk drives, RAID controllers and other components, and
we may experience component shortages, selective supply allocations and increased prices of such components. In
such event, we may be required to purchase our components from alternative suppliers. Even if alternative sources of
supply for critical components such as disk drives and controllers become available, incorporating substitute
components into our products could delay our ability to deliver our products in a timely manner. For example, we
estimate that replacing Infortrend s RAID controllers with those of another supplier would involve several months of
hardware and software modification, which could significantly harm our ability to meet our customers orders for our
products, damage our customer relationships and result in a loss of sales.

Manufacturing disruptions could harm our business.

We rely on Solectron to manufacture substantially all of our products. If our agreement with Solectron is
terminated or if Solectron does not perform its obligations under our agreement, it could take several months to
establish alternative manufacturing for our products and we may not be able to fulfill our customers orders in a timely
manner. Under our OEM agreement with Sun, Sun has the right to require that we use a third party to manufacture our
products. Such an external manufacturer must meet Sun s engineering, qualification and logistics requirements. If our
agreement with Solectron terminates, we may be unable to find another external manufacturer that meets Sun s
requirements. With our increased use of third-party manufacturers, our ability to control the timing of shipments has
continued and will continue to decrease. Delayed shipment could result in the deferral or cancellation of purchases of
our products. Any significant deferral or cancellation of these sales would harm our results of operations in any
particular quarter. Net revenue for a period may be lower than predicted if large orders forecasted for that period are
delayed or are not realized, which could result in cash flow problems or a decline in our stock price.

Any shortage of disk drives or other components could increase our costs or harm our ability to manufacture

and deliver our storage products to our customers in a timely manner.

Demand for disk drives recently surpassed supply, forcing drive manufacturers, including those who supply the
disk drives integrated into many of our storage products, to manage allocation of their inventory. If
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this shortage is prolonged, we may be forced to pay higher prices for disk drives or may be unable to purchase
sufficient quantities of disk drives to meet our customers demand for our storage products in a timely manner or at all.
Similar circumstances could occur with respect to other necessary components.

We may experience losses in the future.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 we recorded net income of $26.6 million, $11.6 million
and $12.1 million, respectively; however, for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we incurred net losses of
$34.3 million and $43.4 million, respectively. Further, our latest forecast predicts that we will incur a loss during our
first quarter of 2006, fueled, in part, by an increased investment in research and development and the implementation
of a new enterprise resource planning, or ERP, software package. We cannot assure you that we will be profitable in
any future period. Our future capital requirements will depend on, and could increase substantially as a result of, many
factors, including:

our plans to maintain and enhance our engineering, research, development and product testing programs;

the success of our manufacturing strategy;

the success of our sales and marketing efforts;

the extent and terms of any development, marketing or other arrangements;
changes in economic, regulatory or competitive conditions; and

costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing intellectual property rights.

Our available cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments as of December 31, 2005 totaled $122.2 million.
We presently expect cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and cash generated from operations to be
sufficient to meet our operating and capital requirements through at least the next twelve months. However,
unanticipated events, such as Sun s or NetApp s failure to meet its product purchase forecast or extraordinary expenses
or operating expenses in excess of our projections, may require us to raise additional funds. We may not be able to
raise additional funds on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Any sales of our debt or equity securities in the
future may have a substantial dilutive effect on our existing stockholders. If we are able to borrow funds, we may be
required to grant liens on our assets to the provider of any source of financing or enter into operating, debt service or
working capital covenants with any provider of financing that could hinder our ability to operate our business in
accordance with our plans. As a result, our ability to borrow money on a secured basis may be impaired, and we may
not be able to issue secured debt on commercially reasonable terms or at all.
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Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and are not a good indicator of future
performance.
Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past as shown in the following table and are not
a good indicator of future performance (in millions).

Quarter Net Net Income
Revenue (Loss)

First Quarter 2002 $ 10.9 $ 6.2)
Second Quarter 2002 11.2 (8.9)
Third Quarter 2002 8.6 (7.3)
Fourth Quarter 2002 16.3 (11.9)
First Quarter 2003 30.5 (1.5)
Second Quarter 2003 48.4 2.6
Third Quarter 2003 51.0 4.3
Fourth Quarter 2003 57.5 6.6
First Quarter 2004 479 (2.6)
Second Quarter 2004 69.0 6.7
Third Quarter 2004 57.0 3.5
Fourth Quarter 2004 65.5 4.0
First Quarter 2005 58.0 2.1
Second Quarter 2005 65.9 3.3
Third Quarter 2005 53.6 (1.3)
Fourth Quarter 2005* 56.3 22.5

* Includes deferred tax benefit from reversal of valuation allowance of $25.3 million.

In addition, the announcement of financial results that fall short of the results anticipated by the public markets
could have an immediate and significant negative effect on the trading price of our common stock in any given period.
We may have difficulty predicting future operating results due to both internal and external factors affecting

our business and operations, which could cause our stock price to decline.
Our operating results may vary significantly in the future depending on a number of factors, many of which are
out of our control, including:
the size, timing, cancellation or rescheduling of significant orders;
the cost of litigation and settlements involving intellectual property and other issues;
product configuration, mix and quality issues;

market acceptance of our new products and product enhancements and new product announcements or
introductions by our competitors;

manufacturing costs;
deferrals of customer orders in anticipation of new products or product enhancements;
changes in pricing by us or our competitors;

our ability to develop, introduce and market new products and product enhancements on a timely basis;
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our success in creating brand awareness and in expanding our sales and marketing programs;
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the level of competition;
potential reductions in inventories held by channel partners;
slowing sales of the products of our channel partners;
technological changes in the open systems storage market;
levels of expenditures on research, engineering and product development;
changes in our business strategies;
personnel changes; and

general economic trends and other factors.

If our customers delay or cancel orders or return products, our results of operations could be harmed.

We generally do not enter into long-term purchase contracts with customers, and customers usually have the right
to extend or delay shipment of their orders, return products and cancel orders. As a result, sales in any period are
generally dependent on orders booked and shipped in that period. Delays in shipment orders, product returns and order
cancellations in excess of the levels we expect would harm our results of operations.

Our sales cycle varies substantially and future net revenue in any period may be lower than our historical

revenues or forecasts.

Our sales are difficult to forecast because the open systems storage market is rapidly evolving and our sales cycle
varies substantially from customer to customer. Customer orders for our products can range in value from a few
thousand dollars to over a million dollars. The length of time between initial contact with a potential customer and the
sale of our product may last from six to 24 months. This is particularly true during times of economic slowdown, for
sales to channel partners and for the sale and installation of complex solutions. We have shifted our business strategy
to focus primarily on channel partners, with whom sales cycles are generally lengthier, more costly and less certain
than direct sales to end-users.

Additional factors that may extend our sales cycle, particularly orders for new products, include:

the amount of time needed for technical evaluations by customers;

customers budget constraints and changes to customers budgets during the course of the sales cycle;
customers internal review and testing procedures; and

our engineering work necessary to integrate a storage solution with a customer s system.

Our net revenue is difficult for us to predict since it is directly affected by the timing of large orders. Due to the
unpredictable timing of customer orders, we may ship products representing a significant portion of our net sales for a
quarter during the last month of that quarter. In addition, our expense levels are based, in part, on our expectations as
to future sales. As a result, if sales levels are below expectations, our operating results may be disproportionately
affected. We cannot assure you that we will experience sales growth in future periods.

The market for our products is subject to substantial pricing pressure that may decrease our margins.

Pricing pressures exist in the data storage market and have harmed and may, in the future, continue to harm our
net revenue and earnings. These pricing pressures are due, in part, to continuing decreases in component prices, such
as those of disks and RAID controllers. Decreases in component prices are customarily passed on to customers by
storage companies through a continuing decrease in price of storage hardware systems. In addition, because we expect
to continue to make most of our sales to a small number of customers, we are subject to continued pricing pressures
from our customers, particularly our OEM customers. Pricing pressures are also due, in part, to the current difficult
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functional differences among competitors, which forces companies to compete on price as opposed to features of
products, and the introduction of new technologies, which leaves older technology more vulnerable to pricing
pressures. To the extent we are unable to offset those pressures with commensurate cost reductions from our suppliers
or by providing new products and features, our margins will be harmed.

Our success depends significantly upon our ability to protect our intellectual property and to avoid infringing
the intellectual property of third parties, which has already resulted in costly, time-consuming litigation and
could result in the inability to offer certain products.

We rely primarily on patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, nondisclosure agreements and common law to
protect our intellectual property. For example, we have registered trademarks for SANnet, SANpath, SANscape,
Stratis, Dot Hill, Dot Hill Systems and the Dot Hill logo. Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property,
unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our products or obtain and use information that we regard as
proprietary. In addition, the laws of foreign countries may not adequately protect our intellectual property rights. Our
efforts to protect our intellectual property from third party discovery and infringement may be insufficient and third
parties may independently develop technologies similar to ours, duplicate our products or design around our patents.

On October 17, 2003, Crossroads Systems, or Crossroads, filed a lawsuit against us in the United States District
Court in Austin, Texas alleging that our products infringe two United States patents assigned to Crossroads, Patent
Numbers 5,941,972 and 6,425,035. We were served with the lawsuit on October 27, 2003. In March 2004, Chaparral
was added as a party to the lawsuit. The patents involve storage routers and methods for providing virtual local
storage. Patent Number 5,941,972 involves the interface of SCSI storage devices and the Fibre Channel protocol and
Patent Number 6,425,035 involves the interface of any one-transport medium and a second transport medium. We
believe that we have meritorious defenses to Crossroads claims and intend to vigorously defend against them. We
have already incurred, and expect to continue to incur, significant legal expenses in connection with this litigation.
These defense costs, and other expenses related to this litigation, will be expensed as incurred and will negatively
affect our future operating results. If we are not successful in our defense of Crossroads claims, we may be required to
pay significant amounts in the form of damages for past infringement. We also could be required to pay significant
amounts in the form of licensing fees to allow us to continue to market certain products in the future, or Crossroads
may deny us a license, which could lead to our inability to market certain products at all. Further, other third parties
may assert additional infringement claims against us in the future, which would similarly require us to incur
substantial license fees, legal fees and other expenses, and distract management from the operations of our business.

We expect that providers of storage products will increasingly be subject to infringement claims as the number of
products and competitors increases. In addition to the formal claims brought against us by Crossroads, we receive,
from time to time, letters from third parties suggesting that we may require a license from such third parties to
manufacture or sell our products. We evaluate all such communications to assess whether to seek a license from the
patent owner. We may be required to purchase licenses that could have a material impact on our business, or, we may
not be able to obtain the necessary license from a third party on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

Consequently, we could be prohibited from marketing products that incorporate the protected technology or incur
substantial costs to redesign our products in a manner to avoid infringement of third party intellectual property rights.

The market for storage systems is intensely competitive and our results of operations, pricing and business

could be harmed if we fail to maintain or expand our market position.

The storage market is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapidly changing technology. We compete
primarily against independent storage system suppliers, including EMC, Hitachi, Engenio, and Xyratex.
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Many of our existing and potential competitors have longer operating histories, greater name recognition and
substantially greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources than us. As a result, they may have more
advanced technology, larger distribution channels, stronger brand names, better customer service and access to more
customers than we do. Other large companies with significant resources could become direct competitors, either
through acquiring a competitor or through internal efforts. Additionally, a number of new, privately held companies
are currently attempting to enter the storage market, some of which may become significant competitors in the future.
Any of these existing or potential competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies
and changes in customer requirements, devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products or
deliver competitive products at lower prices than us.

We could also lose current or future business to any of our suppliers or manufacturers, some of which directly and
indirectly compete with us. Currently, we leverage our supply and manufacturing relationships to provide a significant
share of our products. Our suppliers and manufacturers are very familiar with the specific attributes of our products
and may be able to provide our customers with similar products. We also expect that competition will increase as a
result of industry consolidation and the creation of companies with new, innovative product offerings. For example,
on June 2, 2005, Sun purchased StorageTek. Current and potential competitors have established or may establish
cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties to increase the ability of their products to address the
needs of our prospective customers. Accordingly, it is possible that new competitors or alliances among competitors
may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share. Increased competition is likely to result in price reductions,
reduced operating margins and potential loss of market share, any of which could harm our business. We believe that
the principal competitive factors affecting the storage systems market include:

product performance, features, scalability and reliability;
price;

product breadth;

timeliness of new product introductions; and

interoperability and ease of management.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully incorporate these factors into our products and compete
against current or future competitors or that competitive pressures we face will not harm our business. If we are unable
to develop and market products to compete with the products of competitors, our business will be materially and
adversely affected. In addition, if major channel partners who are also competitors cease purchasing our products in
order to concentrate on sales of their own products, our business will be harmed.

The open systems storage market is rapidly changing and we may be unable to keep pace with or properly

prepare for the effects of those changes.

The open systems data storage market in which we operate is characterized by rapid technological change,
frequent new product introductions, evolving industry standards and consolidation among our competitors, suppliers
and customers. Customer preferences in this market are difficult to predict and changes in those preferences and the
introduction of new products by our competitors or us could render our existing products obsolete. Our success will
depend upon our ability to address the increasingly sophisticated needs of customers, to enhance existing products,
and to develop and introduce on a timely basis, new competitive products, including new software and hardware, and
enhancements to existing software and hardware that keep pace with technological developments and emerging
industry standards. If we cannot successfully identify, manage, develop, manufacture or market product enhancements
or new products, our business will be harmed. In addition, consolidation among our competitors, suppliers and
customers may harm our business by increasing the resources of our competitors, reducing the number of suppliers
available to us for our product components and increasing competition for customers by reducing
customer-purchasing decisions.
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A significant percentage of our expenses are fixed, and if we fail to generate revenues in associated periods, our

operating results will be harmed.

Although we have taken a number of steps to reduce operating costs, we may have to take further measures to
reduce expenses if we experience operating losses or do not achieve a stable net income. A number of factors could
preclude us from successfully bringing costs and expenses in line with our net revenue, such as the fact that our
expense levels are based in part on our expectations as to future sales, and that a significant percentage of our
expenses are fixed, which limits our ability to reduce expenses quickly in response to any shortfalls in net revenue. As
a result, if net revenue does not meet our projections, operating results may be negatively affected. We may
experience shortfalls in net revenue for various reasons, including:

significant pricing pressures that occur because of declines in selling prices over the life of a product or because
of increased competition;

sudden shortages of raw materials or fabrication, test or assembly capacity constraints that lead our suppliers and
manufacturers to allocate available supplies or capacity to other customers, which, in turn, may harm our ability
to meet our sales obligations; and

the reduction, rescheduling or cancellation of customer orders.

In addition, we typically plan our production and inventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand,
which is highly unpredictable and can fluctuate substantially. From time to time, in response to anticipated long lead
times to obtain inventory and materials from our outside suppliers, we may order materials in advance of anticipated
customer demand. This advance ordering has continued and may result in excess inventory levels or unanticipated
inventory write-downs due to expected orders that fail to materialize.

Our success depends on our ability to attract and retain key personnel.

Our performance depends in significant part on our ability to attract and retain talented senior management and
other key personnel. Our key personnel include Dana Kammersgard, our Chief Executive Officer and President,
Patrick Collins, our Chief Operating Officer, and Preston Romm, our Chief Financial Officer. If any of these
individuals were to terminate his employment with us, we would be required to locate and hire a suitable replacement.
For example, James Lambert retired as our Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in March 2006 and
Mr. Kammersgard was appointed as our Chief Executive Officer to replace Mr. Lambert. Competition for attracting
talented employees in the technology industry is intense. We may be unable to identify suitable replacements for any
employees that we lose. In addition, even if we are successful in locating suitable replacements, the time and cost
involved in recruiting, hiring, training and integrating new employees, particularly key employees responsible for
significant portions of our operations, could harm our business by delaying our production schedule, our research and
development efforts, our ability to execute on our business strategy and our client development and marketing efforts.

Many of our customer relationships are based on personal relationships between the customer and our sales
representatives. If these representatives terminate their employment with us, we may be forced to expend substantial
resources to attempt to retain the customers that the sales representatives serviced. Ultimately, if we were unsuccessful
in retaining these customers, our net revenue would decline.

Our executive officers and directors and their affiliates own a significant percentage of our outstanding shares,

which could prevent us from being acquired and adversely affect our stock price.

As of December 31, 2005, our executive officers, directors and their affiliates beneficially owned approximately
11.2% of our outstanding shares of common stock. These individual stockholders may be able to influence matters
requiring approval by our stockholders, including the election of a majority of our directors. The voting power of
these stockholders under certain circumstances could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of
us. This concentration of ownership may also make it more difficult or expensive for us to obtain financing. Further,
any substantial sale of shares by these individuals could depress the market price of our common stock and impair our

ability to raise capital in the future through the sale of our equity securities.
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Protective provisions in our charter and bylaws and the existence of our stockholder rights plan could prevent a

takeover which could harm our stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain a number of provisions that could impede a takeover or
prevent us from being acquired, including, but not limited to, a classified board of directors, the elimination of our
stockholders ability to take action by written consent and limitations on the ability of our stockholders to remove a
director from office without cause. Our board of directors may issue additional shares of common stock or establish
one or more classes or series of preferred stock with such designations, relative voting rights, dividend rates,
liquidation and other rights, preferences and limitations as determined by our board of directors without stockholder
approval. In addition, we adopted a stockholder rights plan in May 2003 that is designed to impede takeover
transactions that are not supported by our board of directors. Each of these charter and bylaw provisions and the
stockholder rights plan gives our board of directors, acting without stockholder approval, the ability to prevent, or
render more difficult or costly, the completion of a takeover transaction that our stockholders might view as being in
their best interests.

The exercise of outstanding warrants may result in dilution to our stockholders.

Dilution of the per share value of our common stock could result from the exercise of outstanding warrants. As of
December 31, 2005 there were outstanding warrants to purchase 1,720,696 shares of our common stock. The warrants
have exercise prices ranging from $2.97 to $4.50 per share and expire at various dates through March 14, 2008. When
the exercise price of the warrants is less than the trading price of our common stock, exercise of the warrants would
have a dilutive effect on our stockholders. The possibility of the issuance of shares of our common stock upon
exercise of the warrants could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline.

Our stock price may be highly volatile and could decline substantially and unexpectedly.

The trading price of our shares of common stock has been affected by the factors disclosed in this section as well
as prevailing economic and financial trends and conditions in the public securities markets. Share prices of companies
in technology-related industries, such as ours, tend to exhibit a high degree of volatility. The announcement of
financial results that fall short of the results anticipated by the public markets could have an immediate and significant
negative effect on the trading price of our shares in any given period. Such shortfalls may result from events that are
beyond our immediate control, can be unpredictable and, since a significant proportion of our sales during each fiscal
quarter tend to occur in the latter stages of the quarter, may not be discernible until the end of a financial reporting
period. These factors may contribute to the volatility of the trading value of our shares regardless of our long-term
prospects. The trading price of our shares may also be affected by developments, including reported financial results
and fluctuations in trading prices of the shares of other publicly held companies, in our industry generally and our
business segment in particular, which may not have any direct relationship with our business or prospects.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following periods of
volatility in the market price of its securities. For example, in late January and early February 2006, numerous
complaints against us purporting to be class actions were filed in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of California. The complaints allege violations of federal securities laws related to alleged inflation in our
stock price in connection with various statements and alleged omissions to the public and to the securities markets and
declines in our stock price in connection with the restatement of certain of our quarterly financial statements for fiscal
year 2004, and seeking damages therefore. In addition, two complaints purporting to be derivative actions have been
filed in California state court against certain of our directors and executive officers. These complaints are based on the
same facts and circumstances described in the federal class action complaints and generally allege that the named
directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties by failing to oversee adequately our financial reporting. Each of
the complaints generally seek an unspecified amount of damages. The cases are in the very preliminary stages. We
believe the allegations against us and certain of our directors and executive officers in this action are without merit
and we intend to vigorously defend against these claims. Securities litigation could result in the expenditure of
substantial
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funds, divert management s attention and resources, harm our reputation in the industry and the securities markets and
reduce our profitability.

Future sales of our common stock may hurt our market price.

A substantial number of shares of our common stock may become available for resale. If our stockholders sell
substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the market price of our common stock could decline.
These sales might also make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at times and prices that we
deem appropriate. In addition, we are obligated to file a registration statement with respect to the resale of up to
1,394,269 shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants held by Sun.

Geopolitical military conditions, including terrorist attacks and other acts of war, may materially and adversely

affect the markets on which our common stock trades, the markets in which we operate, our operations and our

profitability.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of war, and any response to them, may lead to armed hostilities and such
developments would likely cause instability in financial markets. Armed hostilities and terrorism may directly impact
our facilities, personnel and operations that are located in the United States and internationally, as well as those of our
channel partners, suppliers, third party manufacturer and customers. Furthermore, severe terrorist attacks or acts of
war may result in temporary halts of commercial activity in the affected regions, and may result in reduced demand
for our products. These developments could have a material adverse effect on our business and the trading price of our
common stock.

Compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

We are exposed to significant costs and risks associated with complying with increasingly stringent and complex
regulation of corporate governance and disclosure standards. Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to
corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and
Nasdaq Stock Market rules require growing expenditure of management time and external resources. In particular,
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires management s annual review and evaluation of our internal
controls, and attestations of the effectiveness of our internal controls by our independent auditors. This process has
required us to hire additional personnel and outside advisory services and has resulted in significant accounting and
legal expenses. We expect to continue to incur significant expense in future periods to comply with regulations
pertaining to corporate governance as described above. In addition, we are in the process of implementing an ERP
system. This process is extremely complicated, time consuming and expensive, and while we believe the
implementation will be successful, it may not be sufficient to address all of our accounting system management needs.
Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters and principal research and marketing facility currently occupies approximately 67,200 square
feet in Carlsbad, California, under a lease that expires in April 2006. In addition, we lease six international offices in
five countries: Germany, Japan, the Netherlands, Singapore and the United Kingdom. With the acquisition of
Chaparral, we added a research and development facility that occupies approximately 26,930 square feet in Longmont,
Colorado, under a lease that expires in July 2007. We also have a lease for a facility in Corona, California for
7,160 square feet. In September 2005, we entered into an agreement to lease approximately 58,500 square feet of
office space in Carlsbad, California. We will use this office space as our new corporate headquarters and principal
research and marketing facility. Solectron manufactures substantially all of our products. We believe that with our
existing facilities and Solectron s manufacturing capabilities, we have the capacity to meet any potential increases to
our forecasted production requirements and therefore believe our facilities are adequate to meet our needs in the
foreseeable future.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Crossroads Systems  On October 17, 2003, Crossroads filed a lawsuit against us in the United States District Court
in Austin, Texas, alleging that our products infringe two United States patents assigned to Crossroads, Patent Numbers
5,941,972 and 6,425,035. We were served with the lawsuit on October 27, 2003. Chaparral was added as a party to the
lawsuit in March 2004. The patents involve storage routers and methods for providing virtual local storage. Patent
Number 5,941,972 involves the interface of SCSI storage devices and the Fibre Channel protocol and Patent Number
6,425,035 involves the interface of any one-transport medium and a second transport medium. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses to Crossroads claims and are in the process of vigorously defending against them.
However, we expect to incur significant legal expenses in connection with this litigation. These defense costs, and
other expenses related to this litigation, will be expensed as incurred and will negatively affect our operating results.

Chaparral Securities Class Action In August 2004, a class action lawsuit was filed against, among others,
Chaparral and a number of its former officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Central District
of California. The lawsuit, among other things, alleges violations of federal and state securities laws and purports to
seek damages on behalf of a class of shareholders who held interests in limited liability companies that had purchased,
among other securities, Chaparral stock during a defined period prior to our acquisition of Chaparral. In May 2005,
the Second Amended Complaint was dismissed with leave to amend. Plaintiffs filed a Third Amended Complaint,
which the Court again dismissed with leave to amend in November of 2005 as to Chaparral and certain other
defendants. Plaintiffs declined to amend within the proscribed period, and final judgment was entered in February
2006.

Plaintiffs filed a related action in the Superior Court of the State of California, Orange County, in December of
2005, alleging many of the same claims. The demurrer in that matter is due March 30, 2006. We believe that the
claims against Chaparral and its former officers and directors are without merit and are in the process of vigorously
defending against them. The outcome is uncertain and no amounts have been accrued as of December 31, 2005.

Dot Hill Securities Class Action In late January and early February 2006, numerous complaints against us
purporting to be class actions were filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of California. The
complaints allege violations of federal securities laws related to alleged inflation in our stock price in connection with
various statements and alleged omissions to the public and to the securities markets and declines in our stock price in
connection with the restatement of certain of our quarterly financial statements for fiscal year 2004, and seeking
damages therefore. In addition, two complaints purporting to be derivative actions have been filed in California state
court against certain of our directors and executive officers. These complaints are based on the same facts and
circumstances described in the federal class action complaints and generally allege that the named directors and
officers breached their fiduciary duties by failing to oversee adequately our financial reporting. Each of the complaints
generally seek an unspecified amount of damages. The cases are in the very preliminary stages. We believe the
allegations against us and certain of our directors and executive officers in this action are without merit and we intend
to vigorously defend against these claims.

In addition to the action discussed above, we are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, asserted or
unasserted, which arise in the ordinary course of business. The outcome of the claims against us cannot be predicted
with certainty. We believe that such litigation and claims will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or operating results.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock is currently included for quotation on the Nasdaq National Market and is currently traded
under the symbol HILL .

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the per share range of the high and low closing sales prices
or closing bid prices, of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market.

Low High

Year Ended December 31, 2004

First Quarter $ 10.04 $ 17.14

Second Quarter 7.24 11.36

Third Quarter 7.18 10.98

Fourth Quarter 6.25 8.89
Year Ended December 31, 2005

First Quarter 5.57 7.62

Second Quarter 4.64 5.90

Third Quarter 5.25 6.73

Fourth Quarter 6.46 7.40

On March 8, 2006 the last reported sale price for our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market was $6.86 per
share. As of March 8, 2006, there were 44,565,084 shares of our common stock outstanding held by approximately
8,074 holders of record. We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and currently intend to retain
future earnings, if any, to the extent possible to fund the development and growth of our business. We do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

The information required to be disclosed by item 201(d) of Regulation S-K, Securities Authorized for Issuance
Under Equity Compensation Plans, is included under Item 12 of Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

We derived the selected consolidated financial data presented below from our consolidated financial statements.
You should read the selected consolidated financial data together with our consolidated financial statements and
related notes thereto and with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, and the balance sheet data as
of December 31, 2004 and 2005, have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which are

included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Statement of operations data for the years ended

December 31, 2001 and 2002 and balance sheet data as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 have been derived from
our audited consolidated financial statements not included herein. All data in thousands except per share data.

Statement of Operations Data:

Net revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
Research and development
General and administrative
In-process research and
development(1)

Merger and restructuring

expenses(2)

Operating income (loss)
Other income /(expense) net
Income tax (expense)/benefit(3)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic

Diluted
Weighted average shares
outstanding:

Basic

Diluted
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2001
$ 56,277
44,818
11,459
23,717

6,673
4,533

4,905
(28,369)

301
(15,323)

$ (43,391)

$ (43,391)

$ (1.76)

$ (1.76)

24,703

24,703

2002
$ 46,936
45,444
1,492
22,513

10,043
5,150

1,550

(37,764)
344
3,117

$ (34,303)

$ (34,759)

$ (1.39)

$ (1.39)

24,953

24,953

2003
$ 187,448
142,550
44,898
14,086

11,950
7,418

11,444
775
(88)

$ 12,131

$ 11,990

$ 0.35

$ 0.31

33,856

38,164

2004(1)

$ 239,376
179,875
59,501
16,839
17,993
9,992
4,700
(434)
10,411
1,458
(272)

$ 11,597

$ 11,597

$ 0.27

$ 0.25

43,460

46,395

2005

$ 233,799

180,196
53,603
19,120

23,628
12,933

(2,078)
3,478
25,197

26,597

26,597

0.61

0.58

43,903

45,639
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents, and

short-term investments $ 16,457 $ 10,082 $ 191,545 $ 126,186 $ 122,234
Working capital 25,832 2,224 177,650 123,384 135,293
Total assets 46,191 32,228 218,443 246,567 267,294
Total long-term debt 330 275 247

Total stockholders equity 30,611 5,785 184,133 196,827 232,051

(1) The results of operations of Chaparral have been included in our results prospectively from February 23, 2004.
(2) See discussion of our restructuring activities in Note 5 to our 2005 consolidated financial statements.

(3) See discussion of income taxes in Note 11 to our 2005 consolidated financial statements.
Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Cautionary Statement for Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements contained in this report, including, statements regarding the development, growth and
expansion of our business, our intent, belief or current expectations, primarily with respect to our future operating
performance and the products we expect to offer, and other statements regarding matters that are not historical facts,
are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are subject to the safe harbor created by these
sections. Because such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond
our control, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements can be found in Item 1A Risk Factors and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. The forward- looking statements
speak only as of the date on which they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update such statements to reflect
events that occur or circumstances that exist after the date on which they are made.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with
our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Overview

We are a provider of storage systems for organizations requiring high reliability, high performance networked
storage and data management solutions in an open systems architecture. Our storage solutions consist of integrated
hardware and software products employing a modular system that allows end-users to add capacity as needed. Our
broad range of products, from medium capacity stand-alone storage units to complete turn-key, multi-terabyte storage
area networks, provides end-users with a cost-effective means of addressing increasing storage demands without
sacrificing performance.

Our products and services are sold worldwide to end-users primarily through our channel partners, including
OEMs, SIs, and VARs. In May 2002, we entered into a three-year OEM agreement with Sun to provide our storage
hardware and software products for private label sales by Sun. We have been shipping our products to Sun for resale
to Sun s customers since October 2002. We have continued to develop new products primarily for resale by Sun, such
as our SANnet II FC, which began shipping to Sun in March 2003 and our SANnet II SATA product which began
shipping in June 2004. We are discussing with Sun the extent and timing of additional new product shipments. In
September 2005, our existing OEM partner agreement with Sun, first announced in May 2002, was extended until
January 2011 and now provides for automatic renewal for additional one-year periods unless either party notifies the
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period of time. We intend to continue expanding our non-OEM sales channels through SIs and VARs in order to
decrease our revenue concentration with OEMs.

In July 2005, we entered into a Development and OEM Supply Agreement with NetApp. Under the agreement, we
are designing and developing general purpose disk arrays for a variety of products to be developed for sale to NetApp.
We believe that once sales under this agreement increase, which is expected to occur over the next several quarters,
our revenue dependence upon Sun will be significantly reduced.

In January 2006, we entered into a Master Purchase Agreement with Fujitsu. Under the agreement, Dot Hill and
Fujitsu will jointly develop storage solutions utilizing key components and patented technologies from .Dot Hill. The
agreement does not contain any minimum purchase commitments by Fujitsu. The initial agreement term is five years.

As part of our focus on indirect sales channels, we have outsourced substantially all of our manufacturing
operations to Solectron, a leading electronics manufacturing services company. Our agreement with Solectron allows
us to reduce sales cycle times and manufacturing infrastructure, increase working capital and improve margins by
taking advantage of Solectron s manufacturing and procurement economies of scale.

We derive revenue primarily from sales of our SANnet II family of products. In prior periods, we derived a
significant portion of our revenue from sales of our legacy products and SANnet I family of products. Except for one
OEM customer to whom we continue to sell our SANnet I products, we have transitioned all customers to our
SANnet II products.

We derive a portion of our revenue from services associated with the maintenance service we provide for our
installed products. In May 2003, we entered into a services agreement with Anacomp to provide all maintenance,
warranty and non-warranty services for our SANnet I and certain legacy products.

Cost of goods sold includes costs of materials, subcontractor costs, salary and related benefits for the production
and service departments, depreciation and amortization of equipment used in the production and service departments,
production facility rent and allocation of overhead.

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and commissions, advertising and promotional costs
and travel expenses. Research and development expenses consist primarily of project-related expenses and salaries for
employees directly engaged in research and development. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of
compensation to officers and employees performing administrative functions and expenditures for administrative
facilities. Restructuring expenses consist primarily of employee severance, lease termination costs and other office
closure expenses related to the consolidation of excess facilities.

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income earned on our cash, cash equivalents, short-term
investments and other miscellaneous income and expense items. In 2004 our interest expense primarily relates to a
$6.0 million note payable that we assumed in connection with our acquisition of Chaparral. During August 2004, we
made a payment of approximately $7.2 million representing both principle and interest to the holder of the promissory
note assumed in connection with our acquisition of Chaparral in February 2004. There are no further amounts due.

In August 1999, we merged with Artecon and we changed our name from Box Hill Systems Corp. to Dot Hill
Systems Corp. We reincorporated in Delaware in 2001. Our headquarters is located in Carlsbad, California, and we
maintain international offices in Germany, Japan, the Netherlands, Singapore and the United Kingdom.

On February 23, 2004, we completed the acquisition of Chaparral, a privately held developer of specialized
storage appliances as well as high-performance, mid-range RAID controllers and data routers. The total transaction
cost of approximately $67.6 million consisted of a payment of approximately $62 million in cash, the assumption of
approximately $4.1 million related to obligations due certain employee covered by change in control agreements,
approximately $0.8 million of direct transaction costs and approximately $0.7 million of accrued integration costs. We
believe the acquisition of Chaparral has enabled us to increase
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the amount of proprietary technology within our storage systems, broaden our product line and diversify our customer
base.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and use judgment that may
impact the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. As a part of our on-going internal processes, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to inventory
write-downs, warranty cost accruals, revenue recognition, bad debt allowances, long-lived assets valuation, goodwill
and intangible assets valuation, income taxes, including deferred income tax asset valuation, litigation and
contingencies. We base these estimates upon both historical information and other assumptions that we believe are
valid and reasonable under the circumstances. These assumptions form the basis for making judgments and
determining the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources. Actual results could
vary from those estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

We believe that the policies set forth below may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity in their
application than our other accounting policies and represent the critical accounting policies used in the preparation of
our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized pursuant to applicable accounting standards, including Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition and Statement of Position No. 97-2, Software
Revenue Recognition (SOP 97-2).

We recognize revenue for non-software product sales upon transfer of title to the customer. Reductions to revenue
for estimated sales returns are also recorded at that time. These estimates are based on historical sales returns, changes
in customer demand and other factors. If actual future returns and allowances differ from past experience, additional
allowances may be required. Certain of our sales arrangements include multiple elements. Generally, these
arrangements include delivery of the product, installation, training and product maintenance. Maintenance related to
product sales entitles the customer to basic product support and significantly greater response time in resolving
warranty related issues. We allocate revenue to each element of the arrangement based on its relative fair value. For
maintenance contracts this is typically the price charged when such contracts are sold separately or renewed. Because
professional services related to installation and training can be provided by other third party organizations, we allocate
revenue related to professional services based on rates that are consistent with other like companies providing similar
services, i.e., the market rate for such services. Revenue from product maintenance contracts is deferred and
recognized ratably over the contract term, generally twelve months. Revenue from installation, training and consulting
is recognized as the services are performed.

For software sales, we apply SOP 97-2, whereby revenue is recognized from software licenses at the time the
product is delivered, provided there are no significant obligations related to the sale, the resulting receivable is deemed
collectible and there is vendor-specific objective evidence supporting the value of the separate contract elements. For
arrangements with multiple elements, we allocate revenue to each element using the residual method based on vendor
specific objective evidence of the undelivered items. A portion of the arrangement fee equal to the fair value of the
undelivered elements, typically software maintenance contracts, is deferred and recognized ratably over the contract
term, generally twelve months. Vendor specific objective evidence is based on the price charged when the element is
sold separately. A typical arrangement includes a software-licensing fee and maintenance agreement.

The cost of maintenance contracts entered into with third parties is deferred and recognized as expense over the
contract term. The balance of deferred costs for maintenance contracts is included in prepaid expenses, other current
assets and other long-term assets.
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Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are comprised of purchased parts and assemblies, which include direct labor and overhead. We record
inventories at the lower of cost or market value, with cost generally determined on a first-in, first-out basis. We
perform periodic valuation assessments based on projected sales forecasts and analyzing upcoming changes in future
configurations of our products and record inventory write-downs for excess and obsolete inventory. Although we
strive to ensure the accuracy of our forecasts, we periodically are faced with uncertainties. The outcomes of these
uncertainties are not within our control, and may not be known for prolonged periods of time. Any significant
unanticipated changes in demand or technological developments could have a significant impact on the value of our
inventories and commitments, and consequently, on our operating results. If actual market conditions become less
favorable than those forecasted, additional inventory write-downs might be required, adversely affecting operating
results.

Valuation of Goodwill

We review goodwill for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or
SFAS, No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 require that a two-step
impairment test be performed on goodwill. In the first step, we compare the fair value of each reporting unit to its
carrying value. Our reporting units are consistent with the reportable segments identified in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements. We determine the fair value of our reporting units using the income approach.
Under the income approach, we calculate the fair value of a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated
future cash flows. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that
unit, goodwill is not impaired and we are not required to perform further testing. If the carrying value of the net assets
assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, then we must perform the second step in
order to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit s goodwill and compare it to the carrying value of the
reporting unit s goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then we
must record an impairment loss equal to the difference.

The income approach is dependent on a number of factors including estimates of future market growth and trends,
forecasted revenue and costs, expected periods the assets will be utilized, appropriate discount rates and other
variables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but which are unpredictable
and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those estimates.

Deferred Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets, including net
operating loss carryforwards, and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the book and tax
basis of assets and liabilities. We periodically evaluate the likelihood of the realization of deferred tax assets, and
adjust the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets by the valuation allowance to the extent we believe a portion will
be realized. We consider many factors when assessing the likelihood of future realization of our deferred tax assets,
including our recent cumulative earnings experience by taxing jurisdiction, expectations of future taxable income, the
carryforward periods available to us for tax reporting purposes, and other relevant factors.

Due to our equity transactions, an ownership change, within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code, or IRC,
Section 382, occurred on September 18, 2003. As a result, annual use of our federal net operating loss and credit carry
forwards is limited to (i) the aggregate fair market value of Dot Hill Systems Corp. immediately before the ownership
change multiplied by (ii) the long-term tax-exempt rate (within the meaning of IRC Section 382 (f)) in effect at that
time. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized in future years in
addition to the Section 382 limitation for those years.

As a result of our acquisition of Chaparral, a second ownership change, within the meaning of Internal Revenue
Code Section 382, occurred on February 23, 2004. As a result, annual use of the acquired
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Chaparral s federal net operating loss and credit carry forwards may be limited. The annual limitation is cumulative
and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized in future years in addition to the Section 382 limitation for
those years.

At December 31, 2005, based on the weight of available evidence, including cumulative profitability in recent
years, we determined that it was more likely than not that a portion of our U.S. deferred tax assets would be realized
and, at December 31, 2005, eliminated $47.1 million of valuation allowance associated with our U.S. deferred tax
assets. The elimination of valuation allowance resulted in a $16.4 million decrease to goodwill to the extent of our
acquired net deferred tax assets, a $5.4 million increase to equity for net operating losses arising from stock option
deductions, with the remaining $25.3 million recognized as a one-time non-cash increase in earnings for the year
ended December 31, 2005. As a result of our elimination of valuation allowance associated with U.S. deferred tax
assets, our effective tax rate in subsequent periods is likely to more closely resemble the applicable federal and state
statutory tax rates.

Stock-Based Compensation

Through December 31, 2005, we accounted for stock-based compensation under the intrinsic method in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.
Under the intrinsic method, we did not record any expenses as the exercise price of stock options granted equalled the
fair market value of our stock at the date of grant.

On December 1, 2005, the Company accelerated vesting of certain unvested and out-of-the-money stock options
with exercise prices equal to or greater than $6.74 per share that were previously awarded under the Company s equity
compensation plans to its employees. These options were accelerated to avoid recording future compensation expense
with respect to such options following adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) as discussed below. The Company s management
believes that because such options had exercise prices in excess of the current market value of the Company s stock,
the options were not achieving their original objective. The acceleration of vesting was effective for stock options
outstanding as of December 1, 2005. Options to purchase 0.6 million shares of common stock were subject to the
acceleration and the weighted average exercise price of the options subject to the acceleration was $11.71. Due to this
acceleration, an additional $2.8 million is included in the pro forma stock-based compensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Commencing January 1, 2006, we will adopt SFAS No. 123(R), Stock-Based Compensation, which requires us to
record stock compensation expense for equity based awards granted, including stock options, for which expense will
be recognized over the service period of the equity based award based on the fair value of the award at the date of
grant. The actual effects of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) will be dependent on numerous factors including, but not
limited to, the valuation model chosen by us to value stock-based awards; the assumed award forfeiture rate; the
accounting policies adopted concerning the method of recognizing the fair value of awards over the requisite service
period; and the transition method chosen for adopting SFAS No. 123(R). See the Recent Accounting Pronouncements
section below for further information.

Contingencies

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims and tax matters, the outcomes of which are subject to
significant uncertainty. SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, requires that an estimated loss from a loss
contingency should be accrued by a charge to income if it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Disclosure of a contingency is required if there
is at least a reasonable possibility that a loss has been incurred. We evaluate, among other factors, the degree of
probability of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of loss. Changes in
these factors could materially impact our financial position or our results of operations. See Note 17 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding contingencies.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain items from our statements of operations as a percentage of net revenue for
the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2004 2005

Net revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 76.0 75.1 77.1
Gross profit 24.0 24.9 22.9
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 7.5 7.0 8.2

Research and development 6.4 7.5 10.1

General and administrative 4.0 4.2 5.5

In process research and development 2.0

Restructuring expenses (0.2)
Operating income (loss) 6.1 4.4 0.9
Other income, net 0.4 0.6 1.5
Income tax expense (benefit) 0.1 (10.8)
Net income 6.5% 4.8% 11.4%

(percentages may not aggregate due to rounding)

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net Revenue

Net revenue decreased $5.6 million, or 2.3%, to $233.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared
to $239.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in net revenue was primarily attributable to a
decrease in revenue from our channel partner, Sun, as a result of a change in product mix. Our sales to Sun accounted
for 86.2% or $201.5 million of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 86.3% or
$206.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Total Fibre Channel units shipped were 10,343 for the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to 10,994 fibre channel units shipped for the year ended December 31, 2004.
13,563 SCSI units were shipped during the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 14,200 SCSI units for the
year ended December 31, 2004. 5,325 Blade units were shipped during the year ended December 31, 2005 compared
to 2,202 Blade units shipped for the year ended December 31, 2004. 2,780 SATA units were shipped during the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to 1,403 SATA units shipped for the year ended December 31, 2004. In March
2004, we announced that our existing OEM partner agreement with Sun was expanded to include new advanced
technology storage products to be designed and engineered by us to Sun s specifications. Our SATA product began
shipping in the second quarter of 2004 while our Blade product began shipping in the first quarter of 2004. We
recorded revenue of approximately $35.7 million and $15.7 million related to SATA and Blade products during the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Non-Sun revenue was $32.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to $32.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Cost of Goods Sold

Table of Contents 45



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Cost of goods sold increased $0.3 million, or 0.2%, to $180.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to $179.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of net revenue, cost of goods sold
increased to 77.1% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 75.1% for the year ended December 31, 2004. The
increase in the dollar amount of cost of goods sold was primarily attributable to
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greater volume of product sales during the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended December 31,
2004.

The increase in cost of goods sold, as a percentage of our net revenue was primarily attributable to an increase of
salaries from an increase in staffing, an increase of depreciation expense resulting from increased equipment
purchases related to ramp up activities at an Asian location of our contract manufacturer, the disposal of certain
production related fixed assets and the failure to obtain the usual disk drive price reductions due to the industry-wide
shortage of disk drives.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased $5.9 million, or 9.9%, to $53.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
$59.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of net revenue, gross profit decreased to 22.9%
for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 24.9% for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in the dollar
amount of gross profit is attributable to increased spending related to the items discussed above.

The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of our net revenue for year ended December 31, 2005 when compared
to the year ended December 31, 2004 can be attributed, in part, to continued pricing pressures on our mature products,
to changes in customer and product mix, to lower than anticipated sales volume and the failure to obtain the usual disk
drive price reductions due to the industry-wide shortage of disk drives. Our gross profit margin was also negatively
impacted for the year ended December 31, 2005 by sales of our SATA product that presently have a significantly
lower gross profit margin than either our Fibre Channel or SCSI products. Gross profit margin was also negatively
impacted by a full twelve months of amortization of finite lived intangible assets acquired in the Chaparral transaction
for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 10 months of amortization for the year ended December 31,
2004. Amortization of finite lived intangible assets acquired in the Chaparral transaction was $2.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The year of 2004 reflects
only ten months of amortization due as a result of the Chaparral acquisition in late February 2004.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased $2.3 million, or 13.7%, to $19.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 compared to $16.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of net revenue, sales and
marketing expenses increased to 8.2% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 7.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The increase in sales and marketing expenses is partially attributable to a full year of salaries and
related expenses for those employees added in connection with our acquisition of Chaparral in late February 2004
compared to ten months for the year ended December 31, 2004. We also incurred additional advertising and other
related marketing expenses of $1.0 million related to additional sales activities incurred by our European subsidiary as
we continue to pursue an increased market share in Europe and our continue in our effort to grow our non-OEM
commercial sales. We expect sales and marketing expenses for the year ending December 31, 2006 will exceed
spending levels incurred during 2005 due to our continued efforts to increase our market share and expand both our
non-OEM commercial sales and channel partners.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased $5.6 million, or 31.1%, to $23.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from $18.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of net revenue,
research and development expenses increased to 10.1% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 7.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2004. The increase in research and development expenses is partially attributable to an increase
in salaries, facility related expenses and all other expenses associated with our acquisition of Chaparral in late
February 2004. Additionally, costs associated with the research and development of new product offerings increased
by $3.9 million and was partially offset by a reduction in costs of $1.1 million related to our SATA product which was
released for sale early in the second quarter of 2004.
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We also incurred additional expenses of $0.9 million related to test equipment and a loss on the disposal of fixed
assets. We expect research and development expenses for the year ending December 31, 2006 will exceed spending
levels incurred during 2005 due to activities related to future product offerings.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased $2.9 million, or 29.0%, to $12.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to $10.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of net revenue,
general and administrative expenses were 5.5% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 4.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2004. The increase is partially attributable to an increase in bad debt expense of $0.6 million
which relates to our subsidiaries in Europe, an increase of $0.4 million related to the cost of compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, an increase of $0.4 million related to contract labor, and an increase of $0.2 million in
legal fees. Additionally, the year ended December 31, 2005 included a full year of compensation paid to our president,
formerly our chief technology officer, that had been classified as research and development expense for the first nine
months of the year ended December 31, 2004. We also incurred expenses of $0.3 million related to severance and
retirement expenses in our subsidiary in Japan and $0.3 million related to the implementation of a new ERP software
package which became operational in January 2006. We expect general and administrative expenses for the year
ending December 31, 2006 will exceed spending levels incurred during 2005 due to additional planned employees and
post implementation expenses related to our new ERP software package.

Restructuring expenses

In June 2004, we negotiated an exit from our lease of the 10th floor of our former New York City office, which
eliminated our related rent exposure. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded a reduction
of approximately $0.5 million to our restructuring reserve previously established in connection with the closure of our
New York City office. Additionally, we have evaluated certain factors pertaining to our remaining sublease tenant;
accordingly, during the three months ended June 30, 2004, we recorded an additional restructuring accrual of
approximately $0.1 million. We are not aware of any further unresolved issues or additional liabilities that may result
in a significant adjustment to restructuring expenses accrued as of December 31, 2005.

In-Process Research and Development Charges

Projects that qualify as in-process research and development represent those that have not yet reached
technological feasibility and for which no future alternative uses exist. Technological feasibility is defined as being
equivalent to a beta-phase working prototype in which there is no remaining risk relating to the development. For the
year ended December 31, 2004 we recorded an IPR&D charge of $4.7 million, in connection with the acquisition of
Chaparral. There were no similar charges for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Other Income

Other income increased by $2.0 million, or 133.3% to $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in interest
income of $1.6 million due to rising interest rates and a decrease in interest expense of approximately $0.3 million as
a result of the payoff in August 2004 of a $6 million note payable that was assumed in connection with the acquisition
of Chaparral and the repayment and termination of our Japanese credit facilities in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Income Taxes

We recognized an income tax benefit of $25.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The benefit was
comprised of $25.3 million attributed to a one-time non-cash elimination of valuation allowances
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associated with our US deferred tax assets offset by a $0.1 million expense related to earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was attributed to federal and state
minimum tax liabilities as well as local and foreign taxes.

We recognized an income tax expense of $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The income tax
expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was attributed to federal and state minimum tax liabilities as well as
local and foreign taxes.

As of December 31, 2005, we reversed a valuation allowance on its U.S. deferred tax assets totaling $47.1 million.
Based on the nature of the underlying deferred tax assets, the reversal of the valuation allowance resulted in an
increase to additional paid-in capital of $5.4 million, a reduction of goodwill in the amount of $16.4 million, and a net
income tax benefit of $25.3 million. This reversal is the result of our recent sustained history of operating profitability
and the determination by management that the future realization of the net deferred tax assets was judged to be more
likely than not. We exercise significant judgment relating to the projection of future taxable income to determine the
recoverability of any tax assets recorded on the balance sheet. If judgments regarding recoverability of deferred tax
assets are not accurate, we could be required to record additional reserves against deferred tax assets in future periods.

As of December 31, 2005, a valuation allowance of $3.6 million has been provided for the foreign deferred tax
assets based upon our assessment of the future realizability of certain foreign deferred tax assets, as it is more likely
than not that sufficient taxable income will not be generated to realize these temporary differences.

As of December 31, 2005, we have federal and state net operating losses of approximately $113.1 million and
$49.0 million, which begin to expire in the tax years ending 2009 and 2006, respectively. In addition, we have federal
tax credit carryforwards of $2.9 million, of which approximately $0.5 million can be carried forward indefinitely to
offset future taxable income, and the remaining $2.4 million will begin to expire in the tax year ending 2008. We also
have state tax credit carryforwards of $3.1 million, of which $2.9 million can be carried forward indefinitely to offset
future taxable income, and the remaining $0.2 million will begin to expire in the tax year ending 2006.

As a result of our equity transactions, an ownership change, within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code
Section 382, occurred on September 18, 2003. As a result, annual use of our federal net operating loss and credit carry
forwards is limited to (i) the aggregate fair market value of Artecon immediately before the ownership change
multiplied by (ii) the long-term tax-exempt rate (within the meaning of Section 382 (f) of the Internal Revenue Code)
in effect at that time. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized
in future years in addition to the Section 382 limitation for those years.

We have not provided for any residual U.S. income taxes on the earnings from our foreign subsidiaries because
such earnings are intended to be indefinitely reinvested. Such residual U.S. income taxes, if any, would be
insignificant.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Net Revenue

Net revenue increased $52.0 million, or 27.7%, to $239.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared
to $187.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in net revenue was primarily attributable to
increased orders for our product from our channel partner, Sun, which accounted for 86.3% or $206.6 million of our
net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004. Total Fibre Channel units shipped were 10,994 for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared to 8,064 Fibre Channel units shipped for the year ended December 31, 2003. 14,200
SCSI units were shipped during the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to 11,382 SCSI units for the year ended
December 31, 2003. In March 2004, we announced that our existing OEM partner agreement with Sun was expanded
to include new advanced technology storage products to be designed and engineered by us to Sun s specifications. Our
SATA product began shipping in the second quarter of 2004 while our Blade product began shipping in the first
quarter of 2004. We recorded revenue of approximately $15.7 million related to such products during the year ended
December 31, 2004.
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Non-Sun revenue was $32.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $31.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased $37.3 million, or 26.2%, to $179.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to $142.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. As a percentage of net revenue, cost of goods sold
decreased to 75.1% for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 76.0% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The
increase in the dollar amount of cost of goods sold was attributable to greater volume of product sales during the year
ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003 including the incremental cost of goods
sold attributable to the introduction of our SATA and Blade products. Additionally, cost of goods sold increased
approximately $1.9 million due to the impact of amortization expense related to intangible assets acquired in
connection with the acquisition of Chaparral. The decrease in cost of goods sold, as a percentage of our net revenue
was primarily attributable to cost reductions related to production materials achieved during the year ended
December 31, 2004. Such cost reductions resulted mainly from the decreasing price of component parts due to
competitive market factors; predetermined contractual cost reductions and the transition from soft to hard tooling as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2003.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $14.6 million, or 32.5%, to $59.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared
to $44.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. As a percentage of net revenue, gross profit increased to
24.9% for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 24.0% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in the
dollar amount of gross profit was attributable to greater volume of product sales during the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of our net revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003 primarily reflect cost
reductions achieved during 2004. Such cost reductions resulted mainly from the decreasing price of component parts
due to competitive market factors; predetermined contractual cost reductions and the transition from soft to hard
tooling. These cost reductions were partially offset by the introduction in June 2004 of our SATA and Blade products
that presently have significantly lower gross profit margins than either our fibre channel or SCSI products. Gross
profit for the year ended December 31, 2004 was also negatively impacted by $1.9 million of amortization expense
related to intangible assets acquired in connection with the acquisition of Chaparral in February 2004.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased $2.7 million, or 19.1%, to $16.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 compared to $14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. As a percentage of net revenue, sales and
marketing expenses decreased to 7.0% for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 7.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The increase in the dollar amount of sales and marketing related expenses is primarily
attributable to increased salaries and related expenses of approximately $1.2 million, an increase in travel and lodging
expense of $0.9 million, $0.2 million related to small equipment and fixtures and $0.2 million related to tradeshows.
The increase in sales and marketing expenses also reflects $0.6 million from the amortization of the customer
relationship intangible asset acquired in connection with the acquisition of Chaparral. These increases were partially
off-set by a decrease in professional services of approximately $0.6 million compared to the prior year. There are
other increases in sales and marketing expenses relating to a variety of activities none of which are significant on an
individual basis. The decrease in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of net revenue primarily reflects the
impact of increased 2004 revenue.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased $6.0 million, or 50.0%, to $18.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 from $12.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. As a percentage of net revenue,
research and development expenses increased to 7.5% for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 6.4% for
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the year ended December 31, 2003. The dollar increase in research and development expenses primarily reflects an
increase in salary and related expenses of approximately $3.8 million attributable to an increase in the number of our
full-time direct engineering team members compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. During the year ended
December 31, 2004, we averaged approximately 101 full-time direct engineering employees compared to an average
of approximately 55 full-time direct engineering employees for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase
includes the addition of approximately 20 engineering employees to our corporate headquarters in Carlsbad,
California resulting in an increase in salary and related expenses of approximately $0.9 million compared to the year
ended December 31, 2003. The establishment of our Longmont Technology Center in connection with the acquisition
of Chaparral resulted in the addition of approximately 30 new direct engineering employees. Salary and related
expenses for such employees was $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. There were no comparable
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003. The remaining increase in research and development expenses not
directly related to headcount primarily reflect additional costs of $1.2 million attributable to our Longmont facility and
its related activities for which there is no comparable expense for the year ended December 31, 2003. Project related
expenses at our Carlsbad location exceeded the prior year by approximately $0.2 million primarily related to our new
SATA and Blade products and the integration of the technology acquired from Chaparral into new and existing
products. The percentage increase in research and development expenses reflects all of the items discussed above,
partially offset by the increase in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 and the reclassification of costs
discussed above.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased $2.6 million, or 35.1%, to $10.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared to $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. As a percentage of net revenue,
general and administrative expenses were 4.2% for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to 4.0% for the year
ended December 31, 2003. The increase in the dollar amount of general and administrative expense during the year
ended December 31, 2004 reflects an increase of $2.1 million of legal and professional services expenses compared to
the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in legal expenses primarily reflects the legal matters described
elsewhere in this document while the increase in professional services reflect the cost of our compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We also incurred an increase of $0.4 million in bad debt expense compared to the year
ended December 31, 2003. The remaining increase in general and administrative expenses relates to an increase in a
variety of general and administrative expenses none of which are significant on an individual basis. The percentage
increase in general and administrative expenses reflect all of the items discussed above, partially offset by the increase
in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Restructuring expenses

In June 2004, we negotiated an exit from our lease of the 10th floor of our former New York City office thereby
eliminating our related rent exposure. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded a
reduction of approximately $0.5 million to our restructuring reserve previously established in connection with the
closure of our New York City office. Additionally, we have evaluated certain factors pertaining to our remaining
sublease tenant; accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded an additional restructuring
accrual of approximately $0.1 million. We are not aware of any further unresolved issues or additional liabilities that
may result in a significant adjustment to restructuring expenses accrued as of December 31, 2004.

In-Process Research and Development Charges

Projects that qualify as in-process research and development represent those that have not yet reached
technological feasibility and for which no future alternative uses exist. Technological feasibility is defined as being
equivalent to a beta-phase working prototype in which there is no remaining risk relating to the development. For the
year ended December 31, 2004 we recorded an IPR&D charge of $4.7 million, in connection with the acquisition of
Chaparral.
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Other Income

Other income increased by $0.7 million, or 87.5%, to $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase is primarily attributable to an increase in interest
income. Although we had significantly more cash at December 31, 2003 compared to December 31, 2004, the
proceeds from our secondary offering of our common stock were received in late September 2003. Such proceeds
therefore did not earn significant interest income during the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in interest
income was partially off-set by approximately $0.3 million in interest expense primarily related to the a $6 million
note payable assumed in connection with our acquisition of Chaparral in February 2004. The note payable and all
related accrued interest was paid off in August 2004. There were no amounts outstanding related to $6 million note
payable at December 31, 2004.

Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 of 2.3% and 0.7% is primarily
attributable to federal and state minimum tax liabilities as well as local and foreign taxes. Our effective income tax
rate for both the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was significantly reduced through the use of net operating
loss carryforwards for which a valuation allowance had previously been recorded.

As of December 31, 2004, a valuation allowance of $50.9 million was provided based upon our assessment of the
future realizability of our deferred income tax assets, as it was considered more likely than not that sufficient taxable
income would not be generated to realize these temporary differences.

Additionally, at December 31, 2004, approximately $4.6 million of the valuation allowance is attributable to the
potential tax benefit of stock option transactions that will be credited directly to common stock, if realized.

As of December 31, 2004, we have federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$119.1 million and $79.9 million, which begin to expire in 2009 and 2005, respectively. In addition, we have federal
tax credit carryforwards of approximately $3.1 million, of which $0.4 million can be carried forward indefinitely to
offset future taxable income, and the remaining $2.7 million will begin to expire in the tax year 2008. We also have
state tax credit carryforwards of $2.9 million, of which $2.7 million can be carried forward indefinitely to offset future
taxable income, and the remaining $0.2 million will begin to expire in 2006.

As aresult of the Company s equity transactions, an ownership change, within the meaning of Internal Revenue
Code Section 382, occurred on September 18, 2003. As a result, annual use of the Company s federal net operating
loss and credit carry forwards is limited to (i) the aggregate fair market value of Artecon immediately before the
ownership change multiplied by (ii) the long-term tax-exempt rate (within the meaning of Section 382 (f) of the
Internal Revenue Code) in effect at that time. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in
a year, can be utilized in future years in addition to the Section 382 limitation for those years.

We have not provided for any residual U.S. income taxes on the earnings from our foreign subsidiaries because
such earnings are intended to be indefinitely reinvested. Such residual U.S. income taxes, if any, would be
insignificant.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2005, we had $122.2 million of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and
working capital of $135.3 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, cash provided by operating activities was $0.7 million compared to cash
provided by operating activities of $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The net cash provided by
operating activities is primarily attributable to net income of $26.6 million increased by the add back of depreciation
and amortization of $7.5 million and $0.9 million loss on disposition of property and equipment, offset by a non-cash
benefit of $25.3 million related to the reversal of valuation allowances
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previously established for U.S. deferred income tax assets. Cash flow from operations reflects the negative impact of
approximately $14.4 million related to the management of certain payments to vendors and a $1.6 million increase in
prepaid and other current assets, due primarily to a $1.0 million increase in vendor rebate receivables and $0.5 million
increase in receivables related to tenant improvement allowances. Cash provided from operations was positively
impacted by the decrease in accounts receivable of approximately $6.4 million, due to decreased revenue in 2005 and
a $0.8 million decrease in inventory due to our efforts to better manage our materials portion of our business.

Cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $38.1 million compared to cash
used in investing activities of $43.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The cash provided during 2005 is
primarily attributable to proceeds of $71.9 million received from the sales of short-term investments offset by
purchases of $26.5 million in short-term investments. We made capital expenditures of $4.7 million during the year
ended December 31, 2005 primarily associated with our new ERP software package and leasehold improvements to
our new corporate headquarters. Additionally, we also purchased a patent license portfolio for $2.5 million. We expect
to make capital expenditures of approximately $9 to $11 million in 2006.

Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $2.8 million compared to cash
used in financing activities of $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. During the year ended
December 31, 2005, we received $1.0 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options under our 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan, $0.8 million in proceeds from the exercise of warrants, and $1.0 million in proceeds from the sale of
stock under our 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Effective July 1, 2004, we entered into a credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, or Wells
Fargo, which allows us to borrow up to $30.0 million under a revolving line of credit that expires July 1, 2006.
Amounts loaned under the credit agreement bear interest at our option at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the
Prime Rate in effect from time to time, or at a fixed rate per annum determined by Wells Fargo to be 0.65% above
LIBOR in effect on the first day of the applicable fixed rate term. In connection with the credit agreement, to the
extent we have outstanding borrowings, we have granted Wells Fargo a security interest in our investment
management account maintained with Wells Capital Management Incorporated. As of December 31, 2005, there was
no balance outstanding under this line of credit. The credit agreement limits any new borrowings, loans or advances
outside of the credit agreement to an amount less than $1.0 million.

Our Japanese subsidiary previously had two lines of credit with Tokyo Mitsubishi Bank and one line of credit with
National Life Finance Corporation in Japan secured by its inventories. As of November 2004, all of the lines of credit
relating to our Japanese subsidiary described above were repaid and closed. We intend to fund our Japanese operations
from cash on hand and working capital.

We presently expect cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and cash generated from operations to be
sufficient to meet our operating and capital requirements for at least the next twelve months and to enable us to pursue
acquisitions or significant capital improvements. The actual amount and timing of working capital and capital
expenditures that we may incur in future periods may vary significantly and will depend upon numerous factors,
including the amount and timing of the receipt of revenues from continued operations, our ability to manage our
relationships with third party manufacturers, the status of our relationships with key customers, partners and suppliers,
the timing and extent of the introduction of new products and services and growth in personnel and operations.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2005 (in thousands).

Payments Due by Period
Less More
Than Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating Lease Obligations $8,541 $ 1477 $ 2462 $ 2,100 $ 2,502
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other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we did not engage in trading activities involving
non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we are not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that
could arise if we had engaged in such relationships. We do not have relationships and transactions with persons and
entities that derive benefits from their non-independent relationship with us or our related parties except as disclosed
herein.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As of December 31, 2005, we account for stock-based compensation awards using the intrinsic value measurement
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. Accordingly, we record no
compensation expense for stock options granted with exercise prices greater than or equal to the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the date of grant. On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or
FASB, issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS No. 123(R), and in March 2005, the
SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment, or SAB No. 107, relating to the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R). SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the alternative of applying the intrinsic value measurement provisions
of APB Opinion No. 25 to stock compensation awards. Rather, SFAS No. 123(R) requires enterprises to measure the
cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the award at the
date of grant.

We will adopt SFAS 123(R) effective January 1, 2006, using the Modified Prospective Application Method.
Under this method, SFAS 123(R) is applied to new awards and to awards modified, repurchased, or cancelled after the
effective date. Additionally, compensation cost for the portion of awards for which the requisite service has not been
rendered (such as unvested options) that are outstanding as of the date of adoption shall be recognized as the
remaining requisite services are rendered. The compensation cost relating to unvested awards at the date of adoption
shall be based on the fair value at the date of grant of those awards as calculated for pro forma disclosures under the
original SFAS 123 as adjusted for estimated forfeitures.

We expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will impact our financial results in the future, as it is expected to
significantly reduce our net income as we have not had significant stock-based compensation expense in the recent
past. As of December 31, 2005, we had unamortized stock-based compensation expense of $4.8 million, of which,
$1.8 million is expected to be expensed in 2006. However, this amount does not reflect the expense associated with
equity awards that are expected to be granted to employees in 2006. Management is currently reviewing its
alternatives for granting equity based awards and, while we expect to continue granting equity based awards to our
employees, the type and amount of award is still under consideration. Accordingly, the overall effect of adopting this
new standard on the financial results for 2006 has not yet been quantified.

The pro forma effects on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions
of original SFAS No. 123 on stock compensation awards (rather than applying the intrinsic value measurement
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25) are disclosed elsewhere in this filing. Although such pro forma effects of applying
the original SFAS No. 123 may be indicative of the effects of adopting SFAS No. 123(R), the provisions of these two
statements differ in important respects. The actual effects of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) will be dependent on
numerous factors including, but not limited to, the valuation model chosen by us to value stock-based awards, the
assumed award forfeiture rate, the accounting policies adopted concerning the method of recognizing the fair value of
awards over the requisite service period, and the transition method chosen for adopting SFAS No. 123(R).

On November 24, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, and Amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4, to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted
material. This Statement is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We
have not completed the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption of Statement 151 will have on our financial
position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, which eliminates the
exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for
exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. SFAS No. 153 will be
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effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not
believe the adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have material impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

In March 2005, the FASB issued interpretation number 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations an interpretation of FASB SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligation ~ which refers to a
legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset
retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and/or method of settlement. Thus,
the timing and/or method of settlement may be conditional on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is required to be
reasonably estimated. The fair value of a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized
when incurred  generally upon acquisition, construction, or development and/or through the normal operation of the
asset. Uncertainty about the timing and/or method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation should be
factored into the measurement of the liability when sufficient information exists. SFAS No. 143 acknowledges that in
some cases, sufficient information may not be available to reasonably estimate the fair value of asset retirement
obligation. There was no effect of adoption of the statement on our results of operations or financial condition.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SAFS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which requires
retrospective application to prior periods financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle and that a
change in method of depreciation, amortization, or depletion for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate that is effected by a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for
accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In June 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 143-1, Accounting for Electronic Equipment Waste Obligations,
or FSP 143-1, which provides guidance on the accounting for obligations associated with the Directive on Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment, or the WEEE Directive, which was adopted by the European Union. FSP 143-1
provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the WEEE Directive with respect to historical waste and waste
associated with products on the market on or before August 13, 2005. FSP 143-1 requires commercial users to account
for their WEEE obligation as an asset retirement liability in accordance with FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations. FSP 143-1 was required to be applied to the later of the first reporting period ending
after June 8, 2005 or the date of the adoption of the WEEE Directive into law by the applicable European Union
member country. The WEEE Directive has been adopted into law by the majority of European Union member
countries in which the Company has significant operations. The Company adopted the provisions of FSP 143-1 as it
relates to these countries with no material impact on its financial statements. The Company will apply the guidance of
FSP 143-1 as it relates to the remaining European Union member countries in which it operates when those countries
have adopted the WEEE Directive into law. The effect of applying FSP 143-1 in the remaining countries in future
periods is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 115-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, or FSP No. 115-1. FSP No. 115-1 provides accounting
guidance for identifying and recognizing other-than-temporary impairments of debt and equity securities, as well as
cost method investments in addition to disclosure requirements. FSP No. 115-1 is effective for periods beginning in
2006. We do not believe adoption of FSP No. 115-1 will have a material effect on our results of operations or
financial condition.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Our exposure to market rate risk for changes in interest rates relates to our investment portfolio. Our primary
investment strategy is to preserve the principal amounts invested, maximize investment yields and maintain liquidity

to meet projected cash requirements. Accordingly, we invest in instruments such as money
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market funds, certificates of deposit, U.S. Government/ Agencies bonds, notes, bills and municipal bonds that meet
high credit quality standards, as specified in our investment policy guidelines. Our investment policy also limits the
amount of credit exposure to any one issue, issuer and type of instrument. We do not currently use derivative financial
instruments in our investment portfolio and we do not enter into market risk sensitive instruments for trading
purposes. We currently do not hedge against interest rate exposure. Due to the short duration of our investment
portfolio, a hypothetical, reasonably possible, near-term change of 100 basis points in interest rates along the entire
interest rate yield curve would not materially impact the fair values of our interest-sensitive financial instruments.
Declines in interest rates over time will, however, reduce our interest income, while increases in interest rates over
time will increase our interest expense. Due to the nature of our short-term investments, we believe that we are not
subject to any material market risk exposure.

The following table provides information about our investment portfolio at December 31, 2004 and 2005. For
investment securities, the table presents related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates and
carrying values (in thousands) at December 31.

2004 2005
Cash equivalents $ 43,438 $ 99,899
Average interest rate 2.3% 4.3%
Short-term investments $ 58,690 $ 13,431
Average interest rate 2.2% 3.2%
Total portfolio $ 102,128 $ 113,330
Average interest rate 2.2% 4.2%

We have a line of credit agreement, which accrues interest at a variable rate. As of December 31, 2005, we had no
balance under this line. If we incur a balance under this line, we will be exposed to interest rate risk on such debt.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

A portion of our international business is presently conducted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses arising from normal business operations are credited to or charged against
earnings in the period incurred. As a result, fluctuations in the value of the currencies in which we conduct our
business relative to the U.S. dollar will cause currency transaction gains and losses, which we have experienced in the
past and continue to experience. Due to the substantial volatility of currency exchange rates, among other factors, we
cannot predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon future operating results. There can be no assurances that
we will not experience currency losses in the future. We have not undertaken hedging transactions to cover currency
exposure and we do not intend to engage in hedging activities in the future.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from the financial statements beginning on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Rule 13a-15(e)) as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, have concluded that as of the end of such period, our disclosure
controls and procedures are adequate and sufficient to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time period specified in the SEC s rules and forms.
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During the three months ended December 31, 2005, we improved our internal controls related to accounting and
financial reporting, fixed assets and inventory. Specifically, we hired two certified public accountants with relevant
experience to lead the finance department and communicated to accounting personnel formal policies and procedures.
Our fixed asset internal control improvements during the fourth quarter consisted of a physical observation of
substantially all of our fixed assets, improvements in our policies and procedures surrounding asset identification,
asset tracking, and the procurement of fixed assets. Improvements in inventory internal controls were attributed to the
hiring of a cost accountant with relevant experience and improvements in policies and procedures related to inventory
costing, valuation and recording.

Dot Hill Systems Corp. s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.
Our internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company s management and board of
directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal control
systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

An internal control material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in a more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis by employees in the normal course of their work. A control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the company s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report
external financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more
than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the company s annual or interim financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on
the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that the company s internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005. Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited this assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting; their report is included herein.

In order to address the material weaknesses previously identified by management s assessment of the effectiveness
of the company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, management completed the
following corrective measures which it believes have remediated the material weaknesses.

In 2004, a material weakness was identified related to entity-level controls resulting from (i) an inadequate number
of accounting and finance personnel with sufficient technical expertise in the area of U.S. GAAP and financial
reporting at both our corporate headquarters and foreign subsidiaries, (ii) failure to document with sufficient support
the prior application of our accounting policies, practices and procedures, and (iii) lack of effective deterrent controls
and detective controls to properly apply U.S. GAAP to our financial reporting process. We have strengthened our
accounting and financial reporting function by adding two certified public accountants with recent relevant
experience, one of which is a senior management position. At our subsidiaries, we have hired a senior finance director
for our subsidiary in Japan and added additional accounting resources to our subsidiary in the Netherlands. We have
also hired additional staff in various areas of the company including, but not limited to, general accounting, order
entry and materials management. The addition of these individuals has allowed us to perform and review the
necessary internal control activities pertaining to our financial close and reporting process on a timely basis.
Additionally, accounting policies and procedures were formally documented and communicated.

In 2004, a material weakness was identified related to internal controls over fixed assets resulting from
(i) inadequate documentation within our fixed asset accounting system to assist in the identification and location of
certain fixed assets, (ii) failure to apply identification tags to fixed assets located outside of our corporate headquarters
and, (iii) failure to document with sufficient support the prior application of our accounting policies, practices and
procedures pertaining to the classification of certain expenditures as fixed
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assets. We have improved our controls over the processing of fixed assets. Such improvements consist of revised
documentation and additional review of the authorization and accounting treatment related to the acquisition of fixed
assets. We have also improved our ability to better identify and track our fixed assets by implementing controls over
self constructed assets and we have assigned asset identification tags to all of our assets located outside of our
corporate headquarters. Additionally, we performed a physical count of substantially all of our fixed assets during the
second half of 2005.

In 2004, a material weakness was identified related to internal controls over inventory resulting from inadequate
understanding and documentation of a reconciling item between our general ledger and perpetual inventory listing, the
use of our general ledger to process customer support transactions that should not impact our financial statements and
limitations present in our historical enterprise resource planning software requiring a significant number of manual
processing steps. Improvements in inventory internal controls were attributed to the hiring of a cost accountant with
relevant experience and improvements in policies and procedures related to inventory costing, valuation and
recording.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Dot Hill Systems Corp.

We have audited management s assessment, included in the accompanying Dot Hill Systems Corp. Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries (the Company ) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal
Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
The Company s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2005 of the Company and our report dated March 15, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and the financial statement schedule.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Diego, California
March 15, 2006
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Some of the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be

filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14 A in connection with our 2006 annual meeting under the headings

Election of Directors and Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance. Other information required by
this item is incorporated by reference to Item 1 of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading

Executive Officers of the Registrant at December 31, 2005.

The company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. This code of ethics is incorporated
in our code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our officers, directors and employees. A copy of our
code of business conduct and ethics is available on our web site at www.dothill.com. We intend to satisfy the SEC s
disclosure requirements regarding amendments to, or waivers of, the code of business conduct and ethics by posting
such information on our web site. A paper copy of our code of business conduct and ethics may be obtained free of
charge by writing to the company care of its Investor Relations Department at our principal executive office.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed

with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2006 annual meeting under the heading
Compensation of Executive Officers.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information under the heading Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in our
Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2006 annual
meeting is incorporated herein by this reference.

The following table sets forth our equity securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2005.

Number of Securities

to Weighted Average
be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Numbc.elz of
Securities
Exercise of Outstanding Remaining
Outstanding Options Available
Stock Plan Options and Rights and Rights for Future
Issuance
2000 Equity Incentive
Plan(1) 4,505,894 $ 6.47 980,262
Employee Stock Purchase
Plan(2) Not Applicable Not Applicable 1,900,608
2000 Non-Employee
Directors Stock Option Plan 324,917 $ 7.24 102,499
Total 4,830,811 $ 6.52 2,983,369

(1) The 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan provides for an annual increase to the share reserve, to be
added on the date of each annual stockholder s meeting, equal to the lesser of (i) 1 million shares; (ii) 2% of our
outstanding shares on such date, calculated on a fully diluted basis and assuming the conversion of all
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outstanding convertible securities and the exercise of all outstanding options and warrants; or (iii) an amount to
be determined by our board of directors.

(2) The Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides for an annual increase to the share reserve, to be added on the date
of each annual stockholders meeting, equal to the lesser of: (i) 100,000 shares; or (ii) an amount to be determined
by our board of directors.

All of our equity compensation plans have been approved by our stockholders.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed
with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2006 annual meeting under the heading Certain
Transactions.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed
with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2006 annual meeting under the heading Ratification
of Selection of Independent Auditors.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial statements:

The consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, and the consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income, stockholders equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and
2005, together with notes thereto.

(2) Financial statement schedules required to be filed by Item 8 and Item 15(b) of this Form:

Schedule II  Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.

All other schedules have been omitted from this annual report because they are not applicable or because the
information required by any applicable schedule is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes
thereto.

(3) Exhibits:
Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 23, 2004, by and among Dot Hill
Systems Corp., DHSA Corp., Chaparral Network Storage, Inc., and C. Timothy Smoot, as
Stockholders Representative.(1)

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(2)

3.2 By-laws of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(2)

4.1 Certificate of Incorporation Dot Hill Systems Corp.(2)

4.2 By-laws of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(2)

4.3 Form of Common Stock Certificate.(3)

4.4 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, as filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on May 19, 2003.(4)

4.5 Form of Rights Certificate.(4)

4.6 Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock dated May 24, 2002.(5)

4.7 Common Stock Warrant dated December 19, 2002.(5)

4.8 Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock dated February 14, 2003.(5)

4.9 Common Stock Warrant dated March 14, 2003.(5)

10.1 Product Purchase Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Sun Microsystems, Inc.
dated May 24, 2002.(6)
10.2 Product Supplement/ Award Letter for Blade Product under agreement with Sun

Microsystems, Inc. dated May 24, 2002.(6)
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Exhibit

Number

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13
10.14

10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25

10.26
10.27

Table of Contents
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Description

Product Supplement/ Award Letter for SCSI Product under agreement with Sun
Microsystems, Inc. dated May 24, 2002.(6)

Product Supplement/ Award Letter for FC Product under agreement with Sun Microsystems,
Inc. dated May 24, 2002.(6)

Second Amendment to Product Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 26, 2004 by and
among Sun Microsystems, Inc., Sun Microsystems International B.V., Dot Hill Systems
Corp. and Dot Hill Systems B.V.(15)

Third Amendment to Product Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2004, by and
among Sun Microsystems, Inc., Sun Microsystems International B.V., Dot Hill Systems
Corp. and Dot Hill Systems B.V.(15)

Product Supplement/ Award Letter (SATA) by and between Sun Microsystems, Inc. and Dot
Hill Systems Corp. dated as of March 22, 2004.(15)

Rights Agreement dated as of May 19, 2003 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company.(4)

Employment letter agreement dated August 2, 1999 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
James L. Lambert.(7)

Employment letter agreement dated August 2, 1999 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Dana W Kammersgard.(7)

Employment offer letter dated November 12, 1999 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Preston Romm.(7)

Lease for Dot Hill Systems Corp. s headquarters in Carlsbad, California dated June 9,
1993.(5)

2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.(8)

Form of Stock Option Agreement (Incentive and Non-statutory Stock Options) used in
connection with the 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.(8)

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice used in connection with the 2000 Amended and Restated
Equity Incentive Plan.(8)

2000 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(9)

2000 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan.(10)

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2000 Non-Employee Directors
Stock Option Plan.(10)

Credit Agreement dated July 1, 2004 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association.(11)

Revolving Line of Credit Note dated July 1, 2004 issued by Dot Hill Systems Corp. to Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association.(11)

Security Agreement and Addendum dated July 1, 2004 by and between Dot Hill Systems
Corp. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.(11)

Manufacturing Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Solectron Corporation dated
May 20, 2002.(12)

OEM Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Infortrend Technology, Inc. dated
May 20, 2002.(12)

2005 Executive Compensation Plan for James L. Lambert effective January 1, 2005.(13)
2005 Executive Compensation Plan for Dana Kammersgard effective January 1, 2005.(13)
2005 Executive Compensation Plan for Preston Romm effective January 1, 2005.(13)

66



10.28

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Change of Control Agreement dated August 23, 2001 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and

James L. Lambert.(14)
Change of Control Agreement dated August 23, 2001 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and

Dana Kammersgard.(14)
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Number

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34
10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42
10.43
10.44

10.45
10.46
10.47
21.1
23.1
24.1
31.1

31.2
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Description

Change of Control Agreement dated August 23, 2001 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Preston Romm.(14)

Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 11, 2003 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
each of the purchasers listed on the signature pages thereto.(5)

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 11, 2003 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
each of the purchasers listed on the signature pages thereto.(5)

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 4, 2003 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
each of the individuals listed on the signature pages thereto.(5)

Amendment to Manufacturing Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Solectron
Corporation dated April 5, 2005.(16)

Description of Amended and Restated Policy for Director Compensation.(17)

Lease Agreement by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Equastone 2200 Faraday, LL.C
effective as of September 1, 2005 and dated as of September 16, 2005.(18)

Fourth Amendment to Product Purchase Agreement dated September 26, 2005 by and among
Sun Microsystems, Inc., Sun Microsystems International B.V., Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Dot Hill Systems B.V.(19)

Product Supplement/ Award Letter dated September 27, 2005 by and among Sun
Microsystems, Inc., Sun Microsystems International B.V., Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Dot
Hill Systems B.V.(19)

Second Amendment to Manufacturing Agreement dated September 16, 2005 between Dot
Hill Systems Corp. and Solectron Corporation.(19)

Second Award Letter dated September 16, 2005 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Solectron Corporation.(19)

Development and OEM Supply Agreement dated July 26, 2005 by and among Dot Hill
Systems Corp., Dot Hill Systems B.V., Network Appliance, Inc. and Network Appliance
B.V.(19)

Product Supplement/ Award Letter dated October 20, 2005 by and among Sun Microsystems,
Inc., Sun Microsystems International B.V., Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Dot Hill Systems
B.V.*

Description of Accelerated Vesting of Options.(20)

Form of Indemnity Agreement.(21)

Patent Cross License dated December 29, 2005 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
International Business Machines Corporation.*

Offer letter agreement dated February 22, 2006 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Patrick
Collins.(22)

Consulting letter agreement effective March 1, 2006 and dated March 2, 2006 between Dot
Hill Systems Corp. and James L. Lambert.(23)

Description of 2006 Executive Compensation Plan.(23)

Subsidiaries of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(5)

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page hereto.

Certification pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Indicates management or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be identified pursuant to Item 15(b).
* Confidential treatment has been requested from the SEC.
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Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 24, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 19, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 14, 2003 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 19, 2003 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 23, 2000 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated
herein by reference

Filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-43834) and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 9, 2005 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Incorporated herein by reference to the description contained in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on July 29, 2005.
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21

(22)
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Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 21, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Incorporated herein by reference to the description contained in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 7, 2005.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 13, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 24, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 8, 2006 and incorporated
herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Dot Hill Systems
Corp. has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
(Registrant)
By: /s/ Dana W. Kammersgard

Dana W. Kammersgard
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 16, 2006

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Dana W. Kammersgard and Preston Romm, and each of them, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and
agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place, and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other

documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said

attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or
could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their
or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Registration Statement has
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of Dot Hill Systems, Corp and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.

Name

/s/ Dana W. Kammersgard

Title

Chief Executive Officer, President and

Dana W. Kammersgard

/s/ Preston Romm

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and

Preston Romm

Treasurer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/s/ Charles Christ Chairman of the Board of Directors
Charles Christ

/s/ Kimberly Alexy Director

Kimberly Alexy

/s/ Joseph D. Markee Director

Joseph D. Markee

/s/ W.R. Sauey Director
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Date

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006

March 16, 2006
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W.R. Sauey
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Dot Hill Systems Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries (the

Company ) as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive

income, stockholders equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Items 15(a)(2). These financial statements
and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005,
based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 15, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on
management s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting and an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Diego, California
March 15, 2006
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2005
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2004
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 67,496
Short-term investments 58,690
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $491 and $294 40,788
Inventories 3,671
Prepaid expenses and other 2,273
Deferred tax assets
Total current assets 172,918
Property and equipment, net 7,859
Goodwill 57,111
Other intangible assets, net 7,712
Deferred tax assets
Other Assets 967
Total assets $ 246,567

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 40,512
Accrued compensation 3,338
Accrued expenses 3,309
Deferred revenue 779
Income taxes payable 532
Other liabilities 923
Current portion of restructuring accrual 141

Total current liabilities 49,534
Restructuring accrual, net of current portion 37
Other long-term liabilities 169

Total liabilities 49,740

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 17)

Stockholders Equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 10,000 shares authorized, no shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005,
respectively

Table of Contents

$

$

$

2005

108,803
13,431
34,312

2,804
4,539
5,762

169,651
7,891
40,725
7,414
41,379
234

267,294

25,732
3,561
3,633
1,327

60

45
34,358
885

35,243
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Common stock, $.001 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 43,656 and
44,417 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and

December 31, 2005, respectively 44 44
Additional paid-in capital 277,102 285,377
Deferred compensation (®)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (462) (118)
Accumulated deficit (79,849) (53,252)
Total stockholders equity 196,827 232,051
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 246,567 $ 267,294
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-2
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2004 AND 2005

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

NET REVENUE
COST OF GOODS SOLD

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Sales and marketing

Research and development

General and administrative

In process research and development
Restructuring expenses

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income, net

Total other income, net

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)

NET INCOME
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS:

Net income

Dividends on preferred stock

Net income attributable to common stockholders

NET INCOME PER SHARE:
Basic

Diluted

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES USED TO CALCULATE
NET INCOME PER SHARE:

Table of Contents

2003

$ 187,448
142,550

44,898
14,086

11,950
7,418

33,454
11,444
716

(105)
164

775

$ 12,219
88

$ 12,131

$ 12,131
(141)

$ 11,990

$ 0.35

$ 0.31

2004

$ 239,376
179,875

59,501
16,839
17,993
9,992
4,700
(434)
49,090
10,411
1,766
(341)
33
1,458

$ 11,869
272

$ 11,597

$ 11,597

$ 11,597

$ 0.27

$ 0.25

2005

$ 233,799
180,196

53,603
19,120

23,628
12,933

55,681

(2,078)

3,394
84
3,478

$ 1,400
(25,197)

$ 26,597

$ 26,597

$ 26,597

$ 0.61

$ 0.58
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Diluted
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Net unrealized gain (loss) on short-term investments

Comprehensive income

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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33,856
38,164
12,131

30

25

12,186

43,460

46,395

11,597
(45)
(154)

11,398

43,903
45,639
26,597
255

89

26,941
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2004 AND 2005

(In thousands)
Accumulated
Preferred Common ...
Stock Stock Additional Other Total
Paid-In  Deferre€omprehensivaccumulated Stockholders
ShareAmountShares Amount Capital Compensation Loss Deficit Equity
Balance,
January 1, 2003 6 $ 25,172 $ 25 $ 109,562 $ (48) $ (318) $ (103.436) $ 5,785

Conversion of

preferred stock to

common stock (6) 1,846 2 2)
Issuance of

common stock and

stock warrant, net

of issuance costs 14,654 15 161,268 161,283
Amortization of

deferred

compensation 20 20
Dividends on

preferred stock (141) (141)

Exercise of stock

options and

warrants 1,111 1 4,240 4,241
Sale of common

stock under

employee stock

purchase plan 524 759 759
Foreign currency

translation

adjustment 30 30

Net unrealized gain
on short- term

investments 25 25
Net income 12,131 12,131
Balance,

December 31,

2003 43,307 43 275,827 (28) (263) (91,446) 184,133
Amortization of

deferred

compensation 20 20

Exercise of stock
options and
warrants 349 1 1,275 1,276
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Foreign currency
translation
adjustment

Net unrealized loss
on short- term
investments

Net income

Balance,
December 31,
2004
Amortization of
deferred
compensation
Exercise of stock
options and
warrants

Sale of common
stock under ESPP
Tax benefit for
disqualifying
dispositions of
stock options
Foreign currency
translation
adjustment

Net unrealized gain
on short- term
investments

Net income

Balance,
December 31,
2005
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43,656

561

200

$ 44,417

44 277,102

1,780

1,040

5,455

$ 44 §$ 285,377

$

®)

$

(45) (45)
(154) (154)
11,597 11,597

(462) (79,849) 196,827

1,780

1,040

5,455

255 255

89 89
26,597 26,597

(118) $ (53,252) $ 232,051

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2004 AND 2005
(In thousands)

2003 2004

Cash Flows Related to Operating Activities:

Net income $ 12,131 $ 11,597
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,045 5,657
Write-off of in-process research and development 4,700
Non-cash settlement of restructuring charges (434)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 42
Provision for doubtful accounts (284) 176
Deferred taxes, including reversal of valuation allowance
Other 76 8
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (net of effects of
acquisition):
Accounts receivable (7,970) (24,637)
Inventories 3,801 442
Prepaid expenses and other assets (940) 277
Accounts payable 10,087 14,653
Accrued compensation and other expenses 3,159 25
Deferred revenue (82) (527)
Income taxes payable (15) 473)
Restructuring accrual (662) (312)
Other liabilities (24) 107
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,364 11,259
Cash Flows Related to Investing Activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (3,460) (4,949)
Proceeds from sales of equipment 14 38
Sales of short-term investments 5,356 111,933
Purchases of short-term investments (91,069) (85,083)
Cash paid in Chaparral acquisition, net of cash acquired (65,383)
Purchase of patent license portfolio
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (89,159) (43,444)
Cash Flows Related to Financing Activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants 4,241 1,276
Proceeds from sale of stock to employees 759
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 45,189 13,662
Payments on bank and other borrowings (49,769) (21,075)
Decrease in restricted cash 2,000
161,283
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Proceeds from common stock and warrants, net of issuance

costs

Dividends paid to preferred stockholders (157)
Net cash provided (by used) in financing activities 163,546 (6,137)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 30 (45)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 95,781 (38,367)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 10,082 105,863
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 105,863 $ 67,496
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Construction in progress costs incurred but not paid $ $

Deferred tax asset for stock-based compensation credited to

equity $ $

Reduction of goodwill resulting from the recognition of

deferred tax assets $ $

Conversion of preferred stock to common stock $ 2 $

Cash paid for interest $ 91 $ 1,213

Cash paid for income taxes $ 99 $ 724

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

1. Background and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Background

Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries ( we, our or us )isa provider of enterprise storage for organizations
requiring high reliability, high performance networked storage and data management solutions in an open systems
architecture.

Historically, we relied mainly on direct sales to customers in an array of markets, including the government and
telecommunications. Beginning in 2001, we shifted our sales and marketing efforts away from direct sales toward
indirect sales through channel partners. These channel partners either incorporate our products into their own,
private-label products or sell our products off the shelf. During 2002, we began outsourcing the manufacturing of our
next-generation family of disk systems SANnet II. Our headquarters is located in Carlsbad, California and we also we
also have sales offices in the United States, Germany, Japan, the Netherlands, Singapore and the United Kingdom.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months
or less. Cash equivalents consist principally of money market funds, commercial paper and repurchase agreements.

Short-term Investments

We account for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 115,
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Our short-term investments have been categorized
as available for sale, including market auction rate securities. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
securities are included as a separate component of stockholders equity.

Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts receivable represents management s estimate of losses on the accounts
receivable balance. The estimate for accounts receivable is based on estimated losses for specific accounts and an
amount calculated using a percentage based on historical write-offs and recoveries.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are comprised of purchased parts and assemblies, which include direct labor and overhead, and are
valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market value. We perform periodic valuation assessments based on
projected sales forecasts and analyzing upcoming changes in future configurations of our products and record
inventory reserves for excess and obsolete inventory. Excess and obsolete reserves are not reversed until the products
are sold or disposed of. We use certain of our inventory items internally and also provide select customers with the use
of certain inventory items on a temporary test basis. The carrying value of these items is reduced to market through a
monthly charge to expense until they are returned to inventory, which is generally within twelve months.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the lesser of the remaining term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset. Significant
improvements are capitalized and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Deferred Compensation

Deferred compensation represents the unearned value of a common stock bonus given to an employee. In
accordance with Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, we recorded deferred compensation for the
value of the common stock at the date of issuance and are amortizing the balance over the vesting period of the award,
which is three years.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We are required to estimate the fair value of all financial instruments included on our balance sheets. We believe
the carrying value of our financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable to approximate their fair value due to the relatively short period of time between
origination of the instruments and their expected realization.

Valuation of Goodwill

We review goodwill for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 require that a two-step impairment test be performed on goodwill. In the first
step, we compare the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. Our reporting units are consistent with the
operating and reportable segments identified in the notes to our consolidated financial statements. We determine the
fair value of our reporting units using the income approach. Under the income approach, we calculate the fair value of
a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. If the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that unit, goodwill is not impaired and we are not required to
perform further testing. If the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of
the reporting unit, then we must perform the second step in order to determine the implied fair value of the reporting
unit s goodwill and compare it to the carrying value of the reporting unit s goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting
unit s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then we must record an impairment loss equal to the difference.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Long-Lived Assets

We account for the impairment and disposition of long-lived assets which consist primarily of intangible assets
with finite lives and property and equipment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. We periodically review the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of these assets is determined by analysis of the assets fair value by comparing the forecasted future
undiscounted net cash flows from operations to which the assets relate, based on our best estimates using the
appropriate assumptions and projections at the time, to the carrying amount of the assets. If the carrying value is
determined not to be recoverable from future operating cash flows, the assets are deemed impaired and an impairment
loss is recognized equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the assets.
We did not record any impairment in 2003, 2004 or 2005. Based on our most recent analysis, we believe that no
additional impairment exists at December 31, 2005.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized pursuant to applicable accounting standards, including Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition and Statement of Position No. 97-2, Software
Revenue Recognition, or SOP 97-2.

We recognize revenue for non-software product sales upon transfer of title to the customer. Reductions to revenue
for estimated sales returns are also recorded at that time. These estimates are based on historical sales returns, changes
in customer demand and other factors. If actual future returns and allowances differ from past experience, additional
allowances may be required. Certain of our sales arrangements include multiple elements. Generally, these
arrangements include delivery of the product, installation, training and product maintenance. Maintenance related to
product sales entitles the customer to basic product support and significantly greater response time in resolving
warranty related issues. We allocate revenue to each element of the arrangement based on its relative fair value. For
maintenance contracts this is typically the price charged when such contracts are sold separately or renewed. Because
professional services related to installation and training can be provided by other third party organizations, we allocate
revenue related to professional services based on rates that are consistent with other like companies providing similar
services, i.e., the market rate for such services. Revenue from product maintenance contracts is deferred and
recognized ratably over the contract term, generally twelve months. Revenue from installation, training and consulting
is recognized as the services are performed.

For software sales, we apply SOP 97-2, whereby revenue is recognized from software licenses at the time the
product is delivered, provided we have no significant obligations related to the sale, the resulting receivable is deemed
collectible and there is vendor-specific objective evidence supporting the value of the separate contract elements. For
arrangements with multiple elements, we allocate revenue to each element using the residual method based on vendor
specific objective evidence of the undelivered items. A portion of the arrangement fee equal to the fair value of the
undelivered elements, typically software maintenance contracts, is deferred and recognized ratably over the contract
term, generally twelve months. Vendor specific objective evidence is based on the price charged when the element is
sold separately. A typical arrangement includes a software licensing fee and maintenance agreement.

The cost of maintenance contracts entered into with third parties is deferred and recognized as expense over the
contract term. At December 31, 2004 and 2005, the balance of deferred costs for maintenance contracts was
$0.1 million and less than $0.1 million, respectively and is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Product Warranties

We generally extend to our customers the warranties provided to us by our suppliers and, accordingly, the majority
of our warranty obligations to customers are covered by supplier warranties. For warranty costs not covered by our
suppliers, we provide for estimated warranty costs in the period the revenue is recognized. There can be no assurance
that our suppliers will continue to provide such warranties to us in the future, which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results and financial condition. Our warranty cost activity for the years ended December 31 is
as follows (in thousands):

Balance at Deductions
for
Beginning Charged Deductions . Balance at
of to for Change in End of
Accrued Warranty Costs Year Operations Costs Estimates Year
Incurred

2003 $ 336 $ 876 $ (876) $ (74) $ 262
2004 $ 262 $ 1,703 $ (861) $ $ 1,104
2005 $ 1,104 $ 2,445 $  (2,803) $ $ 746

Adpvertising Costs

We expense advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, advertising
expenses were $0.3 million, $0.8 million, and $1.2 million, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. In conjunction with the development of our products,
we incur certain software development costs. No costs have been capitalized pursuant to SFAS No. 86, Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed, because the period between achieving
technological feasibility and completion of such software is relatively short and software development costs
qualifying for capitalization have been insignificant.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have two stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 14. SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, encourages, but does not require us to record compensation cost for
stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value. We have chosen to continue to account for stock-based
compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations for all periods presented. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is
measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of our stock at the date of grant over the amount an employee must
pay to acquire the stock.

On December 1, 2005, we accelerated vesting of certain unvested and out-of-the-money stock options with
exercise prices equal to or greater than $6.74 per share that were previously awarded under our equity compensation
plans to our employees. These options were accelerated to avoid recording future compensation expense with respect
to such options following adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). Our management believes that because such options had
exercise prices in excess of the current market value of our stock, the options were not achieving their original
objective. The acceleration of vesting was effective for stock options outstanding as of December 1, 2005. Options to
purchase 0.6 million shares of common stock were subject to the acceleration and the weighted average exercise price
of the options subject to the acceleration was $11.71. Due to this acceleration, an additional $2.8 million representing
the unrecognized compensation cost at the modification date is included in the pro forma stock-based compensation
expense for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Had compensation cost for our stock option awards been determined based upon the fair value at the date of grant,
in accordance with SFAS No. 123, our net income and basic and diluted net income per share would have been
adjusted to the following amounts for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2003 2004 2005
Net income attributable to common stockholders as reported $ 11,990 $ 11,597 $ 26,597
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported
net income attributable to common stockholders 20 20 8
Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards (7,047) (4,553) (6,374)
Pro forma net income attributable to common stockholders $ 4,963 $ 7,064 $ 20,231
Basic net income per share:
As reported $ 0.35 $ 0.27 $ 0.61
Pro forma $ 0.15 $ 0.16 $ 0.46
Diluted net income per share:
As reported $ 0.31 $ 0.25 $ 058
Pro forma $ 0.13 $ 0.15 $ 044

We account for stock options granted to non-employees using the fair value method. Compensation expense for
options granted to non-employees has been determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and Emerging Issues Task
Force, or EITF, No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for
Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services, as the fair value of the consideration received or the fair
value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably measured. Compensation expense for options
granted to non-employees is periodically recalculated as the underlying options vest and is recorded as expense and
deferred compensation in the financial statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

A portion of our international business is presently conducted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses arising from normal business operations are included in current period earnings.
As a result, fluctuations in the value of the currencies in which we conduct our business relative to the U.S. dollar, will
cause currency transaction gains and losses, which we have experienced in the past and continue to experience. Due to
the substantial volatility of currency exchange rates, among other factors, we cannot predict the effect of exchange
rate fluctuations upon future operating results. We have not previously undertaken hedging transactions to cover
currency exposure and do not intend to engage in hedging activities in the future.

The functional currency of each of our foreign subsidiaries is the local currency and accordingly, assets and
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates; revenues and expenses, and gains and losses are
translated at rates of exchange that approximate the rates in effect on the transaction date. Resulting translation gains
and losses are recognized as a component of other comprehensive income.

Income Taxes

We record deferred income taxes to reflect temporary differences between the reporting of income for financial
statement and tax reporting purposes. Measurement of the deferred income tax items is based on enacted tax laws and
rates. In the event the future consequences of differences between financial reporting bases and tax bases of our assets
and liabilities result in a deferred income tax asset, an evaluation is performed to determine the probability we will be
able to realize the future benefits of such asset. A valuation allowance
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
related to a deferred income tax asset is recorded when it is considered more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred income tax asset will not be realized.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net income or net income attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution of securities by including common stock equivalents,
such as stock options, stock warrants and convertible preferred stock, in the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for a period, if dilutive.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of the basic and diluted number of weighted average shares
outstanding used in the calculation of net income per share for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2003 2004 2005
Weighted average shares used to calculate basic net income per share 33,856 43,460 43,903
Dilutive effect of stock options and stock warrants 3,696 2,935 1,736
Dilutive effect of convertible preferred stock 612
Weighted average shares used to calculate diluted net income per
share 38,164 46,395 45,639

As of December 31, 2003, options to purchase 100,716 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from
$11.30 to $16.46 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net income per share
because their effect was antidilutive.

As of December 31, 2004, options to purchase 1,087,476 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging
from $9.81 to $17.14 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net income per
share because their effect was antidilutive.

As of December 31, 2005, options to purchase 2,578,763 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging
from $6.03 to $17.14 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net income per
share because their effect was antidilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company currently accounts for stock-based compensation awards using the intrinsic value measurement
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25. Accordingly, no compensation expense is recorded for stock options granted with
exercise prices greater than or equal to the fair value of the underlying common stock at the date of grant. In
December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R) and in March 2005, the SEC issued SAB No. 107, Share-Based
Payment, relating to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the alternative of applying the
intrinsic value measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 to stock compensation awards. Rather,

SFAS No. 123(R) requires enterprises to measure the cost of services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the fair value of the award at the date of grant. That cost will be recognized over the period
during which a person is required to provide services in exchange for the award, known as the requisite service period
(usually the vesting period).

The Company s management expects that the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will impact the Company s financial
results in the future, as it is expected to significantly reduce net income as the Company has not had significant
stock-based compensation expense in the recent past. The pro forma effects on net income and earnings per share if
the fair value recognition provisions of original SFAS No. 123 on stock compensation
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
awards (rather than applying the intrinsic value measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25) is presented in
Note 1. Although such pro forma effects of applying the original SFAS No. 123 may be indicative of the effects of
adopting SFAS No. 123(R), the provisions of these two statements differ in important respects. The actual effects of
adopting SFAS No. 123(R) will be dependent on numerous factors including, but not limited to, the valuation model
chosen by the Company to value stock-based awards; the assumed award forfeiture rate; the accounting policies
adopted concerning the method of recognizing the fair value of awards over the requisite service period; and the
transition method (as described below) chosen for adopting SFAS No. 123(R).

The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 using the Modified Prospective Application
Method. Under this method, SFAS No. 123(R) is applied to new awards and to awards modified, repurchased or
cancelled after the effective date. Additionally, compensation cost for the portion of awards for which the requisite
service has not been rendered (such as unvested options) that are outstanding as of the date of adoption will be
recognized as the remaining requisite services are rendered. The compensation cost relating to unvested awards at the
date of adoption shall be based on the fair value at the date of grant of those awards as calculated for pro forma
disclosures under the original SFAS No. 123.

On November 24, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, and Amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4, to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted
material. This Statement is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We
have not completed the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption of Statement 151 will have on our financial
position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, which eliminates the
exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for
exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. SFAS No. 153 will be effective for
nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not believe the
adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have material impact on our results of operations or financial condition.

In March 2005, the FASB issued interpretation number 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations an interpretation of FASB SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligation, which refers to a
legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset
retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and/or method of settlement. Thus,
the timing and/or method of settlement may be conditional on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is required to be
reasonably estimated. The fair value of a liability for the conditional asset retirement obligation should be recognized
when incurred  generally upon acquisition, construction, or development and/or through the normal operation of the
asset. Uncertainty about the timing and/or method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation should be
factored into the measurement of the liability when sufficient information exists. SFAS No. 143 acknowledges that in
some cases, sufficient information may not be available to reasonably estimate the fair value of asset retirement
obligation. There was no effect of adoption of the statement on our results of operations or financial condition.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which requires
retrospective application to prior periods financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle and that a
change in method of depreciation, amortization, or depletion for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate that is effected by a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for
accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In June 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 143-1, Accounting for Electronic Equipment Waste Obligations,
or FSP 143-1, which provides guidance on the accounting for obligations associated with the Directive on Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment, or the WEEE Directive, which was adopted by the European Union. FSP 143-1
provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the WEEE Directive with respect to historical waste and waste
associated with products on the market on or before August 13, 2005. FSP 143-1 requires commercial users to account
for their WEEE obligation as an asset retirement liability in accordance with FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations. FSP 143-1 was required to be applied to the later of the first reporting period ending
after June 8, 2005 or the date of the adoption of the WEEE Directive into law by the applicable European Union
member country. The WEEE Directive has been adopted into law by the majority of European Union member
countries in which the Company has significant operations. The Company adopted the provisions of FSP 143-1 as it
relates to these countries with no material impact on its financial statements. The Company will apply the guidance of
FSP 143-1 as it relates to the remaining European Union member countries in which it operates when those countries
have adopted the WEEE Directive into law. The effect of applying FSP 143-1 in the remaining countries in future
periods is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 115-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, or FSP No. 115-1. FSP No. 115-1 provides accounting
guidance for identifying and recognizing other-than-temporary impairments of debt and equity securities, as well as
cost method investments in addition to disclosure requirements. FSP No. 115-1 is effective for periods beginning in
2006. We do not believe adoption of FSP No. 115-1 will have a material effect on our results of operations or
financial condition.

2. Acquisition

In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, Dot Hill allocates the purchase price of its acquisitions
to the tangible assets, liabilities and intangible assets acquired, including in-process research and development
( IPR&D ), based on their estimated fair values. The excess purchase price over those fair values is recorded as
goodwill. The fair value assigned to intangible assets acquired is based on a number of factors including a valuation
prepared by an independent third party appraisal firm. Goodwill and purchased intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are not amortized but are reviewed annually for impairment. Purchased intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective useful lives.

On February 23, 2004, we completed the acquisition of Chaparral Network Storage, Inc., or Chaparral, a privately
held developer of specialized storage appliances as well as high-performance, mid-range RAID controllers and data
routers. The aggregate purchase price paid in cash was $62.0 million. In addition, we agreed to pay $4.1 million to
certain employees covered by change in control agreements as a result of the acquisition and we incurred direct
transaction costs of approximately $0.8 million and approximately $0.7 million in integration costs. The acquisition of
Chaparral is expected to enable us to increase the amount of proprietary technology within our storage systems,
broaden our product line and diversify our customer base. The results of operations of Chaparral have been included
in our results prospectively from February 23, 2004.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Based on our estimates and assumptions, the total purchase price of approximately $67.6 million was allocated as
follows (in thousands):

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,202
Accounts receivable 1,769
Inventories 955
Prepaid expenses and other 147
Property and equipment 648
Goodwill 56,768
Intangible assets:

Developed technology 2,600
Core technology 5,000
Customer relationships 2,500
Backlog 100
In-process research and development 4,700
Total assets 77,389
Liabilities:

Current liabilities 2,859
Convertible debt and accrued interest 6,945
Total liabilities 9,804
Net assets acquired $ 67,585

No changes were made to the original purchase price allocation during the year ended December 31, 2004 or 2005
and the purchase price allocation is now considered final.

Of the acquired intangible assets, $4.7 million pertained to IPR&D and was written off by our recognition of a
charge to operations on the acquisition date. The remaining acquired identifiable intangible assets are being amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: developed and core technology, 2.5 to
4.5 years; customer relationships, 3.5 years, and backlog, 8 months. The goodwill recorded in this transaction has been
allocated to our SANnet family-operating segment. None of this goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes.

IPR&D recorded in connection with the acquisition of Chaparral represents the present value of the estimated
after-tax cash flows expected to be generated by purchased technologies that, as of the acquisition dates, had not yet
reached technological feasibility. The classification of the technology as complete or under development was made in
accordance with the guidelines of SFAS No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased,
or Otherwise Marketed, and Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 4, Applicability of SFAS No. 2
to Business Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method. In addition, the Fair Value, as defined below, of the
IPR&D projects was determined in accordance with SFAS No. 141, and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.

Chaparral s IPR&D projects were valued through the application of discounted cash flow analyses, taking into
account many key characteristics of Chaparral as well as its future prospects, the rate technology changes in the
industry, product life cycles, risks specific to each project, and various projects stage of completion. Stage of
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verses the project s overall expected cost, effort and risks required for achieving technological
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feasibility. In the application of the discounted cash flow analyses, Chaparral s management provided distinct revenue
forecasts for each IPR&D project. The projections were based on the expected date of market introduction, an
assessment of customer needs, the expected pricing and cost structure of the related products, product life cycles, and
the importance of the existing technology relative to the in-process technology. In addition, the costs expected to
complete each project were added to the operating expenses to calculate the operating income for each IPR&D
project. As certain other assets contribute to the cash flow attributable to the assets being valued, returns to these other
assets were calculated and deducted from the pre-tax operating income to isolate the economic benefit solely
attributable to each of the in-process technologies. The present value of IPR&D was calculated based on discount
rates recommended by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants IPR&D Practice Aid, which depend on
the stage of completion and the additional risk associated with the completion of each of the IPR&D projects. We also
considered venture capital rates of return and the weighted average cost of capital for Chaparral, which was based on a
capital asset pricing model as an appropriate measure of the discount rates associated with each IPR&D project. As a
result, the earnings associated with the incomplete technology were discounted at a rate of approximately 22%.

Certain of our employees are former Chaparral employees who were party to agreements with Chaparral providing
for payment in the event of a change in control of Chaparral, 50% of which was payable immediately and 50% of
which is payable after 18 months of service following the acquisition date. As a result of our acquisition of Chaparral,
these employees were paid approximately $3.1 million in March 2004, and approximately $1.0 million in 2005. As of
December 31, 2005, our obligations under these agreements were completely satisfied.

Pro Forma Results of Operations
The following pro forma results of operations present the impact on our results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and 2004 as if the acquisition of Chaparral had been completed as of the beginning of the period
presented. The charge of $4.7 million related to the write-off of IPR&D has been excluded from the pro forma results
of operations, as it is nonrecurring in nature (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2003 2004 2004
Historical Pro Forma Historical Pro Forma
Revenues $ 187,448 $ 197,434 $ 239,376 $ 241,132
Net income (loss) $ 12,131 $ (1,765) $ 11,597 $ 14,341
Basic income (loss) per share $ 0.35 $ (0.06) $ 0.27 $ 0.33
Diluted income (loss) per share $ 0.31 $ (0.06) $ 0.25 $ 0.31

3. Risks and Uncertainties

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade accounts
receivable. We do not require collateral or other securities to support customer receivables. A majority of our net
revenue is derived from a limited number of customers. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005 sales
to one customer accounted for approximately 83.4%, 86.3%, and 86.2%, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and
2005 our accounts receivable from one customer were approximately 81.6% and 85.2%, respectively. Generally, our
customers have no minimum purchase requirements and have certain rights to extend, delay or cancel shipment of
their orders without penalty.
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Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Short-Term Investments, Concentrations

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, insures a corporation s funds deposited in a bank up to a
maximum of $0.1 million in the event of a bank failure. As of December 31, 2005, our cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments held exceeded the FDIC insured amount by approximately $122.1 million. We have not
experienced any losses in relation to cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments in excess of FDIC insurance
limits.

Foreign Sales

The following table summarizes foreign sales by geographic region as a percentage of net revenue for the years
ended December 31:

2003 2004 2005
Europe 4.9% 4.0% 4.6%
Asia 1.7 2.8 24
Total foreign sales 6.6% 6.8% 7.0%

Net revenue is recorded in the geographic area in which the sale is originated.

Dependence on Suppliers

We rely on other companies to supply certain key components of our products and products that we resell. Many
of these components and third-party products are available only from limited sources in the quantities and quality
demanded by us. Our third party contract manufacturers are responsible for purchasing and obtaining supplies.

We have outsourced the manufacture of substantially all of our products to a single manufacturer. Approximately
93%, 94%, and 96% of our total raw material purchases for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005,
respectively, were from this manufacturer. If our relationship with this manufacturer terminates, it could take several
months to establish alternative manufacturing for these products and we may not be able to fulfill orders for these
products in a timely manner, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating
results. Under an OEM agreement with a significant customer, this customer has the right to require that we use a
third party to manufacture product. Such an external manufacturer must meet this customer s engineering, qualification
and logistics requirements. If our relationship with the current manufacturer terminates, we may be unable to find
another suitable external manufacturer, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
operating results.

With respect to certain components, such as disk drives and controllers, if our third party manufacturer had to seek
alternative sources of supply, the incorporation of such components from alternative suppliers and the manufacture
and shipment of product could be delayed while modifications to such products and the accompanying software were
made to accommodate the introduction of the alternative suppliers components. We estimate that replacing the
controllers that we currently use with those of another supplier would involve several months of hardware and
software modification, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

F-16

Table of Contents 98



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The balance of accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of foreign currency translation adjustments and
unrealized gains and losses on short-term investments classified as available for sale. Changes in the accumulated
other comprehensive loss balance for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 are detailed as follows (in

thousands):
Balance, January 1, 2003

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net unrealized gain on short-term investments

Balance, December 31, 2003
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net unrealized loss on short-term investments

Balance, December 31, 2004
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net unrealized gain on short-term investments

Balance, December 31, 2005

Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the following at December 31, (in thousands):

2004
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (333)
Unrealized loss on marketable equity securities classified as available for sale (129)
$ (462)

5. Restructuring Costs and Asset Write-downs

$

$

(318)

30
25

(263)
(45)
(154)
(462)
255
89

(118)

2005

$ (78
(40)

$ (118)

In March 2001, we announced plans to reduce our full-time workforce by up to 30% and reduce other expenses in
response to delays in customer orders, lower than expected revenues and slowing global market conditions. The cost
reduction actions were designed to reduce our breakeven point in light of an economic downturn. The cost reductions
resulted in a charge for employee severance, lease termination costs and other office closure expenses related to the
consolidation of excess facilities. We recorded restructuring expenses in the first quarter of 2001 of approximately

$2.9 million, as follows (in thousands):
Employee termination costs
Impairment of property and equipment
Facility closures and related costs

Professional fees and other

Total
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In June 2001, we announced plans to further reduce our full-time workforce by up to 17% and reduce other
expenses in response to a continuing economic downturn and overall decrease in revenue. As a result of
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these additional restructuring actions, we recorded additional restructuring expenses during the second quarter of 2001
of approximately $1.5 million, as follows (in thousands):

Employee termination costs $ 259
Impairment of property and equipment 350
Facility closures and related costs 861
Total $ 1470

Employee termination costs consist primarily of severance payments for 180 employees. Impairment of property
and equipment consists of the write-down of certain fixed assets associated with facility closures. The facility closures
and related costs consist of lease termination costs for five sales offices and closure of the New York City office.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we increased our March 2001 related restructuring accrual by approximately
$0.2 million and our June 2001 restructuring accrual by approximately $0.3 million due to the continuing deterioration
of various real estate markets and the inability to sublet excess space in our Carlsbad and New York City facilities.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we again increased our March 2001 related restructuring accrual by
approximately $0.7 million and our June 2001 related restructuring accrual by approximately $0.9 million to reflect
additional deterioration of real estate markets in Carlsbad and New York City, as well as the effects of lease buyouts
negotiated on several facilities and a sublease arrangement reached on another facility.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company only has accruals for facility closures and related costs remaining. The
following is a summary of restructuring activity recorded during the period from January 1, 2003 to December 31,
2005 (in thousands):

March 2001 Restructuring

Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Restructuring Restructuringdditional Restructuring Restructuring
Exp;tnses Amounts EXp:tnsei(estructuringurrent EXP::lses Additional Current EXp;:lses

January 1, Utlil:lzed December 31}£xpiel:1nses

2003 2003 2003 (Settlement) Utilized 2004 Expenses Utilized 2005

AmountDecember RestructuringmountbDecember 31,

Facility
closures and
related costs  $ 661 (260) 401 (79) (154) 168 17 (140) $ 45

June 2001 Restructuring

Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Restructuring Restructuringddditional Restructuring Restructuring
EXp;fses Amounts EXpensesRestructuring Current Expenses Additional Current Exp:tnses

Utilized Expenses .
January 1, in December 31, in AmountDecember RestructurindmountPecember 31,
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2003 2003 2003 (Settlement) Utilized 2004 Expenses Utilized 2005
Facility
closures and
related costs  $ 925 (402) 523 (354) (159) 10 75 85 $

In June 2004, we negotiated an exit from our lease of the 10th floor of our former New York City office thereby
eliminating our related rent exposure. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded a
reduction of approximately $0.5 million to our restructuring reserve previously established in connection with the
closure of our New York City office. Additionally, we have evaluated certain factors pertaining to our remaining
sublease tenant; accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded an additional restructuring
accrual of approximately $0.1 million. We are not aware of any further unresolved issues or additional liabilities that
may result in a significant adjustment to restructuring expenses accrued as of December 31, 2005.
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6. Short-Term Investments
The following tables summarize our short-term investments as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

December 31, 2005
Net Net
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
U.S. Government securities $ 11,395 $ (39) $ $ 11,356
Corporate debt 2,076 (D) 2,075
$ 13471 $ (40) $ $ 13,431
December 31, 2004
Net Net
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
U.S. Government securities $ 49,583 $ (172) $ 27 $ 49,438
Municipal securities 600 600
Corporate debt 1,811 (11) 1,800
Commercial paper 6,825 27 6,852
$ 58,819 $ (183) $ 54 $ 58,690

Gross realized gains on these investments were $2,448, $118,371, and $8,550 for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Gross realized losses on these investments were $58,485, $106,388, and $3,322
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may have the right
to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties. The cost and fair value of short-term investments at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 by contractual maturity are shown below (in thousands).

December 31, 2005
Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 1,276 $ 1,276
Due after one year through five years 12,195 12,155
Total $ 13,471 $ 13,431
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December 31, 2004
Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 53,326 $ 53,208
Due after one year through five years 4,893 4,882
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years 600 600
Total $ 58819 $ 58,690
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The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair values of the Company s investments in individual
securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position deemed to be temporary for less than and greater
than 12 months, aggregated by investment category, at December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Less Than 12 12 Months or Total
Months Greater
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government securities $ 6,479 $ 17) $ 4,877 $ 22) $ 11,356 $ 39)
Corporate debt 2,025 (D 2,025 (D
Total $ 8,504 $ (18) $ 4,877 $ 22) $ 13,381 $ (40)

U.S. Government Securities. The unrealized losses on our investments in U.S. Government securities were caused
by interest rate increases. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at
a price less than the amortized cost of the investment. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments
until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

Corporate Debt Securities. The Company s investments in debt securities consist primarily of investments in
corporate bonds. The unrealized losses on the Company s investment in debt securities were caused by credit quality
and industry or company specific events. Because the severity and duration of the unrealized losses were not
significant, the Company considers these unrealized losses to be temporary at December 31, 2005.

7. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2004 2005

Purchased parts and materials $ 1,507 $ 1,058
Work-in-process 37

Finished goods 2,127 1,746
Total inventory $ 3,671 $ 2,804
8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):
2004 2005

Machinery and equipment $ 15,438 $ 8,770
Furniture, fixtures, and computer software 1,366 1,433
Leasehold improvements 679 670
Construction in progress 3,259
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Total property and equipment, at cost 17,483 14,132
Less accumulated depreciation (9,624) (6,241)
Total property and equipment, net $ 7,859 $ 7,891

Construction in progress at December 31, 2005 was comprised of $1.6 million associated with the implementation
of our ERP system, $1.1 million associated with leasehold improvements at our new corporate headquarters in
Carlsbad, and $0.6 million related to tooling and test equipment.
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Depreciation expense was $2.0 million, $3.2, and $4.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and
2005, respectively.

9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but
instead are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. All of our other
intangible assets are considered to have finite lives and are being amortized in accordance with this statement. All of
our goodwill has been allocated to our SANnet family-operating segment (see Note 2).

In December 2005, we entered into a Patent Cross License with International Business Machines Corporation, or
IBM. Pursuant to the Patent Cross License, each party acquired a nonexclusive worldwide license under certain of the
other party s patents related to information handling systems. The license term extends for the remaining life of the
patents and any new patents that are that are granted to either party through December 31, 2008. In connection with
the Patent Cross License, we paid IBM a one-time licensing fee of $2.5 million. The Patent Cross License was
recorded as an intangible asset and will be amortized over the patents applicable useful lives.

Intangible assets that are subject to amortization under SFAS No. 142 consist of the following as of December 31,
2004 and 2005 (in thousands):

December 31, 2004
Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net
Core technology $ 5,000 $ (926) $ 4,074
Developed technology 2,600 (867) 1,733
Customer relationships 2,500 (595) 1,905
Backlog 100 (100)
Total intangible assets $ 10,200 $ (2,488) $ 7,712
December 31, 2005
Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net
Core technology $ 5,000 $ (2,037) $ 2,963
Developed technology 2,600 (1,907) 693
Customer relationships 2,500 (1,309) 1,191
Backlog 100 (100)
Licensed Patent Portfolio 2,570 3) 2,567
Total intangible assets $ 12,770 $ (5,356) $ 7414

As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the weighted average amortization period for the above intangibles is 3.8 and
4.0 years, respectively.
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Estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets at December 31, 2005 is as follows (in
thousands):

2006 $ 3,033
2007 2,101
2008 1,255
2009 514
2010 511
Total $ 7414

10. Credit Facilities

Line of Credit

Effective July 1, 2004, we entered into a credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, or Wells
Fargo, which allows us to borrow up to $30.0 million under a revolving line of credit that expires July 1, 2006.
Amounts loaned under the agreement bear interest at our option at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Prime
Rate in effect from time to time, or at a fixed rate per annum determined by Wells Fargo to be 0.65% above LIBOR in
effect on the first day of the applicable fixed rate term. In connection with the agreement, to the extent we have
outstanding borrowings, we have granted Wells Fargo a security interest in our investment management account
maintained with Wells Capital Management Incorporated. As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, there was no balance
outstanding under this line of credit. The agreement limits any new borrowings, loans or advances outside of the
agreement to an amount less than $1.0 million.

The above-mentioned line of credit replaces the credit agreement we had with Wells Fargo that provided for
borrowings of up to $15.0 million under a revolving line of credit that expired on May 1, 2004. The maximum amount
we were allowed to borrow under the line of credit was limited by the amount of our cash and investment balances
held at the bank at any given time and could have been reduced by the amount of any outstanding letters of credit with
the bank. Borrowings under the facility were collateralized by a pledge of our deposits held at the bank. Borrowings
under the line of credit incurred interest at the bank s prime rate or 50 basis points above LIBOR, at our option. Interest
on outstanding borrowings was due monthly, with the principal due at maturity.

Note Payable

In connection with our acquisition of Chaparral in February 2004, we assumed a $6 million promissory note that
incurred interest at 8%. During August 2004, we made a payment of approximately $7.2 million representing both
principal and interest to the holder of the $6 million promissory note. There are no further amounts due.

Japanese Yen Facilities

Through November 2004, our Japanese subsidiary had two lines of credit with Tokyo Mitsubishi Bank, a Japanese
bank, and one line of credit with National Life Finance Corporation in Japan, for borrowings up to an aggregate of
45 million Yen (approximately U.S. $0.4 million). Borrowings under these lines of credit were previously
collateralized by inventories of the Japanese subsidiary. As of November 2004, all of the lines of credit relating to our
Japanese subsidiary described above were repaid and closed.
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11. Income Taxes

Components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2003
Current:
Federal $ 60
State, local and foreign 28

88

Deferred:
Federal
State, local and foreign
Total income tax provision (benefit) $ 88

2004
$ 217
55

272

$ 272

2005
$ 624
41

665

(18,697)
(7,165)
(25,862)

$  (25,197)

A reconciliation of the income tax provision computed using the federal statutory income tax rate to the
recognized income tax provision (benefit) is as follows for the years ended December 31(in thousands):

2003
Federal statutory rate $ 4277
State and local income taxes, net of federal effect 713
Decrease in deferred income tax asset valuation allowance 4,731)
Foreign taxes (141)
In-process research and development
Research and development credit
Other 30)
Income tax provision (benefit) $ 88

F-23

2004

$ 4,154
930
(6,626)
306

1,645

137)

$ 272

2005

$ 490
(4,569)
(22,112)
1,418

(393)
€20

$  (25,197)
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The income tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred income taxes are as follows at
December 31 (in thousands):

2004 2005
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards $ 54,238 $ 51911
Inventory reserve and uniform capitalization 587 454
Stock warrants 1,532 1,532
Restructuring accrual 75 19
In-process research and development 418 445
Acquisition costs 302
Allowance for bad debts 174 51
Vacation accrual 371 425
Deferred rent 94
Warranty accrual 464 313
Deferred revenue 343
Other accruals and reserves 625 101
Total deferred income tax assets 58,484 55,990
Deferred income tax liabilities:
State taxes 3,161) (2,469)
Depreciation and amortization (1,292) (930)
Acquired intangibles (3,095) (1,889)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (7,548) (5,288)
Deferred income tax asset valuation allowance (50,936) (3,561)
Net deferred income tax asset $ $ 47,141

As of December 31, 2005, the Company reversed a valuation allowance on its U.S. deferred tax assets totaling
$47.1 million. Based on the nature of the underlying deferred tax assets, the reversal of the valuation allowance
resulted in an increase to additional paid-in capital of $5.4 million, a reduction of Goodwill in the amount of
$16.4 million, and a net income tax benefit of $25.3 million. This reversal is the result of the Company s recent
sustained history of operating profitability and the determination by management that the future realization of the net
deferred tax assets was judged to be more likely than not. The Company exercises significant judgment relating to the
projection of future taxable income to determine the recoverability of any tax assets recorded on the balance sheet. If
judgments regarding recoverability of deferred tax assets are not accurate, the Company could be required to record
additional reserves against deferred tax assets in future periods.

As of December 31, 2005, a valuation allowance of $3.6 million has been provided for the foreign deferred tax
assets based upon the Company s assessment of the future realizability of certain foreign deferred tax assets, as it is
more likely than not, that sufficient taxable income will not be generated to realize these temporary differences.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has federal and state net operating losses of approximately $113.1 million
and $49.0 million, which begin to expire in the tax years ending 2009 and 2006, respectively. In addition, the
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Company has federal tax credit carryforwards of $2.9 million, of which approximately $0.5 million can be carried
forward indefinitely to offset future taxable income, and the remaining $2.4 million
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will begin to expire in the tax year ending 2008. The Company also has state tax credit carryforwards of $3.1 million,
of which $2.9 million can be carried forward indefinitely to offset future taxable income, and the remaining
$0.2 million will begin to expire in the tax year ending 2006.

Due to our equity transactions, an ownership change, within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code, or IRC,
Section 382, occurred on September 18, 2003. As a result, annual use of our federal net operating loss and credit carry
forwards is limited to (i) the aggregate fair market value of Dot Hill Systems Corp. immediately before the ownership
change multiplied by (ii) the long-term tax-exempt rate (within the meaning of IRC Section 382 (f)) in effect at that
time. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized in future years in
addition to the Section 382 limitation for those years.

As a result of our acquisition of Chaparral, an ownership change, within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code
Section 382, occurred on February 23, 2004. As a result, annual use of the acquired Chaparral s federal net operating
loss and credit carry forwards may be limited. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized
in a year, can be utilized in future years in addition to the Section 382 limitation for those years.

We have not provided for any residual U.S. income taxes on the earnings from our foreign subsidiaries because
such earnings are intended to be indefinitely reinvested. Such residual U.S. income taxes, if any, would be
insignificant.

12. Stockholders Equity

Increase in Authorized Common Shares

In April 2005, our board of directors authorized an increase of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock issuable
pursuant to our 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan and 100,000 shares of our common stock issuable
pursuant to our 2000 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. This increase in shares became effective
on the date of the 2005 Annual Stockholders Meeting, which was held April 25, 2005.

In May 2004, our board of directors authorized an increase of 867,261 shares of our common stock issuable
pursuant to our 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan and 2,000,000 shares of our common stock
issuable pursuant to our 2000 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. This increase in shares became
effective on the date of the 2004 Annual Stockholders Meeting, which was held May 3, 2004.

Common Stock Issuances

During March 2003, we raised net proceeds of approximately $16.5 million in a private placement of
4,750,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $3.75 per share. The shares in the private placement were sold at a
price per share that was approximately 14% less than the five-day volume weighted average price of our common
stock. We agreed to sell the shares in the private placement at a discount to the market price because the purchasers
could not resell the shares to the public until the resale was registered. In connection with the private placement, we
granted a warrant to the placement agent to purchase 183,000 shares of our common stock for $4.50 per share. The
warrant was recorded as a cost of the stock issuance.

During September 2003 we received net proceeds of approximately $144.8 million from a secondary public
offering of 9,904,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $15.50 per share.
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Stockholders Rights Plan

On May 19, 2003 we adopted a plan to provide certain rights to our stockholders, or a rights plan. Terms of the
rights plan provide for a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right for each outstanding share of our
common stock. The dividend was payable on May 30, 2003 to our stockholders of record on that date. Each such
purchase right entitles the registered holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of our Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock at a price of $50.00, subject to adjustment. Each one one-hundredth of a share of this
series of preferred stock has designations and powers, preferences and rights, and qualifications, limitations and
restrictions that make its value approximately equal to the value of one share of our common stock.

13. Preferred Stock

On December 18, 2002, we received gross proceeds of $6.0 million from the sale of 6,000 shares of preferred
stock and warrants in a private placement. The preferred stock carried a 7% cumulative dividend. On May 2, 2003, we
converted all of the outstanding shares of preferred stock into 1,846,152 shares of our common stock at a per share
price of $3.25. The warrants granted to the holders of the preferred stock entitle them to purchase an aggregate of
369,229 shares of our common stock at a per share price of $3.25. The warrants terminate upon the earlier of
December 19, 2007 or our consummation of certain acquisition transactions.

The warrants issued to the purchasers of the preferred stock were assigned a value of $845,902 using the Black
Scholes valuation model. The remaining gross proceeds of $5,154,098 were allocated to the preferred stock. Based on
the amount allocated to the preferred stock, a beneficial conversion amount of $439,748 resulted, which has been
recorded as a dividend.

In connection with the sale of the preferred stock, we issued a warrant, to the placement agent in the transaction, to
purchase up to 118,812 shares of our common stock for $3.25 per share. The warrant was recorded as a cost of the
stock issuance.

14. Stock Options and Warrants

Equity Incentive Plan & Non-employee Stock Option Plan

Our 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan, or Incentive Plan, provides for the granting of incentive
and nonqualified stock options to employees. Our 2000 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan, or Directors Plan, adopted
in March 2000 provides for the granting of nonqualified stock options to non-employee directors. We currently have
reserved 8,134,199 and 500,000 shares of common stock for issuance pursuant to the Incentive Plan and the Directors
Plan, respectively. The terms and conditions of grants of stock options are determined by our board of directors in
accordance with the terms of the Incentive Plan and Directors Plan.
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Forfeitures
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BALANCE, December 31, 2005

DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Information with respect to options under the Incentive Plan and Directors Plan, as restated for the combination
with Artecon s stock option plan, is as follows:

Number of

Shares

3,670,843

961,000
(296,280)
(1,079,836)

3,255,727

1,626,750
(386,588)
(281,794)

4,214,095

1,328,000
(396,172)
(315,112)

4,830,811

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

$

$

3.86
7.81
3.35
3.83

5.08
10.31
10.62

3.75

6.68
5.78
8.52
3.11

6.52

The options generally vest ratably over a four or five year period and are exercisable over a period of ten years
from the date of grant. Information with respect to options outstanding under the Incentive Plan and Directors Plan at

December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Range of Exercise Price

$1.34
$3.15
$5.40
$6.12
$8.73
$13.88

$3.10
$5.38
$6.10
$8.51
$13.50
$17.14
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Options Outstanding

Weighted

Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life

Outstanding in Years
1,088,214 6.24
836,475 7.39
941,018 7.83
866,483 8.37
806,846 7.33
291,775 7.94
4,830,811 7.42

Weighted
Average

Exercise

Price

$ 242
4.56
5.97
6.71

11.36
15.30

$ 652

Options Exercisable

Number

Exercisable

952,347
401,642
295,018
382,041
806,846
289,775

3,127,669

Weighted
Average

Exercise

Price

$

$

2.34
4.08
5.72
7.13
11.36
15.30

6.99
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On December 1, 2005, the Company accelerated vesting of certain unvested and out-of-the-money stock options
with exercise prices equal to or greater than $6.74 per share that were previously awarded under the Company s equity
compensation plans to its employees. These options were accelerated to avoid recording future compensation expense
with respect to such options following adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The Company s management believes that
because such options had exercise prices in excess of the current market value of the Company s stock, the options
were not achieving their original objective. The acceleration of vesting was effective for stock options outstanding as
of December 1, 2005. Options to purchase approximately 0.6 million shares of common stock were subject to the
acceleration and the weighted average exercise price of the options subject to the acceleration was $11.71.
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As of December 31, 2003 and 2004, approximately 1,322,443 and 1,867,338 options were exercisable at a
weighted average exercise price of $4.86 and $4.56, respectively.

The pro forma compensation costs presented in Note 1 were determined using the weighted average fair values, at
the date of grant, for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005 of $5.87, $6.41, and
$3.49 per share, respectively. The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for the years ended
December 31:

2003 2004 2005
Risk free interest 2.90% 3.23% 3.86%
Expected dividend yield
Expected life 7.5 years 4.0 years 4.1 years
Expected volatility 82% 87% 78%
Warrants

On May 24, 2002, we granted an OEM customer a warrant to purchase 1,239,527 shares of our common stock at
$2.97 per share in connection with the signing of a product supply agreement. The warrant was fully vested upon
issuance and became exercisable for 413,175 shares at signing, and becomes exercisable for an additional
413,176 shares on both May 24, 2003 and 2004 and expires on May 24, 2007. The fair value of the warrant,
determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, was $3.7 million. The warrant was issued to induce the
customer to purchase our products in the future and was not issued in consideration of any past transactions.

On February 14, 2003, we issued a warrant to an OEM customer to purchase 154,742 shares of our common stock
at $3.25 per share in connection with a private placement of our preferred stock. The warrant was fully vested upon
issuance and became exercisable at signing.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we received proceeds of approximately $0.8 million from the exercise
of warrants to purchase 246,153 shares of our common stock. As of December 31, 2005, there were outstanding
warrants to purchase 1,720,696 shares of our common stock. The warrants have exercise prices ranging from $2.97 to
$4.50 per share and expire at various dates through March 14, 2008.

15. Related Party Transactions

Purchases from affiliated companies for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were approximately
$15,000, $8,000, and $12,000, respectively.
16. Employee Benefit Plans

Dot Hill Retirement Savings Plan

The Dot Hill Retirement Savings Plan, which qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, is open
to eligible employees over 21 years of age. Under the plan, participating U.S. employees may defer up to 100% of
their pretax salary, but not more than statutory limits. We may match 50% of participating employees contributions up
to a specified limit of $1,000. Our matching contributions vest to employees as a percentage based on years of
employment from one to five years, and matching contributions are fully vested to employees after five years of
employment. Our matching contributions to the retirement savings plan for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004
and 2005 were approximately $0.1 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million, respectively.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or Purchase Plan, was adopted in August 1997, and amended and restated in
March 2000. The Purchase Plan qualifies under the provisions of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code and
provides our eligible employees, as defined in the Purchase Plan with an opportunity to purchase shares of our
common stock at 85% of fair market value, as defined. We have reserved 2,100,046 shares of common stock for
issuance pursuant to the Purchase Plan. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, approximately
524,000, 0 and 200,000 shares, respectively, were issued under the Purchase Plan.
17. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

We lease office space and equipment under noncancelable operating leases, which expire at various dates through
September 2009. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 was $0.9 million, $1.2 million,
and $1.5 million, respectively. Sublease rental income for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 was
$0.1 million, $0.6 million, and $0.6 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments due under all noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2005 are as
follows (in thousands):

2006 $ 1,477
2007 1,352
2008 1,110
2009 1,075
2010 1,025
Thereafter 2,502
Total minimum lease payments $ 8,541

The above minimum lease payments include minimum rental commitments totaling $0.6 million that have been
included in the restructuring accrual as of December 31, 2005. Minimum payments for operating leases have not been
reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $0.7 million due in the future under non-cancelable subleases.

In September 2005, we entered into an agreement to lease approximately 58,500 square feet of office space in
Carlsbad, California, that will serve as a replacement for our current headquarters. The 88-month lease term will
commence in January 2006. Upon the expiration of the initial term, we are entitled to two five-year renewal options.
The minimum lease payments associated with this lease have been included in the future minimum lease payment
table above.

Employment Agreements

In connection with the Merger, effective August 2, 1999 we adopted employment contracts with two of our
executive officers. These contracts provide for base salaries totaling $600,000 per year. In addition, each executive
was eligible to receive, at the discretion of our board of directors, a cash bonus of up to 50% of such executives then
annual base salary. The employment contracts may be terminated at our option or at the executive s option for cause,
or, upon 30 days written notice, for convenience and without cause. If we terminate for convenience, the executive is
entitled to a severance payment equal to their then-current annual base salary. Following termination of employment
other than due to death or disability, we may hire the
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executive as a consultant for a period of one year at a cost of 25% of the executive s then current annual base salary.

In August 2001, the Company entered into change of control agreements with three of its executive officers.
Under one of the agreements, in the event of an acquisition of the Company or similar corporate event, referred to
hereafter as a change of control, the executive officer s remaining stock options will become fully vested and the
executive officer will be entitled to a lump sum cash payment equal to 150% of annual base salary then in effect.
Under the second agreement, if the executive officer s employment is terminated other than for cause in connection
with a change of control, the remaining unvested stock options will become fully vested and the executive officer will
be entitled to a lump sum cash payment of 125% of annual base salary then in effect. Under the third agreement, in the
event of a change of control, the executive officer s remaining unvested stock options will become fully vested and the
executive officer will be entitled to a lump sum cash payment equal to 125% of annual base salary then in effect.

Effective April 1, 2002, we entered into a change of control agreement with an additional executive. Under the
agreement, in the event of a change of control, the executive s remaining unvested stock options will become fully
vested and the executive will be entitled to a lump sum cash payment equal to 125% of annual base salary then in
effect.

On February 3, 2005, we adopted the Executive Compensation Plan 2005, or the Compensation Plan, for our Chief
Executive Officer, our President, and our Chief Financial Officer. Under the Compensation Plans, our Chief Executive
Officer, President and Chief Financial Officer are eligible to receive bonuses in an amount to be calculated in
accordance with the terms of their respective Compensation Plans and dependent on the satisfaction of certain
conditions relating to our revenues. In the case of the Chief Executive Officer, the target bonus is 80% of the Chief
Executive Officer s base salary. In the case of the President, the target bonus is 70% of the President s base salary. In
the case of the Chief Financial Officer, the target bonus is 50% of the Chief Financial Officer s base salary.

On March 3, 2006, we adopted the Executive Compensation 2006 Plan, or the 2006 Plan. Under the 2006 Plan,
our President and Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Operating Officer, our Chief Financial Officer, our Senior Vice
President of Sales and Marketing, and our Senior Vice President of Engineering, are each eligible to receive bonuses
in an amount to be calculated in accordance with the terms of the 2006 Plan and are as follows: 40% dependent on
certain quarterly management business objectives, 50% dependent on annual financial results relating to revenue and
operating income, and 10% dependent on revenues associated with a certain customer. In the case of the President and
Chief Executive Officer, the target bonus is 80% of the President and Chief Executive Officer s base salary. In the case
of the Chief Operating Officer, the target bonus is 70% of the Chief Operating Officer s base salary. In the case of the
Chief Financial Officer, the target bonus is 60% of the Chief Financial Officer s base salary. In the case of the Senior
Vice President of Sales and Marketing, the target bonus is 50% of the Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing s
base salary. In the case of the Senior Vice President of Engineering, the target bonus is 40% of the Senior Vice
President of Engineering s base salary.

Crossroads Systems Litigation

On October 17, 2003, Crossroads Systems, or Crossroads, filed a lawsuit against us in the United States District
Court in Austin, Texas, alleging that our products infringe two United States patents assigned to Crossroads, Patent
Numbers 5,941,972 and 6,425,035. We were served with the lawsuit on October 27, 2003. Chaparral was added as a
party to the lawsuit in March 2004. The patents involve storage routers and methods for providing virtual local
storage. Patent Number 5,941,972 involves the interface of SCSI storage devices and the Fibre Channel protocol and
Patent Number 6,425,035 involves the interface of any one-transport medium and a second transport medium. We
believe that we have meritorious defenses to Crossroads claims and are in the process of vigorously defending against
them. The outcome is uncertain and no amounts have
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been accrued as of December 31, 2005. However, we expect to incur significant legal expenses in connection with this
litigation. These defense costs, and other expenses related to this litigation, will be expensed as incurred and will
negatively affect our operating results.

Chaparral Securities Class Action

In August 2004, a class action lawsuit was filed against, among others, Chaparral and a number of its former
officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Central District of California. The lawsuit, among
other things, alleges violations of federal and state securities laws and purports to seek damages on behalf of a class of
shareholders who held interests in limited liability companies that had purchased, among other securities, Chaparral
stock during a defined period prior to our acquisition of Chaparral. In May 2005, the Second Amended Complaint was
dismissed with leave to amend. Plaintiffs filed a Third Amended Complaint, which the Court again dismissed with
leave to amend in November of 2005 as to Chaparral and certain other defendants. Plaintiffs declined to amend within
the proscribed period, and final judgment was entered in February 2006.

Plaintiffs filed a related action in the Superior Court of the State of California, Orange County, in December of
2005, alleging many of the same claims. The demurrer in that matter is due March 30, 2006. We believe that the
claims against Chaparral and its former officers and directors are without merit and are in the process of vigorously
defending against them. The outcome is uncertain and no amounts have been accrued as of December 31, 2005.

Dot Hill Securities Class Action

In late January and early February 2006, numerous complaints against us purporting to be class actions were filed
in the United States District Court for the Southern District of California. The complaints allege violations of federal
securities laws related to alleged inflation in our stock price in connection with various statements and alleged
omissions to the public and to the securities markets and declines in our stock price in connection with the restatement
of certain of our quarterly financial statements for fiscal year 2004, and seeking damages therefore. In addition, two
complaints purporting to be derivative actions have been filed in California state court against certain of our directors
and executive officers. These complaints are based on the same facts and circumstances described in the federal class
action complaints and generally allege that the named directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties by failing
to oversee adequately our financial reporting. Each of the complaints generally seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The cases are in the very preliminary stages. We believe the allegations against us and certain of our
directors and executive officers in this action are without merit and we intend to vigorously defend against these
claims. The outcome is uncertain and no amounts have been accrued as of December 31, 2005.

In the fourth quarter of 2004 we made a payment of approximately $0.4 million to the State of New York to settle
amounts related to a field audit of our Franchise Tax return. We have a remaining accrual of approximately
$0.2 million at December 31, 2005 related to the potential settlement of the issue in a different jurisdiction.

Other Litigation

We are involved in certain other legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. Management
believes that the outcome of such other litigation and claims will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or operating results.
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18. Segment and Geographic Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by our chief operating decision-maker in deciding how to allocate resources and
in assessing performance. Our chief operating decision-maker is the Chief Executive Officer. Our operating segments,
which represent our reportable segments, are managed separately because each segment represents a strategic business
unit that offers different products or services.

Our operating segments are organized on the basis of products and services. We have identified operating
segments that consist of our SANnet family of systems, legacy and other systems and services. We currently evaluate
performance based on stand-alone segment revenue and gross margin. Because we do not currently maintain
information regarding operating income at the operating segment level, such information is not presented.

Information concerning revenue by product and service is as follows (in thousands):

Legacy
and
SANnet Families Other Services Total

Year ended December 31, 2003:

Net revenue $ 179,061 $ 5,044 $ 3,343 $ 187,448
Gross profit (loss) $ 47,379 $ (3,467 $ 986 $ 44,898
Year ended December 31, 2004:

Net revenue $ 231,264 $ 5,172 $ 2,940 $ 239,376
Gross profit $ 56,382 $ 2,244 $ 375 $ 59,501
Year ended December 31, 2005:

Net revenue $ 225,705 $ 5,388 $ 2,706 $ 233,799
Gross profit $ 51,856 $ 1,243 $ 504 $ 53,603

Information concerning operating assets by product and service, derived by specific identification for assets
related to specific segments and an allocation based on segment volume for assets related to multiple segments, is as
follows (in thousands):

SANnet Legacy
and
Families Other Services Total
As of:
December 31, 2004 $ 235,969 $ 7,285 $ 3313 $ 246,567
December 31, 2005 $ 256,028 $ 8,240 $ 3,026 $ 267,294
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Information concerning principal geographic areas in which we operate is as follows (in thousands):

As of and for the Year Ended

December 31,
2003 2004 2005
Net revenue:
United States $ 175,233 $ 223,133 $ 217,469
Europe 9,120 9,546 10,730
Asia 3,095 6,697 5,600

$ 187,448 $ 239,376 $ 233,799

Income (loss) before income taxes:

United States $ 11,022 $ 11,786 $ 4,571

Europe 943 (812) (2,636)

Asia 254 895 (535)
$ 12,219 $ 11,869 $ 1,400

Assets:

United States $ 213,027 $ 237,376 $ 260,826

Europe 4,196 6,444 3,997

Asia 1,220 2,747 2,471

$ 218,443 $ 246,567 $ 267,294

Net revenue is recorded in the geographic area in which the sale is originated.

19. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The information presented below reflects all adjustments, which, in the opinion of management, are of a normal
and recurring nature necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the periods presented (in thousands, except
per share amounts).

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
Net revenue $ 47,865 $ 69,038 $ 56,956 $ 65,517
Gross profit 12,078 17,041 14,668 15,714
Income (loss) before income taxes (2,620) 6,823 3,602 4,064
Net income (loss) (2,585) 6,697 3,451 4,034
Basic net income (loss) per share (0.06) 0.15 0.08 0.09
Diluted net income (loss) per share (0.06) 0.14 0.07 0.09

Year Ended December 31, 2005:
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Net revenue $ 58,011 $ 65,897 $ 53,616 $ 56,275

Gross profit 13,277 16,145 12,353 11,828

Income (loss) before income taxes 1,991 3,723 (1,467) (2,847)

Net income (loss) 2,102 3,297 (1,275) 22,473

Basic net income (loss) per share 0.05 0.08 (0.03) 0.51

Diluted net income (loss) per share 0.05 0.07 (0.03) 0.49
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20. Subsequent Events

On January 24, 2006 we announced a strategic technology partnership with Fujitsu Siemens Computers. The
partnership covers joint development of storage solutions utilizing key components and patented technologies from us
including storage controllers, data management software functionality and highly efficient and reliable packaging. The
expected length of the original term is five years. The new products will be added to the Fujitsu Siemens Computers
FibreCAT® storage product family and will be targeted at the entry level and SMB markets. The products will feature
4 GB Fibre Channel, iSCSI or Serial Attached SCSI, or SAS, connectivity and will be compliant with Restriction of
Hazardous Substances, or RoHS, and WEEE standards.

On February 6, 2006, James L. Lambert retired as our Vice Chairman of our Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer, effective March 1, 2006. Following his departure from Dot Hill, Mr. Lambert will concentrate his
efforts on a family business venture outside the technology sector and will continue to provide executive guidance to
us on a consultancy basis.

Also on February 6, 2006, Dana W. Kammersgard, our current President, was appointed as our Chief Executive
Officer and a director, effective March 1, 2006. Mr. Kammersgard was appointed to serve as a Class III director,
continuing in office until our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor is duly elected and qualified
or until his earlier death, resignation or removal.

On February 22, 2006, Patrick Collins was appointed as our Chief Operating Officer, effective March 1, 2006.
Upon commencement of his employment, Mr. Collins received a stock option to purchase 400,000 shares of our
common stock pursuant to our 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.

On March 2, 2006, we entered into a consulting letter agreement, effective as of March 1, 2006, with our former
Chief Executive Officer, James L. Lambert. The consulting letter agreement was approved by the Compensation
Committee of our Board of Directors on March 2, 2006. Pursuant to the consulting letter agreement, Mr. Lambert will
perform consulting services for us during a three-year period beginning as of March 1, 2006 for a consulting fee of
$16,666 per month. Vesting of 218,125 of Mr. Lambert s stock options was accelerated in full connection with the
consulting letter agreement, resulting in a pre-tax one-time charge of $0.7 million, and such stock options will
continue to be exercisable during the consulting period in accordance with their terms. Mr. Lambert will be restricted
from competing with us during the consulting period, and the consulting period will terminate early upon an
acquisition of us, Mr. Lambert s election or Mr. Lambert s death or permanent disability. In the event of any such early
termination, Mr. Lambert will receive a lump sum payment equal to the amount he would have been eligible to
receive if the consulting period continued for the full original three-year period.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2004 AND 2005

Balance at Cha:)ged Balance
Beginning Costs and at End
of of
Year Expenses Deductions Year
(In thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales
returns:
Year ended December 31, 2003 $ 1,848 $ (284) $ 1,097(1) $ 467
Year ended December 31, 2004 467 176 152(1) 491
Year ended December 31, 2005 491 560 757(1) 294
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventories:
Year ended December 31, 2003 $ 13,144 $ 1,705 $ 8,255(3) $ 6,594
Year ended December 31, 2004 6,594 785 5,694(2) 1,685
Year ended December 31, 2005 1,685 1,856 2,548(2) 993

(1) Uncollectible receivables charged off and credit issued for product returns.
(2) Consists primarily of the write-off of excess/obsolete inventories.
(3) Consists primarily of the sale of inventory to a third party service provider and the write-off of excess/obsolete

inventories.
F-35

Paper & Forest Products 5.2%

Fibria Celulose SA - ADR (b)
315,600 5,096,940

International Paper Co. (a)
405,900 12,534,192

MeadWestvaco Corp. (a)

451,600 15,214,404
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Common Stocks

Paper & Forest Products (concluded)
Mondi Plc

Weyerhaeuser Co. (a)

Total Long-Term Investments
(Cost  $605,660,766) 98.3%

Short-Term Securities
BlackRock Liquidity Funds, TempFund, Institutional Class, 0.10% (c)(d)

Total Short-Term Securities
(Cost $19,415,877) 2.1%

Total Investments Before Outstanding Options Written
(Cost  $625,076,643*) 100.4%

Options Written

Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (0.7) %

Agnico-Eagle Mines Ltd., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 5/23/11
Agrium, Inc., Strike Price USD 90, Expires 5/23/11

Agrium, Inc., Strike Price USD 92.50, Expires 6/20/11

Air Products & Chemicals, Inc., Strike Price USD 92, Expires 6/06/11
Alcoa, Inc., Strike Price USD 17, Expires 5/23/11

Allegheny Technologies, Inc., Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 5/23/11
Alpha Natural Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11
Alpha Natural Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 60, Expires 5/23/11
Alpha Natural Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 6/20/11
Apache Corp., Strike Price USD 125, Expires 6/20/11

Arch Coal, Inc., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 5/23/11

Arch Coal, Inc., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 6/20/11

Barrick Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 5/23/11

Barrick Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11

Basic Energy Services, Inc., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11
Carpenter Technology Corp., Strike Price USD 43, Expires 5/05/11
Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 106.50, Expires 5/23/11

Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 110, Expires 5/23/11

Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 115, Expires 5/23/11

Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 110, Expires 6/20/11

Cenovus Energy Inc., Strike Price USD 40, Expires 5/23/11
Chesapeake Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 34, Expires 6/20/11
Chesapeake Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 6/20/11

Cia de Minas Buenaventura SA - ADR, Strike Price USD 41, Expires 5/23/11
Cia de Minas Buenaventura SA - ADR, Strike Price USD 43, Expires 5/23/11
Cia de Minas Buenaventura SA - ADR, Strike Price USD 45, Expires 5/23/11
Cliffs Natural Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 95, Expires 5/23/11
ConocoPhillips, Strike Price USD 75, Expires 5/23/11

Consol Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11
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(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Shares

322,512
466,900

19,415,877

Contracts

355
102
152
300
925
130
100
200
100
300
110
110
325

30
200
150
255
335
100

90
400
265
265
300
280
350

95

75
300

$

Value

3,205,416
10,743,364

46,794,316

877,630,056

19,415,877

19,415,877

897,045,933

(62,480)
(27,795)
(42,940)

(129,651)
(36,075)
(69,550)
(23,100)
(24,700)
(33,500)

(310,500)

(7,755)
(13,750)
(27,463)

(255)

(113,000)

(123,900)

(234,203)

(210,213)
(28,000)
(67.275)
(13,000)
(38,690)
(27.560)
(62,250)
(30,800)
(16,625)
(24,320)
(31,875)
(39,600)
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Consol Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 5/23/11 450 (117,900)
Continental Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 5/23/11 60 (10,950)
Continental Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 75, Expires 6/20/11 100 (12,000)
Core Laboratories NV, Strike Price USD 100, Expires 5/23/11 100 (5,250)
Core Laboratories NV, Strike Price USD 100, Expires 6/20/11 145 (23,200)
Core Laboratories NV, Strike Price USD 100, Expires 7/18/11 145 (30,955)
Deere & Co., Strike Price USD 92.50, Expires 5/23/11 250 (145,000)
Denbury Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 23, Expires 5/23/11 400 (30,000)
Denbury Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11 280 (5,600)
Denbury Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 6/20/11 400 (27,000)
Dow Chemical Co. (The), Strike Price USD 39, Expires 5/23/11 100 (23,150)
Dow Chemical Co. (The), Strike Price USD 40, Expires 6/20/11 100 (20,300)
Dow Chemical Co. (The), Strike Price USD 38, Expires 6/20/11 470 (164,500)
E.L. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11 147 (30,576)
E.L. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11 200 (11,200)
Energy XXI (Bermuda) Ltd., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 5/23/11 175 (38,063)
Energy XXI (Bermuda) Ltd., Strike Price USD 36, Expires 5/23/11 175 (27,563)
Energy XXI (Bermuda) Ltd., Strike Price USD 37, Expires 5/23/11 75 (7,688)
Energy XXI (Bermuda) Ltd., Strike Price USD 36, Expires 6/20/11 100 (24,750)
EOG Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 115, Expires 5/23/11 300 (65,700)
Exxon Mobil Corp., Strike Price USD 82.50, Expires 5/23/11 230 (128,395)
Forest Oil Corp., Strike Price USD 38, Expires 5/23/11 475 (26,125)
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11 225 (40,838)
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 5/23/11 100 (34,000)
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 6/20/11 99 (17,276)
Goldcorp, Inc., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11 300 (59.400)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Schedule of Investments (continued)

Options Written

Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (continued)

Goldcorp, Inc., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 6/20/11

Halliburton Co., Strike Price USD 46, Expires 5/23/11

Halliburton Co., Strike Price USD 47, Expires 5/23/11

Halliburton Co., Strike Price USD 48, Expires 5/23/11

Hess Corp., Strike Price USD 80, Expires 5/23/11

International Paper Co., Strike Price USD 28, Expires 5/23/11
International Paper Co., Strike Price USD 31, Expires 5/23/11
International Paper Co., Strike Price USD 30.25, Expires 6/03/11
International Paper Co., Strike Price USD 31, Expires 6/20/11

Key Energy Services, Inc., Strike Price USD 17, Expires 5/23/11
Key Energy Services, Inc., Strike Price USD 15, Expires 6/20/11
MeadWestvaco Corp., Strike Price USD 32.50, Expires 5/23/11
MeadWestvaco Corp., Strike Price USD 30, Expires 5/23/11
Monsanto Co., Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 5/23/11

Monsanto Co., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 5/23/11

Mosaic Co. (The), Strike Price USD 80, Expires 5/23/11

Newfield Exploration Co., Strike Price USD 80, Expires 5/23/11
Newmont Mining Corp., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11
Newmont Mining Corp., Strike Price USD 45, Expires 5/23/11
Noble Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 100, Expires 5/23/11
Occidental Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 100, Expires 5/23/11
Occidental Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 110, Expires 5/23/11
Occidental Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 100, Expires 5/27/11
Occidental Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 105, Expires 6/20/11
Olin Corp., Strike Price USD 22.50, Expires 5/23/11

Patriot Coal Corp., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11

Patriot Coal Corp., Strike Price USD 27, Expires 6/20/11
Patterson-UTI Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 27, Expires 5/23/11
Patterson-UTI Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 31, Expires 5/23/11
Peabody Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 75, Expires 5/23/11

Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 27, Expires 6/20/11
PetroChina Co. Ltd. ADR, Strike Price USD 140, Expires 5/23/11
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 5/23/11
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 27, Expires 5/23/11
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 29, Expires 5/23/11
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 28, Expires 6/20/11
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 27, Expires 6/20/11
Plains Exploration & Production Co., Strike Price USD 37, Expires 5/23/11
Plains Exploration & Production Co., Strike Price USD 36, Expires 5/23/11
Potash Corp. of Saskatchewan, Inc., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11
Potash Corp. of Saskatchewan, Inc., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 6/20/11
Range Resources Corp., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11
Range Resources Corp., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 6/20/11
Schlumberger Ltd., Strike Price USD 90, Expires 5/23/11
Schlumberger Ltd., Strike Price USD 95, Expires 5/23/11

Southern Copper Corp., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11
Southwestern Energy Co., Strike Price USD 43, Expires 5/23/11
Southwestern Energy Co., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 6/20/11
Southwestern Energy Co., Strike Price USD 41, Expires 6/20/11
Suncor Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 45, Expires 5/23/11

Suncor Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 46, Expires 5/23/11
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BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust (BCF)

(Percentage shown are based on net Assets)

Contracts

274
260
260
100
180
410
150
540
240
595
280
100
1
120
120
70
340
225
260
255
100
50
150
100
100
55
350
146
97
50
700
48
60
60
160
50
160
50
265
265
315
315
150
195
450
50
250
160
203
160
75
75

Value

$ (78,090)
(123,500)
(100,100)

(30,500)
(115,200)
(121,155)

(9,375)

(71,718)

(25,800)

(76,718)

(91,000)

(16,000)

(380)
(22,440)
(9,480)
(4,480)
(5,100)

(92,250)
(360,750)

(17,850)
(145,250)

(28,875)
(214,776)
(108,250)

(37,750)

(6,105)
(32,025)
(61,320)
(9,458)
(625)

(22,750)

(32,400)

(19,800)

(14,790)

(19,200)

(2,450)
(22,000)
(9,100)

(49,555)

(67,840)

(38,115)

(65,678)

(38,250)

(70,200)

(89,325)

(2,175)
(2,500)

(24,880)

(57,754)

(57,600)

(14,663)

(10,275)
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Suncor Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 45, Expires 6/20/11
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 5/23/11
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 5/23/11
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 6/20/11
Temple-Inland, Inc., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11
Temple-Inland, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 5/23/11
Ultra Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 49, Expires 6/20/11
United States Steel Corp., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 5/23/11
Vale SA  ADR, Strike Price USD 33, Expires 5/23/11

Vale SA ADR, Strike Price USD 34, Expires 5/23/11

Vale SA  ADR, Strike Price USD 32, Expires 6/20/11

Vale SA ADR, Strike Price USD 33, Expires 6/20/11
Weyerhaeuser Co., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 5/23/11
Weyerhaeuser Co., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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300
500
100
500
550
190
210
130
595
200
800
800
100
605

(79,650)
(37,500)
(1,000)
(48,750)
(13,750)
(9,975)
(67,200)
(4,160)
(63,070)
(11,200)
(172,400)
(122,800)
(500)
(3,021)
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Schedule of Investments (continued) BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust (BCF)

(Percentage shown are based on net Assets)

Options Written Contracts Value
Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (concluded)

Weyerhaeuser Co., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 7/18/11 850 $ (57,375
Whiting Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 5/23/11 200 (37,500)
Total Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (6,475,675)

Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (0.9) %

African Rainbow Minerals Ltd., Strike Price ZAR 222.67, Expires 5/04/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 46,000 (4,254)
African Rainbow Minerals Ltd., Strike Price ZAR 213.62, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets,

Inc. 46,000 (75,966)
Alamos Gold, Inc., Strike Price CAD 15, Expires 5/23/11, Broker Bank of Montreal 2,000 (232,521)
Alamos Gold, Inc., Strike Price CAD 15.50, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 2,000 (158,537)
Alamos Gold, Inc., Strike Price CAD 16, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 1,750 (97,104)
Alumina Ltd., Strike Price AUD 2.44, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 493,700 (5,893)
Angle Energy, Inc., Strike Price CAD 10.04, Expires 6/06/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 30,500 (10,200)
Angle Energy, Inc., Strike Price CAD 10.04, Expires 6/13/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 30,500 (11,658)
Anglo American Plc, Strike Price GBP 32.07, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Societe General Securities Corp. 32,400 (68,297)
Anglo Platinum Ltd., Strike Price ZAR 660.54, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 16,700 (86,188)
BHP Billiton Plc, Strike Price GBP 25.59, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 290,000 (402,263)
Bill Barrett Corp., Strike Price USD 43.32, Expires 5/18/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 26,000 (13,575)
Celanese Corp., Series A, Strike Price USD 40.82, Expires 5/05/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 34,000 (309,400)
Coal & Allied Industries Ltd., Strike Price AUD 126.21, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets,

Inc. 5,000 (34)
Crescent Point Energy Corp., Strike Price CAD 45.44, Expires 5/20/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co. 20,600 (1,552)
Crescent Point Energy Corp., Strike Price CAD 48, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 180 (1,617)
Crescent Point Energy Corp., Strike Price CAD 44, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities 150 (10,305)
E.L. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Strike Price USD 53, Expires 5/03/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 127,000 (481,330)
EQT Corp., Strike Price USD 48.83, Expires 5/27/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 5,000 (18,886)
EQT Corp., Strike Price USD 50.39, Expires 5/27/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 34,000 (82,017)
EQT Corp., Strike Price USD 46.84, Expires 6/17/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 10,000 (58,335)
Eramet, Strike Price EUR 265.29, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 2,500 (11,444)
Eramet, Strike Price EUR 268.59, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 2,500 (25,405)
Exxon Mobil Corp., Strike Price USD 83.08, Expires 5/09/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 12,700 (62,484)
Fibria Celulose SA  ADR, Strike Price USD 16.09, Expires 6/01/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 52,000 (28,598)
Fibria Celulose SA  ADR, Strike Price USD 16.01, Expires 6/30/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 52,000 (40,199)
First Quantum Minerals Ltd., Strike Price CAD 130, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 350 (335,703)
Fresnillo Plc, Strike Price GBP 16.38, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 82,500 (49,274)
Fresnillo Plc, Strike Price GBP 16.28, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 74,300 (126,869)
Galleon Energy, Inc., Class A, Strike Price CAD 3.75, Expires 7/06/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets,

Inc. 50,000 (8,455)
Harry Winston Diamond Corp., Strike Price CAD 14, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 230 (52,994)
Harry Winston Diamond Corp., Strike Price CAD 17, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 250 (5,813)
IAMGOLD Corp., Strike Price CAD 20, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities 160 (16,572)
IAMGOLD Corp., Strike Price CAD 21, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities 160 (10,231)
Iluka Resources Ltd., Strike Price AUD 12.06, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 492,900 (376,117)
Impala Platinum Holdings Ltd., Strike Price ZAR 196.90, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Societe General Securities

Corp. 168,000 (359,017)
Industrias Penoles SAB de CV, Strike Price MXN 432.02, Expires 5/26/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co. 41,500 (82,769)
Industrias Penoles SAB de CV, Strike Price MXN 445.49, Expires 6/02/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 42,700 (60,612)
Industrias Penoles SAB de CV, Strike Price MXN 445.49, Expires 6/14/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 42,700 (70,451)
Industrias Penoles SAB de CV, Strike Price MXN 445.49, Expires 6/28/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 42,700 (80,587)
Jiangxi Copper Co. Ltd., Class H, Strike Price HKD 25.91, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global

Markets, Inc. 552,000 (71,073)
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Kazakhmys Plc, Strike Price GBP 13.70, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

Massey Energy Co., Strike Price USD 65.55, Expires 6/03/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
MeadWestvaco Corp., Strike Price USD 29.60, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co.
MeadWestvaco Corp., Strike Price USD 33, Expires 5/31/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC

Minara Resources Ltd., Strike Price AUD 0.78, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
Minara Resources Ltd., Strike Price AUD 0.80, Expires 6/28/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Minsur SA, Strike Price PEN 4.14, Expires 5/10/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

Minsur SA, Strike Price PEN 4.14, Expires 5/26/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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259,450
259,500
319,500
319,500
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Schedule of Investments (continued) BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust (BCF)

(Percentage shown are based on net Assets)

Options Written Contracts Value
Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (continued)

Minsur SA, Strike Price PEN 2.93, Expires 6/02/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 639,000 $ (166,504)
MMC Norilsk Nickel JSC ADR, Strike Price USD 26.11, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 4,300 (6,424)
Mondi Plc, Strike Price GBP 5.86, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Societe General Securities Corp. 107,000 (48,772)
Newcrest Mining Ltd., Strike Price AUD 39.54, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 45,500 (112,542)
OGX Petroleo e Gas Participacoes SA, Strike Price BRL 17.32, Expires 6/02/11, Broker Goldman Sachs &

Co. 200,000 (104,072)
Olin Corp., Strike Price USD 25.25, Expires 6/17/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 50,000 (57,935)
OZ Minerals Ltd., Strike Price AUD 1.57, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 1,847,000 (5,694)
Peabody Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 72.73, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 22,500 (123)
Peabody Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 73.44, Expires 5/10/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 22,500 (1,012)
Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 28.94, Expires 5/03/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 41,500

PetroBakken Energy Ltd., Class A, Strike Price CAD 19, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities 120 (5,390)
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 24.92, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 10,000 (23,068)
Praxair, Inc., Strike Price USD 100.56, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co. 27,000 (158,220)
Praxair, Inc., Strike Price USD 98.86, Expires 5/13/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co. 27,400 (207,144)
Premier Oil Plc, Strike Price GBP 20.01, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 37,200 (51,856)
QEP Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 42.16, Expires 5/13/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 19,000 (19,687)
QEP Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 39.08, Expires 5/31/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 22,000 (82,413)
Rio Tinto Plc, Strike Price GBP 44.10, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 171,000 (448,134)
Seadrill Ltd., Strike Price NOK 210.59, Expires 5/03/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 31,300

Statoil ASA, Strike Price NOK 153.58, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 65,000 (51,584)
Technip SA, Strike Price EUR 73.11, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 8,900 (43,094)
Teck Resources Ltd., Class B, Strike Price CAD 54, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 435 (35,171)
Teck Resources Ltd., Class B, Strike Price CAD 55, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 515 (30,209)
Temple-Inland, Inc., Strike Price USD 23.29, Expires 6/10/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 35,500 (38,513)
Trican Well Service Ltd., Strike Price CAD 22, Expires 5/23/11, Broker Bank of Montreal 240 (37,415)
Trican Well Service Ltd., Strike Price CAD 23, Expires 5/23/11, Broker Bank of Montreal 240 (19,024)
Vedanta Resources Plc, Strike Price GBP 23.61, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Societe General Securities Corp. 143,000 (212,398)
Whiting Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 69.01, Expires 5/04/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 17,000 (22,376)
Whiting Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 65.84, Expires 5/09/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 20,000 (78,304)
Whiting Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 69.69, Expires 5/10/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 17,000 (22,978)
Xstrata Plc, Strike Price GBP 13.42, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 390,000 (1,260,074)
Zijin Mining Group Co. Ltd., Strike Price HKD 6.24, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 1,410,000 (12,324)
Total Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (8,128,373)
Total Options Written

(Premiums Received $10,523,272) (1.6)% (14,604,048)
Total Investments Net of Outstanding Options Written 98.8% 882,441,885
Other Assets in Excess of Liabilities 1.2% 10,581,104
Net Assets  100.0% $ 893,022,989

* The cost and unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments as of April 30, 2011 as computed for federal income tax purposes, were
as follows:
Aggregate cost $ 662,403,892
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Gross unrealized appreciation $ 242,383,052
Gross unrealized depreciation (7,741,011)
Net unrealized appreciation $ 234,642,041

Security, or a portion thereof, pledged/held as collateral for outstanding options written.
Non-income producing security.
Represents the current yield as of report date.

Investments in companies considered to be an affiliate of the Trust during the period, for purposes of Section 2(a)(3) of the Investment

Company Act of 1940, as amended, were as follows:

Shares/ Shares/
Beneficial Interest Beneficial Interest
Held at Held at
October 31, April 30,
Affiliate 2010 Net Activity 2011 Income
BlackRock Liquidity Funds, TempFund,
Institutional Class 22,448,837 (3,032,960) 19,415,877 $ 18,302
BlackRock Liquidity Series, LLC Money Market
Series 2,250,000 (2,250,000) $ 1,538
See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Schedule of Investments (concluded) BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust (BCF)

Foreign currency exchange contracts as of April 30, 2011 were as follows:

Unrealized
Currency Currency Settlement  Appreciation
Purchased Sold Counterparty Date (Depreciation)
USD 14,153 AUD 13,000  Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 5/03/11 $ (90)
USD 363,259 ZAR 2,443,000  Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 5/03/11 (8,697)
USD 39,942 GBP 24,000  Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 5/04/11 (144)
USD 40,169 CAD 38,000  Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 5/02/11 6
USD 45,219 CAD 43,000  RBS Securities, Inc. 5/02/11 (229)
Total $(9,154)

For Trust compliance purposes, the Trust s industry classifications refer to any one or more of the industry sub-classifications used by one
or more widely recognized market indexes or ratings group indexes, and/or as defined by Trust management. These definitions may not
apply for purposes of this report, which may combine industry sub-classifications for reporting ease.

Fair Value Measurements Various inputs are used in determining the fair value of investments and derivative financial instruments. These
inputs are summarized in three broad levels for financial statement purposes as follows:

Level 1 price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2  other observable inputs (including, but not limited to: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks
and default rates) or other market-corroborated inputs)

Level 3 unobservable inputs based on the best information available In the circumstances, to the extent observable inputs are not
available (including the Trust s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments and derivative financial
instruments)
The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities.
For information about the Trust s policy regarding valuation of investments and derivative financial instruments and other significant accounting
policies, please refer to Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements.

The following tables summarize the inputs used as of April 30, 2011 in determining the fair valuation of the Trust s investments and derivative
financial instruments:

Valuation Inputs Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:

Investments in Securities:

Long-Term Investments:

Common Stocks:

Table of Contents 136



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Chemicals $ 91,765,701 $ 91,765,701
Containers & Packaging 7,802,148 7,802,148
Energy Equipment & Services 49,236,678 $ 6,396,383 55,633,061
Machinery 34,566,969 34,566,969
Metals & Mining 156,810,295 230,336,154 387,146,449
Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 242,553,765 11,367,647 253,921,412
Paper & Forest Products 43,588,900 3,205,416 46,794,316
Short-Term Securities 19,415,877 19,415,877
Total $ 645,740,333 $ 251,305,600 $ 897,045,933
Valuation Inputs Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative Financial Instruments!

Assets:

Foreign currency exchange contracts $ 6 $ 6
Liabilities:

Equity contracts (6,513,965)  $(8,090,083) (14,604,048)
Foreign currency exchange contracts (9,160) (9,160)
Total $(6,523,119)  $(8,090,083) $(14,613,202)

Derivative financial instruments are foreign currency exchange contracts and options. Foreign currency exchange contracts are valued at
the unrealized appreciation/ depreciation on the instrument and options are shown at market value.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Schedule of Investments April 30, 2011 (Unaudited)

Common Stocks

Chemicals 5.6%

Agrium, Inc.

E.L. du Pont de Nemours & Co.
Israel Chemicals Ltd.

K+S AG

Monsanto Co. (a)

Mosaic Co. (The)

Potash Corp. of Saskatchewan, Inc.
Scotts Miracle-Gro Co. (The)
Uralkali GDR

Commercial Services & Supplies 0.2%
Alexco Resource Corp. (b)

Energy Equipment & Services 2.5%
Basic Energy Services, Inc. (b)
Calfrac Well Services Ltd.
Core Laboratories NV
Halliburton Co. (a)

Key Energy Services, Inc. (b)
Patterson-UTI Energy, Inc.
Schlumberger Ltd.

Seadrill Ltd.

Technip SA

Trican Well Service Ltd.

Food Products 1.3%
Archer-Daniels-Midland Co.

Bunge Ltd.

China Agri-industries Holdings Ltd.
SLC Agricola SA

Machinery 0.9%
AGCO Corp. (b)
Caterpillar, Inc. (a)
Deere & Co.

Metals & Mining 13.2%
Agnico-Eagle Mines Ltd. (a)
Augusta Resource Corp. (b)

Avalon Rare Metals, Inc. (b)
Centerra Gold, Inc.

Compass Minerals International, Inc.

Table of Contents

Shares

28,600
17,300
148,400
38,908
212,300
65,200
225,900
50,000
73,276

175,000

7,100

7,700
64,300
36,800
36,100
13,300
73,900
53,100

4,904
78,300

47,500
25,582
3,122,000
300,600

25,900
37,000
21,500

246,400
100,000
106,000
236,300

8,600

BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust (BCX)

(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Value

$ 2,586,298
982,467
2,633,940
3,142,423
14,444,892
4,880,872
12,736,242
2,823,500
3,089,327

47,319,961

1,678,250

218,254
272,387
6,171,514
1,857,664
657,020
413,763
6,632,525
1,883,878
553,320
1,929,880

20,590,205

1,758,450
1,929,906
3,572,808
3,779,474

11,040,638

1,491,322
4,270,170
2,096,250

7,857,742

17,144,512
457,000
966,845

4,395,582
839,446

138



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Eldorado Gold Corp. (a)
Franco-Nevada Corp.
Fresnillo Plc

Gold Resource Corp.
Goldcorp, Inc.

HudBay Minerals, Inc.

MAG Silver Corp. (b)

New Gold, Inc. (b)

Novagold Resources, Inc. (a)(b)
Pan American Silver Corp. (a)
Quadra FNX Mining Ltd. (b)
Seabridge Gold, Inc. (a)(b)
Silver Wheaton Corp. (a)
Silvercorp Metals, Inc. (a)
Titanium Metals Corp. (a)(b)
US Gold Corp. (a)(b)

Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 23.9%
Alpha Natural Resources, Inc. (a)(b)
Angle Energy, Inc. (b)

Apache Corp.

Arch Coal, Inc. (a)

Baytex Energy Corp.

Bill Barrett Corp. (b)

Bonavista Energy Corp.
Chesapeake Energy Corp. (a)
ConocoPhillips

Consol Energy, Inc. (a)
Continental Resources, Inc. (a)(b)
Crescent Point Energy Corp.
Denbury Resources, Inc. (a)(b)
Enbridge Energy Partners LP
Enterprise Products Partners LP
EOG Resources, Inc. (a)

EQT Corp.

Exxon Mobil Corp.

Forest Oil Corp. (b)

Galleon Energy, Inc., Class A (b)
Gasco Energy, Inc. (b)

James River Coal Co. (b)

Keyera Corp.

Magellan Midstream Partners LP
MarkWest Energy Partners LP
Massey Energy Co. (a)

Newfield Exploration Co. (b)
Noble Energy, Inc.

Occidental Petroleum Corp.

OGZX Petroleo e Gas Participacoes SA (b)
ONEOK Partners LP

Patriot Coal Corp. (b)

Peabody Energy Corp.

Penn West Petroleum Ltd. (a)
Permian Basin Royalty Trust
PetroBakken Energy Ltd., Class A
PetroChina Co. Ltd. ADR (a)
Petrohawk Energy Corp. (a)(b)
Plains All American Pipeline LP
Plains Exploration & Production Co. (b)
Premier Oil Plc (b)
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215,000
339,900
335,200

74,000

31,400
140,300
227,400
354,000
592,200
104,800
109,400
275,000
255,400
285,100
304,200
474,700

57,900
100,000
28,900
43,600
61,100
39,800
136,600
87,800
3,300
112,200
25,400
54,600
173,900
45,422
255,600
54,000
38,200
7,800
75,000
158,700
366,500
45,966
207,700
140,200
150,000
134,800
35,500
24,800
59,700
325,800
102,700
16,000
91,800
290,100
200,000
17,500
7,100
18,800
197,300
21,500
59,800

3,994,700
13,478,886
9,238,010
2,231,100
1,753,062
2,239,106
2,754,324
3,964,800
7,609,770
3,781,184
1,795,679
9,369,250
10,374,348
3,874,509
6,093,126
4,462,180

110,817,419

3,368,043
1,003,012
3,854,393
1,495,480
3,773,263
1,660,854
4,104,569
2,956,226
260,469
6,068,898
1,744,472
2,479,116
3,924,923
1,539,806
11,059,812
6,097,140
2,009,702
686,400
2,693,250
587,063
150,265
1,071,927
8,614,013
8,622,300
7,648,500
9,198,752
2,513,400
2,387,496
6,823,113
3,441,899
8,784,958
402,880
6,134,076
7,429,461
4,400,000
332,188
1,033,618
507,788
12,674,552
817,860
2,009,886
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Range Resources Corp. 54,000 3,048,300
Ship Finance International Ltd. 403,600 8,067,964
Southwestern Energy Co. (a)(b) 79,000 3,464,940
Statoil ASA 70,856 2,075,649
Talisman Energy, Inc. (a) 106,000 2,554,600
Targa Resources Partners LP 100,000 3,514,000
Vermilion Energy, Inc. 69,100 3,710,067
Whiting Petroleum Corp. (a)(b) 115,000 7,992,500
Williams Partners LP 173,573 9,685,376

200,479,219

Total Long-Term Investments
(Cost  $396,139,352) 47.6% 399,783,434

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Schedule of Investments (continued) Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust (BCX)
(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Short-Term Securities Shares Value
BlackRock Liquidity Funds, TempFund, Institutional Class, 0.10% (c)(d) 374,205,599 $ 374,205,599

Total Short-Term Securities
(Cost  $374,205,599) 44.5% 374,205,599

Total Investments Before Outstanding Options Written

(Cost  $770,344,951%) 92.1% 773,989,033
Options Written Contracts

Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (0.2)%

Agnico-Eagle Mines Ltd., Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 5/23/11 900 (283,500)
Alpha Natural Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11 200 (46,200)
Apache Corp., Strike Price USD 126.50, Expires 5/31/11 100 (81,379)
Arch Coal, Inc., Strike Price USD 37, Expires 5/23/11 160 (3,280)
Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 115, Expires 6/20/11 50 (21,500)
Chesapeake Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 34, Expires 6/20/11 155 (22,630)
Chesapeake Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 6/20/11 155 (16,120)
Consol Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11 215 (28,380)
Consol Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 5/23/11 150 (39,300)
Continental Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 5/23/11 90 (16,425)
Denbury Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 5/23/11 100 (1,000)
Denbury Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 6/20/11 500 (33,750)
Eldorado Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 18, Expires 5/23/11 100 (9,500)
EOG Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 115, Expires 6/20/11 190 (70,300)
Halliburton Co., Strike Price USD 48, Expires 5/23/11 100 (30,500)
Massey Energy Co., Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 5/23/11 235 (54.755)
Massey Energy Co., Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 6/20/11 235 (84,012)
Monsanto Co., Strike Price USD 71, Expires 6/20/11 620 (85,957)
Monsanto Co., Strike Price USD 72.50, Expires 6/20/11 100 (9,300)
Novagold Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 14, Expires 5/23/11 2,300 (28,750)
Occidental Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 102, Expires 5/31/11 210 (263,050)
Pan American Silver Corp., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11 300 (7,500)
Pan American Silver Corp., Strike Price USD 41, Expires 5/23/11 100 (3,500)
Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 6/20/11 250 (16,875)
PetroChina Co. Ltd. ADR, Strike Price USD 155, Expires 5/23/11 25 (1,375)
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 27, Expires 5/23/11 50 (6,000)
Petrohawk Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 28, Expires 6/20/11 50 (6,875)
Seabridge Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 5/23/11 1,400 (122,500)
Silver Wheaton Corp., Strike Price USD 47, Expires 5/23/11 325 (14,950)
Silver Wheaton Corp., Strike Price USD 48, Expires 5/23/11 325 (11,375)
Silvercorp Metals, Inc., Strike Price USD 15, Expires 5/23/11 1,000 (25,000)
Southwestern Energy Co., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11 300 (68,100)
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 5/23/11 190 (14,250)
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 6/20/11 190 (10,925)
Titanium Metals Corp., Strike Price USD 19, Expires 5/23/11 1,300 (191,750)
US Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 10, Expires 5/23/11 850 (23,375)
US Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 10, Expires 6/20/11 850 (51,000)
Whiting Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 6/20/11 200 (61,000)
Total Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (1,865,938)
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Exchange-Traded Put Options Written (0.2)%

Agrium, Inc., Strike Price USD 85, Expires 5/23/11

Allegheny Technologies, Inc., Strike Price USD 60, Expires 5/23/11
Allegheny Technologies, Inc., Strike Price USD 62.50, Expires 5/23/11
Allied Nevada Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 5/23/11
Apache Corp., Strike Price USD 120, Expires 5/23/11

Augusta Resource Corp., Strike Price USD 5, Expires 5/23/11
Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 109, Expires 5/12/11

Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 110, Expires 5/23/11

CF Industries Holdings, Inc., Strike Price USD 125, Expires 5/23/11
CF Industries Holdings, Inc., Strike Price USD 130, Expires 5/23/11
Compass Minerals International, Inc., Strike Price USD 90, Expires 5/23/11
Consol Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 50, Expires 5/02/11

Deere & Co., Strike Price USD 95, Expires 5/23/11

Energy XXI (Bermuda) Ltd., Strike Price USD 32, Expires 5/23/11
Energy XXI (Bermuda) Ltd., Strike Price USD 33, Expires 5/23/11
Enterprise Products Partners LP, Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11
Halliburton Co., Strike Price USD 45, Expires 5/23/11

Joy Global, Inc., Strike Price USD 95, Expires 5/23/11

Monsanto Co., Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 5/23/11

Monsanto Co., Strike Price USD 70, Expires 5/23/11

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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150
618
175
600
100
800
190
185
292
150
100
320
215
272
180
350
250
307
100
100

(10,500)
(9,270)
4,812)
(9,000)
(2,350)

(38,000)
(5,653)

(15,725)

(21,024)

(20,175)
(2,750)

(112)

(31,605)
(8,160)
(8,100)

(12,250)
(4,000)

(26,402)

(13,250)

(27.450)
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Schedule of Investments (continued)

BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust (BCX)

(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Options Written

Exchange-Traded Put Options Written (concluded)

Noble Corp., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11

Noble Corp., Strike Price USD 43, Expires 5/23/11

Novagold Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 12, Expires 5/23/11
Patriot Coal Corp., Strike Price USD 25, Expires 5/23/11

Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 25.75, Expires 5/09/11
Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 5/23/11
Plains Exploration & Production Co., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 5/23/11
QEP Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 40, Expires 5/23/11

Rio Tinto Plc, Strike Price USD 67.50, Expires 5/23/11

Scotts Miracle-Gro Co. (The), Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11
Seabridge Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 31, Expires 5/23/11
Seabridge Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 30, Expires 5/23/11

Silver Wheaton Corp., Strike Price USD 41, Expires 5/23/11

Silver Wheaton Corp., Strike Price USD 40, Expires 5/23/11

Silver Wheaton Corp., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11
Silvercorp Metals, Inc., Strike Price USD 15, Expires 5/23/11
Silvercorp Metals, Inc., Strike Price USD 13, Expires 5/23/11
Suncor Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 22, Expires 5/23/11
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 23, Expires 5/23/11
Talisman Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 24, Expires 6/20/11
Titanium Metals Corp., Strike Price USD 18, Expires 5/23/11

Ultra Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 46, Expires 5/23/11

Ultra Petroleum Corp., Strike Price USD 47, Expires 5/23/11

Total Exchange-Traded Put Options Written

Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (0.1) %

Angle Energy, Inc., Strike Price CAD 10.04, Expires 6/06/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Angle Energy, Inc., Strike Price CAD 10.04, Expires 6/13/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Bill Barrett Corp., Strike Price USD 43.32, Expires 5/18/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Centerra Gold, Inc., Strike Price CAD 18, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities

Centerra Gold, Inc., Strike Price CAD 18, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities

Core Laboratories NV, Strike Price USD 103.98, Expires 5/18/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston
Crescent Point Energy Corp., Strike Price CAD 44, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities
Franco-Nevada Corp., Strike Price CAD 38, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities

Franco-Nevada Corp., Strike Price CAD 40, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities

Fresnillo Plc, Strike Price GBP 16.00, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Galleon Energy, Inc., Class A, Strike Price CAD 3.81, Expires 6/28/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
MAG Silver Corp., Strike Price CAD 12.50, Expires 6/10/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC

New Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 11.49, Expires 5/05/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
New Gold, Inc., Strike Price USD 11.60, Expires 5/18/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
OGX Petroleo e Gas Participacoes SA, Strike Price BRL 20.07, Expires 6/02/11, Broker Goldman Sachs &
Co.

Peabody Energy Corp., Strike Price USD 67, Expires 6/08/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 26.50, Expires 6/22/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC
Penn West Petroleum Ltd., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 6/30/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
PetroBakken Energy Ltd., Class A, Strike Price CAD 18.64, Expires 6/08/11, Broker Deutsche Bank
Securities Corp.

Premier Oil Plc, Strike Price GBP 20.25, Expires 6/23/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
Schlumberger Ltd., Strike Price USD 92.50, Expires 6/01/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Seadrill Ltd., Strike Price NOK 202.83, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
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Contracts

315
105
500
155
540
540
215
150
468
1,700
1,200
250
1,000
950
250
500
2,500
250
100
100
400
600
165
165

17,500
17,500
14,000
420
420
23,000
180
600
600
118,000
53,000
80,000
62,000
62,000

115,000
32,000
25,000
38,000

6,000
20,000
26,000
19,000

$

Value

(24,098)
(12,548)
(7,500)
(14,648)
(24,425)
(44,550)
(6,342)
(4,125)
(14,040)
(195,500)
(39,000)
(5,000)
(239,500)
(179,550)
(74,500)
(82,500)
(106,250)
(5,750)
(1,500)
(3,000)
(40,000)
(12,000)
(4,125)
(5,775)

(1,416,814)

(5,852)
(6,689)
(7,309)
(25,524)
(38,842)
(4,225)
(12,366)
(50,732)
(31,707)
(162,948)
(6,380)
(38,147)
(9,027)
(18,574)

(14,608)
(80,456)
(10,290)
(25,536)

(2,806)
(25,334)
(39,768)

(1,072)
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Ship Finance International Ltd., Strike Price USD 21.27, Expires 5/26/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston
Ship Finance International Ltd., Strike Price USD 21, Expires 6/24/11, Broker Banc of America Securities
SLC Agricola SA, Strike Price BRL 22.54, Expires 6/14/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

SLC Agricola SA, Strike Price BRL 22.54, Expires 6/28/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

SLC Agricola SA, Strike Price BRL 22.54, Expires 6/30/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

Trican Well Service Ltd., Strike Price CAD 22.03, Expires 5/31/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.

Total Over-the-Counter Call Options Written

Over-the-Counter Put Options Written (0.0) %
Allied Nevada Gold Corp., Strike Price USD 36, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Augusta Resource Corp., Strike Price USD 4.50, Expires 5/20/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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135,000
20,000
31,500
31,500
31,500
27,000

25,000
320,000

2011

(8,459)
(7,500)
(2,414)
(3,744)
(3,938)
(42,799)

(687,046)

(822)
(75,091)
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Schedule of Investments (continued) BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust (BCX)
(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Options Written Contracts Value
Over-the-Counter Put Options Written (concluded)

Cenovus Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 37.75, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 23,300 $ 9,271)
Cenovus Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 38, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 23,200 (11,499)
Cenovus Energy, Inc., Strike Price USD 37.22, Expires 6/08/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 15,500 (13,950)
CF Industries Holdings, Inc., Strike Price USD 130, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 1,428 (874)
Crescent Point Energy Corp., Strike Price CAD 42, Expires 5/23/11, Broker Bank of Montreal 330 (15,695)
EQT Corp., Strike Price USD 48.50, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 19,300 (315)
HudBay Minerals, Inc., Strike Price CAD 15.50, Expires 5/06/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 50,000 (27,304)
HudBay Minerals, Inc., Strike Price CAD 16.27, Expires 5/06/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 75,000 (93,662)
HudBay Minerals, Inc., Strike Price CAD 15, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 1,250 (59.451)
MAG Silver Corp., Strike Price CAD 12, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 500 (46,240)
Plains Exploration & Production Co., Strike Price USD 35, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co.,

Inc. 21,800 (2,575)
QEP Resources, Inc., Strike Price USD 40, Expires 5/12/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 31,300 (2,436)
Quadra FNX Mining Ltd., Strike Price CAD 14, Expires 5/06/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 50,000 (521)
Quadra FNX Mining Ltd., Strike Price CAD 13, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 500 2,114)
Syngenta AG, Strike Price CHF 296.55, Expires 5/06/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 15,000 (13,409)
Syngenta AG, Strike Price CHF 300, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 15,000 (55,583)
Vermilion Energy, Inc., Strike Price CAD 50, Expires 5/23/11, Broker Bank of Montreal 120 (12,368)
Total Over-the-Counter Put Options Written (443,180)
Total Options Written

(Premiums Received $5,293,339) (0.5)% (4,412,978)
Total Investments Net of Outstanding Options Written 91.6% 769,576,055
Other Assets in Excess of Liabilities 8.4% 70,277,142
Net Assets 100.0% $ 839,853,197

* The cost and unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments as of April 30, 2011 as computed for federal income tax purposes, were

as follows:

Aggregate cost $ 770,344,951

Gross unrealized appreciation $ 9,826,049

Gross unrealized depreciation (6,181,967)
Net unrealized appreciation $ 3,644,082

(a)  Security, or a portion thereof, pledged/held as collateral for outstanding options written.

(b) Non-income producing security.

(c) Investments in companies considered to be an affiliate of the Trust during the period, for purposes of Section 2(a)(3) of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, were as follows:

Affiliate Income
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Shares
Held at

March 30,

2011

BlackRock Liquidity Funds, TempFund, Institutional Class

(d) Represents the current yield as of report date.

Foreign currency exchange contracts as of April 30, 2011 were as follows:

Currency
Purchased

CAD 1,816,000
CAD 845,000
CAD 9,447,000
GBP 554,000
HKD 8,918,000
NOK 7,640,000
USD 268,319
USD 90,909

Total

Currency
Sold
USD 1,909,258
USD 885,267
USD 9,936,512
USD 917,191
USD 1,147,666
USD 1,458,606
GBP 162,000
CAD 86,000

Counterparty

Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Deutsche bank Securities Corp.
Deutsche bank Securities Corp.
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Net Shares
Activity Held at
April 30,
2011
374,205,599 374,205,599 $51,181
Unrealized
Settlement Appreciation
Date (Depreciation)
5/03/11 $ 9,965
5/02/11 7,826
5/03/11 47,465
5/03/11 8,141
5/03/11 650
5/04/11 (2,768)
5/03/11 (2,264)
5/02/11 14
$ 69,029

For Trust compliance purposes, the Trust s industry classifications refer to any one or more of the industry sub-classifications used by one
or more widely recognized market indexes or ratings group indexes, and/or as defined by Trust management. These definitions may not
apply for purposes of this report, which may combine industry sub-classifications for reporting ease.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Schedule of Investments (concluded)

BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust (BCX)

Fair Value Measurements Various inputs are used in determining the fair value of investments and derivative financial instruments. These
inputs are summarized in three broad levels for financial statement purposes as follows:

Level 1 price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2  other observable inputs (including, but not limited to: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks

and default rates) or other market-corroborated inputs)

Level 3 unobservable inputs based on the best information available In the circumstances, to the extent observable inputs are not
available (including the Trust s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments and derivative financial

instruments)

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities.
For information about the Trust s policy regarding valuation of investments and derivative financial instruments and other significant accounting

policies, please refer to Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements.

The following tables summarize the inputs used as of April 30, 2011 in determining the fair valuation of the Trust s investments and derivative

financial instruments:

Valuation Inputs

Assets:

Investments in Securities:
Long-Term Investments:
Common Stocks:

Chemicals

Commercial Services & Supplies
Energy Equipment & Services
Food Products

Machinery

Metals & Mining

Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels
Short-Term Securities

Total

Valuation Inputs

Assets:

Foreign currency exchange contracts
Liabilities:

Equity contracts

Foreign currency exchange contracts

Total

Table of Contents

Level 1 Level 2
$ 38,454,271 $ 8,865,690
1,678,250
18,153,007 2,437,198
7,467,830 3,572,808
7,857,742
101,579,409 9,238,010
196,393,684 4,085,535
374,205,599
$ 745,789,792 $ 28,199,241
Level 1 Level 2
$ 74,061

(3,117,214)  $(1,295,764)

(5,032)

$(3,048,185) $(1,295,764)

Level 3

Total

$ 47,319,961
1,678,250
20,590,205
11,040,638
7,857,742
110,817,419
200,479,219
374,205,599

$ 773,989,033

Derivative Financial Instruments’
Level 3

Total
$ 74,061

(4,412,978)
(5,032)

$ (4,343,949)
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Derivative financial instruments are foreign currency exchange contracts and options. Foreign currency exchange contracts are vauled at
the unrealized appreciation/depreciation on the instrument and options are shown at value.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Schedule of Investments April 30, 2011 (Unaudited) BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity Managed Trust (BQY)

(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Common Stocks Shares Value
Australia 5.2%
Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd. 22,700 $ 604,664
BHP Billiton Ltd. ADR 17,425 882,217
Foster s Group Ltd. 113,300 699,269
National Australia Bank Ltd. 43,100 1,283,201
Santos Ltd. 84,300 1,400,930
4,870,281

Belgium 1.0%

Mobistar SA 5,120 379,858
Solvay SA 3,900 562,299
942,157

Canada 6.7%

Bank of Montreal 22,300 1,464,590
Bank of Nova Scotia 12,900 786,557
Enbridge, Inc. 14,650 952,254
National Bank of Canada 6,300 521,632
Royal Bank of Canada 27,700 1,744,882
Suncor Energy, Inc. 3,950 182,064
TransCanada Corp. 12,300 529,232

6,181,211

Finland 0.6%
Kesko Oyj, Class B 10,200 529,340

France 4.6%

Bouygues SA 10,400 517,561
PPR 1,715 306,619
Sanofi SA 4,600 363,939
Schneider Electric SA 4,970 878,066
Societe Generale 4,300 287,360
Total SA 16,000 1,024,664
Vinci SA 13,100 874,446

4,252,655

Germany 3.8%

Allianz SE 5,300 832,690
BASF SE 12,700 1,304,088
RWE AG 4,200 274,059
SAP AG 7,250 467,118
Siemens AG 4,400 640,020

3,517,975

Hong Kong 2.2%
Esprit Holdings Ltd. 67,460 281,534
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Hang Seng Bank Ltd. 20,400 318,854
Hopewell Holdings Ltd. 178,000 538,238
Power Assets Holdings Ltd. 126,600 886,526
2,025,152
Italy 1.9%
Enel SpA 65,200 464,964
ENI SpA 47,000 1,258,363
1,723,327
Japan 4.1%
Canon, Inc. 10,900 513,309
Hitachi Koki Co. Ltd. 36,400 333,423
Mitsui & Co. Ltd. 48,800 868,400
Oracle Corp. 13,600 589,326
Ricoh Co. Ltd. 49,000 540,741
Sharp Corp. 36,000 331,223
Takeda Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. 13,900 673,633
3,850,055

Netherlands 0.4%
Koninklijke KPN NV 26,000 412,634

Portugal 0.5%
Portugal Telecom SGPS SA 39,500 483,396

Singapore 1.7%

Keppel Corp. Ltd. 70,400 685,558
K-Green Trust 14,200 12,064
Singapore Technologies Engineering Ltd. 165,000 425,210
United Overseas Bank Ltd. 25,400 407,540
1,530,372
Spain 1.8%
ACS Actividades de Construccion y Servicios SA 7,900 397,428
Banco Santander SA 43,700 558,071
Iberdrola SA 41,727 386,955
Indra Sistemas SA 15,900 360,636
1,703,090

Sweden 4.2%

Axfood AB 8,900 326,987
Hennes & Mauritz AB, Class B 27,200 961,308
Ratos AB, Class B 22,700 938,207
Scania AB, Class B 45,700 1,187,293
TeliaSonera AB 58,800 479,864

3,893,659

Switzerland 0.9%

Nestle SA 6,800 422,065
Zurich Financial Services AG (a) 1,424 400,398
822,463
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United Kingdom 7.8%
AstraZeneca Plc

Barclays Plc  ADR

BHP Billiton Plc

British American Tobacco Plc
GlaxoSmithKline Plc

HSBC Holdings Plc

Man Group Plc

Royal Dutch Shell Plc, Class A ADR
Scottish & Southern Energy Plc
Standard Chartered Plc

United States 47.1%

3M Co.

Abbott Laboratories

Aflac, Inc. (b)

Altria Group, Inc.

Ameren Corp.

American Express Co. (b)
AT&T Inc.

Automatic Data Processing, Inc. (b)
Bank of America Corp. (b)
Bristol-Myers Squibb Co. (b)
Caterpillar, Inc. (b)
CenturyLink, Inc. (b)
Chevron Corp. (b)

Chubb Corp.

Cincinnati Financial Corp.
Coca-Cola Co. (The)
Consolidated Edison, Inc.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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17,700
53,300
14,150
17,300
32,425
128,100
76,400
16,200
35,000
33,550

6,100
13,200

8,500
49,100
26,000
11,000
77,250
10,800
22,300
46,300
12,650
15,500
19,625

7,400
14,500
12,700
18,200

878,232
253,388
598,260
755,956
708,322
1,397,295
319,722
625,795
794,034
932,413

7,263,417

592,981
686,928
477,615
1,317,844
762,060
539,880
2,404,020
586,980
273,844
1,301,030
1,459,936
632,090
2,147,760
482,406
459,360
856,742
948,584
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Schedule of Investments (continued) BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity Managed Trust (BQY)

(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Common Stocks Shares Value
United States (concluded)
Dominion Resources, Inc. 10,500 $ 487,410
Eaton Vance Corp. 13,400 452,518
Emerson Electric Co. (b) 30,300 1,841,028
Equity Residential REIT (b) 12,600 752,472
Exxon Mobil Corp. 31,700 2,789,600
General Electric Co. 61,500 1,257,675
Genuine Parts Co. (b) 7,600 408,120
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) (b) 3,450 520,984
HCP, Inc. REIT 13,825 547,748
Health Care REIT, Inc. 12,700 682,879
Hewlett-Packard Co. (b) 7,500 302,775
Home Depot, Inc. (b) 13,800 512,532
Hudson City Bancorp, Inc. (b) 30,625 291,856
Intel Corp. 50,100 1,161,819
International Business Machines Corp. (b) 9,125 1,556,542
Johnson & Johnson (b) 8,900 584,908
Kraft Foods, Inc., Class A 14,808 497,253
Liberty Property Trust REIT 9,400 330,598
M&T Bank Corp. (b) 5,700 503,709
McDonald s Corp. (b) 15,500 1,213,805
Merck & Co., Inc. (b) 22,200 798,090
MetLife, Inc. (b) 9,400 439,826
Microchip Technology, Inc. (b) 22,300 915,192
Microsoft Corp. (b) 44,300 1,152,686
Nationwide Health Properties, Inc. 16,925 741,315
PepsiCo, Inc. (b) 9,800 675,122
Pfizer, Inc. (b) 33,900 710,544
Philip Morris International, Inc. 13,900 965,216
PPG Industries, Inc. 8,600 814,162
Reynolds American, Inc. (b) 15,300 567,783
Southern Co. (The) 11,200 437,248
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (b) 7,300 469,025
United Technologies Corp. (b) 12,000 1,074,960
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (b) 11,300 621,274
Wells Fargo & Co. (b) 25,700 748,127
43,756,861

Total Long-Term Investments
(Cost  $79,711,392) 94.5% 87,758,045

Short-Term Securities
BlackRock Liquidity Funds, TempFund, Institutional Class, 0.10% (c)(d) 7,179,686 7,179,686

Total Short-Term Securities
(Cost  $7,179,686) 7.7% 7,179,686

Total Investments Before Outstanding Options Written
(Cost  $86,891,078*%) 102.2% 94,937,731
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Options Written Contracts

Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (0.6) %

3M Co., Strike Price USD 91.30, Expires 6/03/11

Abbott Laboratories, Strike Price USD 51.10, Expires 5/23/11

Aflac, Inc., Strike Price USD 55, Expires 5/23/11

Ameren Corp., Strike Price USD 29, Expires 6/06/11

American Express Co., Strike Price USD 47, Expires 5/23/11

AT&T Inc., Strike Price USD 30.80, Expires 5/23/11

Automatic Data Processing, Inc., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 6/20/11
Bank of America Corp., Strike Price USD 13, Expires 6/20/11
Bristol-Myers Squibb Co., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 5/23/11
Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 106.50, Expires 5/23/11

Caterpillar, Inc., Strike Price USD 110, Expires 5/23/11

CenturyLink, Inc., Strike Price USD 40, Expires 5/23/11

Chevron Corp., Strike Price USD 110, Expires 5/23/11

Chubb Corp., Strike Price USD 62, Expires 6/20/11

Cincinnati Financial Corp., Strike Price USD 33.50, Expires 5/26/11
Consolidated Edison, Inc., Strike Price USD 50.75, Expires 6/06/11
Eaton Vance Corp., Strike Price USD 31.75, Expires 5/05/11

Emerson Electric Co., Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11

Equity Residential ~REIT, Strike Price USD 57.50, Expires 5/23/11
Exxon Mobil Corp., Strike Price USD 82.50, Expires 5/23/11

Genuine Parts Co., Strike Price USD 50, Expires 5/23/11

Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The), Strike Price USD 165, Expires 5/23/11
HCP, Inc. REIT, Strike Price USD 37.50, Expires 5/18/11
Hewlett-Packard Co., Strike Price USD 42, Expires 5/23/11
Hewlett-Packard Co., Strike Price USD 43, Expires 5/23/11

Home Depot, Inc., Strike Price USD 37, Expires 5/23/11

Hudson City Bancorp, Inc., Strike Price USD 10, Expires 5/23/11

Intel Corp., Strike Price USD 20.25, Expires 5/26/11

International Business Machines Corp., Strike Price USD 165, Expires 5/23/11
Johnson & Johnson, Strike Price USD 60, Expires 5/23/11

Liberty Property Trust REIT, Strike Price USD 32.75, Expires 5/03/11
M&T Bank Corp., Strike Price USD 90, Expires 6/20/11

McDonald s Corp., Strike Price USD 77.50, Expires 6/20/11

Merck & Co., Inc., Strike Price USD 34, Expires 5/23/11

Merck & Co., Inc., Strike Price USD 34, Expires 5/31/11

MetLife, Inc., Strike Price USD 44, Expires 5/23/11

MetLife, Inc., Strike Price USD 44, Expires 6/20/11

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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25
50
34

105
45
70
44
90

185
25
25
60
80
20
60
73
54

120
50
60
30
14
56
15
15
55

125

175
35
35
38
23
60
45
45
10
10

(14,848)
(6,252)
(6,188)
(5,538)

(10,822)
(3,963)

(10,450)
(1,665)

(40,515)

(22,961)

(15,687)
(7,350)

(11,600)
(6,870)
(1,461)

(10,427)

(11,375)

(41,400)

(12,625)

(33,494)
(8,925)

(203)
(11,872)
(623)
(330)
(4,785)
(1,250)

(50,750)

(20,737)

(20,125)
(9,196)
(3,392)

(10,590)
(9,225)
(8,920)
(3,050)
(3,400)

153



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Conten

Schedule of Investments (continued) BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity Managed Trust (BQY)

(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Options Written

Exchange-Traded Call Options Written (concluded)

MetLife, Inc., Strike Price USD 45, Expires 5/23/11

Microchip Technology, Inc., Strike Price USD 38, Expires 5/23/11
Microsoft Corp., Strike Price USD 26, Expires 5/23/11
Nationwide Health Properties, Inc., Strike Price USD 43, Expires 5/31/11
PepsiCo, Inc., Strike Price USD 65, Expires 5/23/11

Pfizer, Inc., Strike Price USD 20, Expires 5/23/11

Reynolds American, Inc., Strike Price USD 37, Expires 6/20/11

T. Rowe Price Group, Inc., Strike Price USD 65, Expires 6/20/11
United Technologies Corp., Strike Price USD 85, Expires 5/23/11
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., Strike Price USD 52.50, Expires 5/23/11
Wells Fargo & Co., Strike Price USD 31, Expires 5/23/11

Total Exchange-Traded Call Options Written

Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (0.9) %

ACS Actividades de Construccion y Servicios SA, Strike Price EUR 32.78, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Morgan
Stanley & Co., Inc.

Allianz SE, Strike Price EUR 101.36, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

Altria Group, Inc., Strike Price USD 26.78, Expires 6/08/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
AstraZeneca Plc, Strike Price GBP 29.57, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

AT&T Inc., Strike Price USD 28.50, Expires 5/09/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd., Strike Price AUD 23.87, Expires 5/11/11, Broker JPMorgan
Chase Securities

Axfood AB, Strike Price SEK 234.36, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

Banco Santander SA, Strike Price EUR 8.26, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

Bank of Montreal, Strike Price CAD 64, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities

Bank of Nova Scotia, Strike Price CAD 58, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities

Barclays Plc - ADR, Strike Price GBP 3.09, Expires 5/03/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

BASEF SE, Strike Price EUR 62.11, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

BHP Billiton Ltd. - ADR, Strike Price AUD 45.50, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
BHP Billiton Plc, Strike Price GBP 25.59, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Bouygues SA, Strike Price EUR 33.53, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

British American Tobacco Plc, Strike Price GBP 24.61, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc.
Chubb Corp., Strike Price USD 64.51, Expires 6/13/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

Coca-Cola Co. (The), Strike Price USD 65.79, Expires 5/10/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Dominion Resources, Inc, Strike Price USD 45.13, Expires 5/06/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co.
Enbridge, Inc., Strike Price CAD 60, Expires 5/23/11, Broker Bank of Montreal

Enel SpA, Strike Price EUR 4.34, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.

ENI SpA, Strike Price EUR 17.51, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston

Esprit Holdings Ltd., Strike Price HKD 35.85, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

Exxon Mobil Corp., Strike Price USD 83.08, Expires 5/09/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC

Foster s Group Ltd., Strike Price AUD 5.77, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
General Electric Co., Strike Price USD 20.37, Expires 5/20/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co.
GlaxoSmithKline Ple, Strike Price GBP 11.96, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc.

Hang Seng Bank Ltd., Strike Price HKD 127.16, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Health Care REIT, Inc., Strike Price USD 52.15, Expires 5/03/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.
Hennes & Mauritz AB, Class B, Strike Price SEK 202.61, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets,
Inc.

Hitachi Koki Co. Ltd., Strike Price JPY 774.67, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Hopewell Holdings Ltd., Strike Price HKD 23.18, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
HSBC Holdings Plc, Strike Price GBP 6.73, Expires 5/03/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

Iberdrola SA, Strike Price EUR 6.13, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Societe General Securities Corp.
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Contracts

18
90
180
68
40
20
61
30
48
45
100

3,200
2,200
19,500
7,000
24,000

9,000
3,600
17,500
90

52
21,400
5,100
7,000
5,700
4,200
7,000
1,000
5,000
4,000
58
26,000
18,800
27,000
6,500
45,300
24,600
13,000
8,200
5,000

10,900
14,600
71,000
51,300
17,000

Value

$ (3,969)
(27,900)
(7,110)
(8,451)
(15,800)
(2,120)
(4,880)
(4,875)
(22,800)
(11,340)
(650)

(552,759)

(5,616)
(17,886)
(7,101)
(6,785)
(62,880)

(5,706)
(601)
(14,367)
(1,237)
(7,062)
(134)
(53,083)
(8,788)
(7,907)
(5,466)
(18,168)
(1,439)
(8,498)
(5,183)
(10,881)
(18,405)
(18,107)
(942)
(31,980)
(1,877)
(9,976)
(24,314)
(51)
(8,100)

(21,522)
(1,853)
(4,181)

(583)
(6,652)
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Indra Sistemas SA, Strike Price EUR 14.61, Expires 6/15/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Intel Corp., Strike Price USD 20.49, Expires 5/20/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co.

Keppel Corp. Ltd., Strike Price SGD 11.07, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp.
Kesko Oyj, Class B, Strike Price EUR 31.73, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc.
Koninklijke KPN NV, Strike Price EUR 12.19, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston
Kraft Foods, Inc., Class A, Strike Price USD 31.78, Expires 5/27/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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6,400
2,500
28,600
4,000
10,400
3,000

2011

(8,070)
(6,650)
(19,783)
(20,031)
(23)
(5,542)
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Schedule of Investments (continued) BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity Managed Trust (BQY)

(Percentages shown are based on Net Assets)

Options Written Contracts Value
Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (continued)

Kraft Foods, Inc., Class A, Strike Price USD 32.92, Expires 6/14/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co. 3,000 $ (3,194)
Man Group Plc, Strike Price GBP 2.50, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 31,000 4,070)
Mitsui & Co. Ltd., Strike Price JPY 1,494.80, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 19,600 (3,223)
Mobistar SA, Strike Price EUR 47.25, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 2,100 (8,895)
National Australia Bank Ltd., Strike Price AUD 25.75, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 17,300 (26,922)
National Bank of Canada, Strike Price CAD 78, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 25 (3,541)
Nestle SA, Strike Price CHF 53.25, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 2,800 (3,533)
Oracle Corp., Strike Price JPY 3,439.05, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 5,500 (8,497)
Pfizer, Inc., Strike Price USD 20.53, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Goldman Sachs & Co. 3,000 2,177)
Pfizer, Inc., Strike Price USD 20.50, Expires 5/31/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 9,000 (7,111)
Philip Morris International, Inc., Strike Price USD 63.16, Expires 5/05/11, Broker JPMorgan Chase

Securities 5,600 (35,182)
Portugal Telecom SGPS SA, Strike Price EUR 8.28, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 15,800 (4,509)
Power Assets Holdings Ltd., Strike Price HKD 52.22, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 50,700 (14,514)
PPG Industries, Inc., Strike Price USD 89.28, Expires 5/10/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 3,500 (18,865)
PPR, Strike Price EUR 115, Expires 5/20/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 6 (5,818)
Ratos AB, Class B, Strike Price SEK 122.31, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 9,100 (14,284)
Ricoh Co. Ltd., Strike Price JPY 901.93, Expires 6/28/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 20,000 (11,021)
Royal Bank of Canada, Strike Price CAD 60, Expires 6/20/11, Broker T.D. Securities 110 (14,242)
Royal Dutch Shell Plc, Class A ADR, Strike Price EUR 25.94, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Credit Suisse First

Boston 6,500 (3,234)
RWE AG, Strike Price EUR 47.07, Expires 6/07/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 1,700 (398)
Sanofi SA, Strike Price EUR 47.62, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 1,800 (15,491)
Santos Ltd., Strike Price AUD 15.73, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 33,800 (3,499)
SAP AG, Strike Price EUR 45.93, Expires 6/15/11, Broker UBS Securities LLC 2,900 913)
Scania AB, Class B, Strike Price SEK 143.10, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 18,300 (42,349)
Schneider Electric SA, Strike Price EUR 120.52, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 2,000 (7,208)
Scottish & Southern Energy Plc, Strike Price GBP 12.17, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 14,000 (33,096)
Sharp Corp., Strike Price JPY 833.25, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 15,000 (344)
Siemens AG, Strike Price EUR 90.51, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 1,800 (20,761)
Singapore Technologies Engineering Ltd., Strike Price SGD 3.16, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Deutsche Bank

Securities Corp. 67,575 (2,549)
Societe Generale, Strike Price EUR 45.46, Expires 5/16/11, Broker Barclays Capital, Inc. 1,800 (3,080)
Solvay SA, Strike Price EUR 82.66, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 1,600 (34,835)
Southern Co. (The), Strike Price USD 38.43, Expires 6/06/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 2,000 (1,436)
Southern Co. (The), Strike Price USD 38.90, Expires 6/16/11, Broker JPMorgan Chase Securities 2,500 (1,324)
Standard Chartered Plc, Strike Price GBP 16.51, Expires 5/04/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 13,400 (5,116)
Suncor Energy, Inc., Strike Price CAD 46, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 16 (736)
Takeda Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., Strike Price JPY 3,923.85, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Citigroup Global

Markets, Inc. 5,600 (4,041)
TeliaSonera AB, Strike Price SEK 53.38, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 23,600 (1,263)
Total SA, Strike Price EUR 42.36, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 6,400 (11,612)
TransCanada Corp., Strike Price CAD 40, Expires 5/23/11, Broker T.D. Securities 49 (4,790)
United Overseas Bank Ltd., Strike Price SGD 18.79, Expires 5/11/11, Broker Deutsche Bank Securities Corp. 10,000 (7,012)
Vinci SA, Strike Price EUR 43.43, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Credit Suisse First Boston 5,300 (12,877)
Zurich Financial Services AG, Strike Price CHF 256.88, Expires 5/25/11, Broker Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. 570 (806)
Total Over-the-Counter Call Options Written (865,798)
Total Options Written

(Premiums

Received $751,576) (1.5)% (1,418,557)
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Total Investments Net of

Outstanding Options

Written 100.7 % 93,519,174

Liabilities in Excess of Other

Assets  (0.7)% (618,396)
Net Assets  100.0% $ 92,900,778

* The cost and unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments as of April 30, 2011 as computed for federal income tax purposes, were

as follows:

Aggregate cost $ 88,158,573
Gross unrealized appreciation $ 8,888,278
Gross unrealized depreciation (2,109,120)
Net unrealized appreciation $ 6,779,158

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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T f Conten

Schedule of Investments (concluded) BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity Managed Trust (BQY)
(a) Non-income producing security.

(b) Security, or a portion thereof, pledged/held as collateral for outstanding options written.

(c) Represents the current yield as of report date.

(d) Investments in companies considered to be an affiliate of the Trust during the period, for purposes of Section 2(a)(3) of the Investment

Company Act of 1940, as amended, were as follows:

Shares Shares
Held at Held at
October 31, April 30,
Affiliate 2010 Net Activity 2011 Income
BlackRock Liquidity Funds, TempFund, Institutional Class 5,624,436 1,555,250 7,179,686 $ 4,707
Foreign currency exchange contracts as of April 30, 2011 were as follows:
Currency Settlement  Unrealized
Currency Purchased Sold Counterparty Date Depreciation
Deutsche Bank

USD 10,202 JPY 830,000 Securities Corp. 5/09/11 $ (31)
USD 6,310 CAD 6,000 RBS Securities, Inc. 5/02/11 32)
Total $ (63)

For Trust compliance purposes, the Trust s industry classifications refer to any one or more of the industry sub-classifications used by one
or more widely recognized market indexes or ratings group indexes, and/or as defined by Trust management. These definitions may not
apply for purposes of this report, which may combine industry sub-classifications for reporting ease.

Fair Value Measurements Various inputs are used in determining the fair value of investments and derivative financial instruments. These
inputs are summarized in three broad levels for financial statement purposes as follows:

Level 1 price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2  other observable inputs (including, but not limited to: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks
and default rates) or other market-corroborated inputs)

Level 3 unobservable inputs based on the best information available In the circumstances, to the extent observable inputs are not
available (including the Trust s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments and derivative financial
instruments)

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities.
For information about the Trust s policy regarding valuation of investments and derivative financial instruments and other significant accounting
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The following tables summarize the inputs used as of April 30, 2011 in determining the fair valuation of the Trust s investments and derivative

financial instruments:

Valuation Inputs
Assets:

Investments in Securities:
Long-Term Investments:

Common Stocks:
Australia
Belgium

Canada

Finland

France

Germany

Hong Kong

Italy

Japan
Netherlands
Portugal
Singapore

Spain

Sweden
Switzerland
United Kingdom
United States
Short-Term Securities

Total

Valuation Inputs
Liabilities:
Equity contracts

Foreign currency exchange contracts

Total

See Notes to Financial Statements.
SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT
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Level 1

$ 379,858
6,181,211

741,177

412,634

397,428
326,987

43,756,861
7,179,686

$ 59,375,842

Level 2

$ 4,870,281
562,299

529,340
4,252,655
2,776,798
2,025,152
1,723,327
3,850,055

483,396
1,530,372
1,305,662
3,566,672

822,463
7,263,417

$ 35,561,889

Level 3

Total

$ 4,870,281
942,157
6,181,211
529,340
4,252,655
3,517,975
2,025,152
1,723,327
3,850,055
412,634
483,396
1,530,372
1,703,090
3,893,659
822,463
7,263,417
43,756,861
7,179,686

$ 94,937,731

Derivative Financial Instruments!

Level 1

$(388.871)
(63)

$ (388,934)

Level 2

$ (1,029,686)

$ (1,029,686)

APRIL 30, 2011

Level 3

Total

$(1,418,557)
(63)

$(1,418,620)

Derivative financial instruments are foreign currency exchange contracts and options. Foreign currency exchange contracts are valued at
the unrealized appreciation/ depreciation on the instrument and options are shown at value.
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities

April 30, 2011 (Unaudited)
Assets

Investments at value
Investments at value
Cash

Foreign currency at value?

Investments sold receivable

Cash pledged as collateral for options written
Unrealized appreciation on foreign currency
exchange contracts

Dividends and interest receivable
Securities lending income receivable
Other assets

unaffiliated
affiliatet]

affiliated

Total assets

Liabilities

Investments purchased payable

Options written at value*

Unrealized depreciation on foreign currency
exchange contracts

Bank overdraft

Investment advisory fees payable

Licensing fee payable

Officer s and Trustees fees payable

Other accrued expenses payable

Total liabilities
Net Assets

Net Assets Consist of

Paid-in capital

Undistributed (distributions in excess of) net
investment income

Accumulated net realized gain (loss)

Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation

Net Assets
Net asset value’

' Tnvestments at cost unaffiliated

2 Investments at cost  affiliated

3 Foreign currency at cost

4 Premiums received

> Shares outstanding, unlimited number of shares
authorized, $0.001 par value

Table of Contents

BlackRock
Equity
Dividend
Trust (BDV)
$ 592,179,158

14,185,874

621
4,236,605
433,158
1,222,086

224,511

612,482,013

5,758,240
4,523,000

313,477
189,052
175,394
173,942

11,133,105

$ 601,348,908

$ 674,491,951
(11,461,712)

(137,984,324)
76,302,993

$ 601,348,908
$ 11.01

$ 513,759,770
$ 14,185,874

$ 2,406,605

54,638,903

BlackRock
Enhanced
Equity
Dividend
Trust (BDJ)
$ 613,036,005
25,896,956
654
11,265,672
2,740,904
1,275,145

250,791

654,466,127

15,760,965
13,412,746

502,287
199,185
165,564
268,758

30,309,505

$ 624,156,622

$ 851,060,468
(29,402,527)

(257,399,074)
59,897,755

$ 624,156,622
$ 8.71

$ 546,634,816
$ 25,896,956

$ 6,889,850

71,655,012

BlackRock
Strategic
Equity
Dividend
Trust (BDT)
$ 323,763,181

6,084,276

7,362
3,427,256
877,677
442,791

66,826

334,669,369

2,660,998
2,263,291

199,164
104,085

45,117
147,052

5,419,707

$ 329,249,662

$ 340,653,058
(4,857,160)

(36,990,091)
30,443,855

$ 329,249,662
$ 12.24

$292,638,007
$ 6,084,276

$ 1,581,972

26,908,028

BlackRock
EcoSolutions

Investment
Trust (BQR)

$ 135,849,385
2,973,494
870,137
276,445
1,928,549
710,000
306,861

17,922
142,932,793
1,779,845
2,481,866
537

134,078

145,821

4,542,147

$ 138,390,646

$201,610,316
(7,229,784)

(54,282,362)
(1,707,524)

$ 138,390,646
$ 11.10
$ 136,912,955
$ 2,973,494
$ 266,220
$ 1,809,553

12,464,163

BlackRock
Energy and

Resources
Trust (BGR)

$ 936,428,494
48,176,237

2,815

7,571,312
200,000

845,562
849
255,301

993,480,570

1,072,345
12,111,791

199,237
868,974

198,958
201,627

14,652,932

$978,827,638

$ 680,602,964
(13,691,941)

30,487,293
281,429,322

$978,827,638
$ 32.88

$ 653,695,922
$ 48,176,237
$ 2,689
$ 10,807,093

29,766,217
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BlackRock
Global
Opportunities

Equity Trust
(BOE)
$1,334,773,411
20,927,661
22,004,180

11,710,997
21,337,836

92,713
4,690,353

1,055,591

1,416,592,742

33,061,398
37,169,697

9,747
1,073,548

302,794
437,031

72,054,215

$1,344,538,527

$1,450,672,597

(73,728,978)
(148,842,664)
116,437,572

$ 1,344,538,527
$ 19.41

$1,204,462,205
$ 20,927,661
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BlackRock
Health

Sciences
Trust (BME)

$216,932,556
12,683,789
1,577,914
87,264

2,768,571
513,000

414
253,667

31,170

234,848,345

3,713,304
4,425,149

2,298
179,581

14,096
119,680

8,454,108

$ 226,394,237

$ 176,834,894

(11,268,237)
25,012,730
35,814,850

$ 226,394,237

$ 29.82

$ 178,705,217
$ 12,683,789

BlackRock
International
Growth and

Income Trust
(BGY)
$1,194,668,497
20,076,877
2,344,268
16,673,340

37,803,547
6,910,000

33,123
4,452,599

397,087

1,283,359,338

55,168,706
33,854,857

15,925
948,542

265,366
547,127

90,800,523

$1,192,558,815

$ 1,695,250,427

(69,569,370)
(544,390,279)
111,268,037

$1,192,558,815

$ 10.84

$ 1,070,649,712
$ 20,076,877

BlackRock
Real Asset

Equity Trust
(BCF)

$ 877,630,056

19,415,877

14,429

5,207,650

12,655,583
600,000

6
1,626,049

473,543

917,623,193

8,706,659
14,604,048

9,160
717,089

164,183
399,065

24,600,204

$ 893,022,989

$ 715,120,980

(33,660,691)
(56,808,683)
268,371,383

$ 893,022,989
$ 15.62

$ 605,660,766
$ 19,415,877

BlackRock
Resources &
Commodities

Strategy
Trust (BCX)

$ 399,783,434
374,205,599
110,365,844

417,362
1,540,073

74,061
855,034

887,241,407

40,767,877
4,412,978

5,032

656,074

1,546,249
47,388,210

$ 839,853,197

$ 834,041,011

187,739
1,099,735
4,524,712

$ 839,853,197
$ 19.19

$ 396,139,352
$ 374,205,599

BlackRock
S&P Quality
Rankings
Global Equity

Managed
Trust (BQY)
$ 87,758,045
7,179,686
35

13,438
115,105

335,252

19,171

95,420,732

883,143
1,418,557

63
55,342

11,732
151,117

2,519,954

$ 92,900,778

$ 82,951,843

(731,914)
3,294,620
7,386,229

$ 92,900,778
$ 15.40

79,711,392
7,179,686

& &
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$ 11,361,223 $ 87,057 $ 16,648,556 $ 4,794,011 $ 412,509 $ 13,311

$ 22,021,329 $ 1,992,851 $ $20,790,497 $ 10,523,272 $ 5,293,339 $ 751,576

69,280,845 7,591,500 109,989,277 57,173,280 43,756,964 6,033,028
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Statements of Operations

Period Ended April 30, 2011 (Unaudited)
Investment Income

Dividends

Foreign taxes withheld

Income affiliated

Securities lending  affiliated

Total income

Expenses
Investment advisory
Licensing

Printing

Custodian
Professional

Officer and Trustees
Insurance
Registration
Transfer agent
Organization and offering
Miscellaneous

Total expenses

Less fees waived by advisor
Total expenses after fees waived
Net investment income (loss)

Realized and Unrealized Gain (Loss)
Net realized gain (loss) from:
Investments

Options written

Foreign currency transactions

Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on:

Investments
Options written
Foreign currency transactions

Total realized and unrealized gain

Table of Contents

BlackRock
Equity
Dividend
Trust
(BDV)

$ 8,777,764

(6,619)
9,373

8,780,518

1,835,326
282,358
62,543
50,437
32,232
28,042
16,158
11,617
6,332

13,201
2,338,246

(4,172)
2,334,074

6,446,444

18,057,473
2,927,373

20,984,846

46,752,703
(1,467,802)

45,284,901

66,269,747

BlackRock
Enhanced
Equity
Dividend
Trust (BDJ)

$ 9,219,504

(6,836)
17,756

9,230,424

3,000,294
300,029
73,442
45,792
33,571
24,266
18,027
11,557
6,286

14,787
3,528,051

(7,804)
3,520,247

5,710,177

(2,497,886)
8,696,282

6,198,396

56,551,945
(5,492,975)

51,058,970

57,257,366

BlackRock
Strategic
Equity
Dividend
Trust
(BDT)

$ 5,182,615

5,616

5,188,231

1,166,935
155,591
32,408
43,968
28,916
21,832
8,483
6,147
6,130

12,501
1,482,911

(2,505)
1,480,406

3,707,825

6,165,910
2,002,268

8,168,178

28,458,949
(209,533)

28,249,416

36,417,594

BlackRock
EcoSolutions
Investment
Trust (BQR)

$ 1,162,873

(45,072)
3,913

1,121,714

796,731
21,438
55,308
28,798

7,327
4,133
7,412
5,957

18,270

945,374

(1,760)

943,614

178,100

(12,667,094)
1,972,990
45,812

(10,648,292)

23,421,229
60,811
17,904

23,499,944

12,851,652

BlackRock
Energy and
Resources
Trust (BGR)

$ 6,250,149
(269,491)

20,870
16,359

6,017,887

5,303,096
81,682
64,284
34,137
30,184
22,398

6,979
6,143

13,250

5,562,153
(521,033)

5,041,120

976,767

25,693,705
9,052,217
28,724

34,774,646

192,705,184
4,505,904
267

197,211,355

231,986,001
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Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations ~ $72,716,191  $62,967,543  $40,125,419 $ 13,029,752  $232,962,768

! Commencement of operations was March 30, 2011. This information includes the initial investment by BlackRock Funding, Inc. The other
Trusts statements are for a full year.

2 Net of $11,443 and $(130,854) foreign capital gain tax for BME and BCF, respectively.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BlackRock
Global
Opportunities
Equity Trust
(BOE)

$ 13,169,632

(861,075)
22,225

12,330,782

6,435,020
142,786
228,066
131,553

48,423
27,874
6,339
6,860

40,955
7,067,876

(9,740)
7,058,136

5,272,646

55,498,075
30,103,319
(25,353)

85,576,041

37,641,111
159,643
477,487

38,278,241
123,854,282

$ 129,126,928
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BlackRock
Health
Sciences
Trust (BME)
$ 1,116,212
(31,649)

7,849

1,092,412

1,046,296
23,636
63,570
27,819
13,060

5,539
4,442
5,962

10,501
1,200,825

(3,336)
1,197,489

(105,077)

15,724,470
3,184,756
26,537

18,935,763

13,677,794?
(1,348,036)
(7,924)
12,321,834
31,257,597

$ 31,152,520

BlackRock
International
Growth and
Income
Trust (BGY)

$ 12,859,926

(1,077,016)
31,672

11,814,582

5,727,850
127,565
307,795

45,648
35,266
36,761
21,973

6,277

51,089

6,360,224

(13,782)

6,346,442

5,468,140

30,399,651
21,147,179
239,757

51,786,587

57,412,963
(4,162,066)
263,379

53,514,276

105,300,863

$ 110,769,003

BlackRock
Real Asset
Equity
Trust (BCF)

$ 7,397,942
(210,653)

18,302
1,538

7,207,129

4,976,775
80,023
109,861
67,485
42,286
22,616
13,997
6,025

20,694

5,339,762
(837,600)

4,502,162

2,704,967

(19,989,981)
3,205,559
16,707

(16,767,715)

161,603,8092
8,632,424
435,994

170,672,227
153,904,512

$ 156,609,479

BlackRock
Resources &
Commodities

Strategy
Trust
BCX)!

$ 957,998

(21,284)
51,181

987,895

849,027
31,080
34,857
12,495

6,132
1,751
1,300

33,000
2,220

971,862
(171,706)
800,156

187,739

(59.,423)
1,445,548
(286,390)

1,099,735

3,644,082
880,361
269

4,524,712
5,624,447

$ 5,812,186

BlackRock
S&P Quality
Rankings
Global Equity
Managed
Trust (BQY)

$ 1,584,984

(77,351)
4,707

1,512,340

325,117
65,023
12,290
57,786
24,876

6,666
2,511

997
5,937

29,393
530,596

(2,108)
528,488

983,852

3,462,771
1,185,887
23,215

4,671,873

4,796,101
(583,175)
1,934

4,214,860
8,886,733

$ 9,870,585
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets:

Operations

Net investment income
Net realized gain (loss)
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

Dividends and Distributions to Shareholders From

Net investment income
Net realized gains
Tax return of capital

Decrease in net assets resulting from dividends and
distributions to shareholders

Capital Share Transactions
Reinvestment of dividends

Net Assets

Total increase in net assets
Beginning of period

End of period

Undistributed (distributions in excess of) net
investment income

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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(17,738,048)

(17,738,048)

1,242,056

56,220,199

545,128,709

$ 601,348,908

$ (11,461,712)

BlackRock
Equity Dividend
Trust (BDV)
Six Months Ended
April 30,
2011 Year Ended

(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 6,446,444 $ 12,774,122
20,984,846 21,350,952
45,284,901 48,266,248
72,716,191 82,391,322

(35,436,905)

(35,436,905)

46,954,417
498,174,292

$ 545,128,709

$ (170,108)

BlackRock
Enhanced Equity
Dividend Trust (BDJ)
Six Months Ended
April 30,
2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 5,710,177 $ 12,053,505
6,198,396 (18,624,524)
51,058,970 88,956,779
62,967,543 82,385,760
(34,950,986) (12,098,232)
(57,140,851)
(34,950,986) (69,239,083)
3,812,506 7,115,353
31,829,063 20,262,030
592,327,559 572,065,529

$ 624,156,622

$ (29,402,527)

APRIL 30, 2011

$ 592,327,559

$ (161,718)
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BlackRock
Strategic Equity
Dividend Trust (BDT)
Six Months Ended
April 30, 2011 Year Ended

(Unaudited) October 31, 2010

$ 3,707,825 $ 7,854,309

8,168,178 17,406,479

28,249,416 28,627,135

40,125,419 53,887,923
(8,745,109) (17,490,218)
(8,745,109) (17,490,218)

31,380,310 36,397,705
297,869,352 261,471,647
$329,249,662 $ 297,869,352

$(4,857,160)
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$ 180,124

BlackRock
EcoSolutions
Investment Trust (BQR)
Six Months Ended
April 30,
2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 178,100 $ 591,108
(10,648,292) (16,492,323)
23,499,944 31,576,755
13,029,752 15,675,540
(7,408,476) (582,037)
(13,928,324)
(7,408,476) (14,510,361)
1,766,928 2,811,900
7,388,204 3,977,079
131,002,442 127,025,363
$ 138,390,646 $ 131,002,442
$ (7,229,784) $ 592

SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT

BlackRock
Energy and
Resources Trust (BGR)
Six Months Ended
April 30,
2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 976,767 $ 7,856,849
34,774,646 43,600,450
197,211,355 58,150,619
232,962,768 109,607,918
(24,110,636) (5,141,482)
(43,079,790)
(24,110,636) (48,221,272)
208,852,132 61,386,646
769,975,506 708,588,860

$978,827,638

$ (13,691,941)

APRIL 30, 2011

$ 769,975,506

$ 9,441,928
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets (concluded)

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets:

Operations

Net investment income (loss)

Net realized gain (loss)

Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

Dividends and Distributions to Shareholders From

Net investment income

Net realized gains

Tax return of capital

Decrease in net assets resulting from dividends and
distributions to shareholders

Capital Share Transactions
Net proceeds from the issuance of shares

Reinvestment of dividends

Net increase in net assets derived from shares

transactions

Net Assets

Total increase (decrease) in net assets

Beginning of period

End of period

Undistributed (distributions in excess of) net investment

income

Commencement of operations.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BlackRock
Global Opportunities
Equity Trust (BOE)
Six Months Ended
April 30, 2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 5,272,646 $ 13,025,662
85,576,041 106,884,446
38,278,241 39,742,566
129,126,928 159,652,674
(78,679,380) (99,018,419)
(16,795,876)
(40,455,279)
(78,679,380) (156,269,574)
3,986,141 8,551,415
3,986,141 8,551,415
54,433,689 11,934,515

1,290,104,838

$1,344,538,527

$ (73,728,978)

1,278,170,323

$ 1,290,104,838

$ (322,244)

BlackRock
Health Sciences
Trust (BME)
Six Months
Ended
April 30, 2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ (105,077) $ 183,378
18,935,763 19,645,424
12,321,834 5,633,072
31,152,520 25,461,874
(11,150,016) (136,268)

(11,150,016)

20,002,504
206,391,733

$ 226,394,237

$ (11,268,237)

APRIL 30, 2011

(11,535,663)

(11,671,931)

13,789,943
192,601,790
$ 206,391,733

$ (13,144)
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BlackRock
International Growth
and Income Trust (BGY)
Six Months Ended
April 30, 2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 5,468,140 $ 15,908,603
51,786,587 (34,783,078)
53,514,276 147,763,569
110,769,003 128,889,094
(74,792,708) (13,597,240)
(159,367,997)
(74,792,708) (172,965,237)
22,011,255
22,011,255
35,976,295 (22,064,888)

1,156,582,520

$1,192,558,815

$ (69,569,370)

1,178,647,408

$ 1,156,582,520

$ (244,802)

Table of Contents

(31,009,711)

(31,009,711)

1,960,017

1,960,017
127,559,785
765,463,204

$ 893,022,989

$ (33,660,691)

BlackRock
Real Asset
Equity Trust (BCF)
Six Months Ended
April 30,
2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 2,704,967 $ 9,774,635
(16,767,715) 12,868,530
170,672,227 135,575,929
156,609,479 158,219,094

(42,492,192)

(19,209,691)

(61,701,883)

4,017,701

4,017,701
100,534,912
664,928,292

$ 765,463,204

$  (5,357,801)

BlackRock
Resources
& Commodities

Strategy Trust (BCX)

Period
March 30, 2011!

to
April 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

$ 187,739
1,099,735

4,524,712

5,812,186

834,041,011

834,041,011

839,853,197

$ 839,853,197

$ 187,739

BlackRock S&P Quality
Rankings Global Equity
Managed Trust (BQY)

Six Months Ended
April 30,

2011 Year Ended
(Unaudited) October 31, 2010
$ 983,852 $ 1,975,474

4,671,873 3,939,256
4,214,860 4,317,334
9,870,585 10,232,064
(3,016,514) (664,248)
(4,237,588)
(3,016,514) (4,901,836)
6,854,071 5,330,228
86,046,707 80,716,479
$ 92,900,778 $ 86,046,707
$ (731,914 $ 1,300,748
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Financial Highlights

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period

Net investment income
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)

Net increase (decrease) from investment operations

Dividends and distributions from:
Net investment income

Net realized gain

Tax return of capital

Total dividends and distributions

Net asset value, end of period

Market price, end of period

Total Investment Return2
Based on net asset value

Based on market price

Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses

Total expenses after fees waived

Net investment income

Supplemental Data

Net assets,

end of period (000)

Portfolio turnover

Six Months

Ended

April 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

$ 10.00

0.12
1.22

1.34

(0.33)!

(0.33)

$ 11.01

$ 10.50

13.61%3

9.66%3

0.83%*

0.83%*

2.28%*

$ 601,349

36%

2010

$ 914

0.23
1.28
1.51

(0.65)

(0.65)

$ 10.00

$ 9.88

17.36%

28.15%

0.82%

0.82%

2.44%

$ 545,129

104%

BlackRock Equity Dividend Trust (BDV)

Year Ended October 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 1033 $ 1549 $ 1595
0.30 0.41 0.45
(0.84) (4.67) (0.01)
(0.54) (4.26) 0.44
(0.30) 0.43) (0.44)
(0.38)
(0.35) 0.47) (0.08)
(0.65) (0.90) (0.90)
$ 914 $ 1033 $ 1549
$ 827 $ 9.20 $ 13.64
(3.75)% (27.56)% 3.15%
221)% (26.73)% (2.50)%
0.85% 0.83% 0.82%
0.85% 0.83% 0.82%
3.46% 3.46% 2.87%
$ 498,174 $ 563,030 $ 844,633
56% 23% 12%

A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.
Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions.
Aggregate total investment return.
Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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2006

$ 1421

0.42
2.21

2.63

(0.41)
(0.32)
(0.16)

(0.89)
$ 1595

$ 14.86

19.89%

24.31%

0.84%
0.84%

2.90%

$ 869,703

11%
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Financial Highlights

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period

Net investment income

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)

Net increase (decrease) from investment operations

Dividends and distributions from:

Net investment income
Net realized gain
Tax return of capital

Total dividends and distributions

Net asset value, end of period

Market price, end of period

Total Investment Return2
Based on net asset value

Based on market price

Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses

Total expenses after fees waived

Net investment income

Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000)

Portfolio turnover

Six Months

Ended

April 30,2011
(Unaudited)

$ 8.32

0.08
0.80

0.88

(0.49)!

(0.49)

$ 8.71

10.85%3

4.12%3

1.18%*

1.17%*

1.90%*

$ 624,157

104%

2010

$ 813

0.17
1.00

(0.17)

(0.81)

(0.98)

$ 832

$ 899

15.23%

28.30%

1.16%

1.16%

2.06%

$592,328

232%

Year Ended October 31,

2009 2008 2007
9.59 $ 1410 $ 1488
0.25 0.34 0.39

(0.55) (3.73) 0.06

(0.30) (3.39 0.45

(0.25) (0.52) 0.43)

(0.80)

(0.91) (0.60)

(1.16) (1.12) (1.23)
8.13 $ 959 $ 1410
7.89 $ 847 $ 12.68

(1.63)% (24.35)% 3.21%
8.08% (25.70)% (7.43)%
1.20% 1.18% 1.17%
1.20% 1.18% 1.17%
3.11% 3.20% 2.76%

$ 572,066 $ 668,969 $ 983,762
117% 86% 91%

1 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.
2 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions.
3 Aggregate total investment return.
4 Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BlackRock Enhanced Equity Dividend Trust (BDJ)

2006

$ 14.01

0.37
1.71

2.08

(0.15)
(1.06)

(1.21)
$ 14.88

$ 14.92

15.72%

17.97%

1.19%
1.19%

2.73%

$ 1,033,127

138%
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Financial Highlights

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period

Net investment income

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)

Net increase (decrease) from investment operations

Dividends and distributions from:

Net investment income
Net realized gain
Tax return of capital

Total dividends and distributions

Net asset value, end of period

Market price, end of period

Total Investment Return2
Based on net asset value

Based on market price

Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses

Total expenses after fees waived

Net investment income

Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000)

Portfolio turnover

Six Months

Ended

April 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

$ 11.07

0.14
1.36

1.50

(0.33)!

(0.33)

$ 12.24

$ 10.99

13.92%3

13.46%3

0.95%*

0.95%*

2.38%*

$ 329,250

34%

2010

$ 972

0.29
1.71
2.00

(0.65)

(0.65)

$ 11.07

$ 998

21.94%

27.67%

0.93%

0.93%

2.76%

$ 297,869

71%

BlackRock Strategic Equity Dividend Trust (BDT)

Year Ended October 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 10.67 $ 1522 $ 16.13
0.30 0.37 0.40
(0.60) (4.02) 0.41)
(0.30) (3.65) (0.01)
0.31) (0.40) (0.40)
(0.38)
(0.34) (0.50) 0.12)
(0.65) (0.90) (0.90)
$ 972 $ 10.67 $ 1522
$ 837 $ 9.01 $ 13.19
(1.10)% (23.93)% 0.24%
0.86% (25.88)% (3.56)%
0.97% 0.94% 0.95%
0.97% 0.94% 0.95%
3.68% 3.40% 2.75%
$261,472 $ 287,141 $ 409,646
66% 20% 18%

1 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.
2 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions.

Aggregate total investment return.

4 Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

2006

$ 1514

0.37
1.52

1.89

(0.35)
(0.55)

(0.90)
$ 16.13

$ 1453

13.65%

17.43%

0.96%
0.96%

2.57%

$ 433,938

18%
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Financial Highlights

BlackRock EcoSolutions Investment Trust (BQR)

Six Months Period
Ended September 28, 20071
through
April 30, 2011 Year Ended October 31, October 31,
(Unaudited) 2010 2009 2008 2007
Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 10.65 $ 10.56 $ 10.23 $ 2031 $ 19.102
Net investment income 0.01 0.05 0.06 0.03
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 1.04 1.24 1.78 (8.51) 1.25
Net increase (decrease) from investment operations 1.05 1.29 1.84 (8.48) 1.25
Dividends and distributions from:
Net investment income (0.60)3 (0.05) 0.07) (0.02)
Net realized gain (0.09) (1.58)
Tax return of capital (1.15) (1.35)
Total dividends and distributions (0.60) (1.20) (1.51) (1.60)
Offering costs resulting from the issuance of shares (0.04)
Net asset value, end of period $ 11.10 $ 10.65 $ 1056 $ 10.23 $ 20.31
Market price, end of period $ 12.31 $ 11.69 $ 10.23 $ 920 $ 19.75
Total Investment Return4
Based on net asset value 9.97%5 13.04% 19.64% (43.99)% 6.28%3
Based on market price 11.11%3 28.08% 28.88% (48.20)% (1.25)%>5
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses 1.42%5 1.45% 1.51% 1.36% 1.70%°
Total expenses after fees waived and paid indirectly 1.42%5 1.45% 1.50% 1.35% 1.68%°
Net investment income 0.27%% 0.47% 0.65% 0.38% 0.97%°
Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000) $ 138,391 $ 131,002 $ 127,025 $ 120,282 $ 238,731
Portfolio turnover 54% 124% 62% 45% 4%

1 Commencement of investment operations. This information includes the initial investment by BlackRock Funding, Inc.

2 Net asset value, beginning of period, reflects a deduction of $0.8975 per share sales charge from the initial offering price of $20.00 per share.

3 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.

4 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and
distributions.

5 Aggregate total investment return.

6 Annualized.
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Financial Highlights

Six Months
Ended
April 30,2011
(Unaudited)

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 25.87
Net investment income 0.03
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 7.79
Net increase (decrease) from investment operations 7.82
Dividends and distributions from:
Net investment income (0.81)!
Net realized gain
Tax return of capital
Total dividends and distributions (0.81)
Net asset value, end of period $ 32.88
Market price, end of period $ 31.44
Total Investment Return2
Based on net asset value 30.52%3
Based on market price 27.31%3
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses 1.25%*
Total expenses after fees waived 1.14%*
Net investment income 0.22%*
Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000) $ 978,828
Portfolio turnover 80%

2010

$ 2381

0.26
3.42

3.68

(0.17)
(1.45)

(1.62)

$ 2587

15.89%

21.95%

1.27%

1.11%

1.04%

$ 769,976

80%

BlackRock Energy and Resources Trust (BGR)

Year Ended October 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 2071 $  37.60 $ 29.67
0.41 1.18 0.49
432 (14.63) 9.27
4.73 (13.45) 9.76
0.47) (0.96) (0.70)
0.19) (2.48) (1.13)
0.97)
(1.63) (3.44) (1.83)
$ 2381 $ 20.71 $ 37.60
$ 2218 $ 17.99 $ 32.14
25.54% (38.15)% 34.98%
34.63% (37.14)% 28.07%
1.30% 1.27% 1.27%
1.10% 1.07% 1.07%
1.77% 1.38% 1.69%
$ 708,589 $616,479 $ 1,119,310
62% 54% 47%

1 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.
2 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions.

Aggregate total investment return.

4 Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

2006

$ 2812

0.75
3.65

4.40

(0.49)
(2.36)

(2.85)
$ 29.67

$ 2673

17.30%

18.11%

1.28%
1.08%

2.47%

$ 883,104

40%
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Financial Highlights

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period

Net investment income

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)

Net increase (decrease) from investment operations

Dividends and distributions from:

Net investment income
Net realized gain
Tax return of capital

Total dividends and distributions
Net asset value, end of period
Market price, end of period

Total Investment Return2
Based on net asset value

Based on market price

Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses

Total expenses after fees waived
Net investment income

Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000)

Portfolio turnover

Six Months

Ended

April 30,2011
(Unaudited)

$ 18.68

0.08
1.79

1.87

(1.14)!

(1.14)

$ 19.41

$ 19.25

10.50%3

7.41%3

1.10%*

1.10%*

0.82%*

$ 1,344,539

154%

2010

$ 18.64

0.19
2.13

232

(1.44)
(0.25)
(0.59)

(2.28)

$ 18.68

$ 19.06

13.76%

17.58%

1.11%

1.10%

1.03%

$ 1,290,105

264%

BlackRock Global Opportunities Equity Trust (BOE)

Year Ended October 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 18.03 $ 31.09 $ 2672
0.19 0.39 0.55
2.70 (10.39) 6.32
2.89 (10.00) 6.87
(0.20) (0.56) (0.36)
(2.48) (2.14)
(2.08) (0.02)
(2.28) (3.06) (2.50)
$ 18.64 $ 18.03 $ 31.09
$ 18.40 $ 15.89 $ 2876
20.50% (35.08)% 27.47%
34.97% (38.15)% 14.11%
1.21% 1.14% 1.15%
1.20% 1.14% 1.15%
1.05% 1.60% 1.87%
$ 1,278,170 $ 227,835 $ 389,741
300% 120% 111%

1 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.
2 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions.
3 Aggregate total investment return.
4 Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2006

$ 2377

0.58
4.64

5.22

(0.59)
(1.68)

(2.27)
$ 2672

$ 2761

24.48%

26.64%

1.16%
1.16%

2.45%

$ 331,744

184%
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Financial Highlights

BlackRock Health Sciences Trust (BME)

Six Months
Ended
April 30, 2011 Year Ended October 31,
(Unaudited) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 27.19 $ 2537 $  23.66 $ 3033 $ 2774 $ 26.38
Net investment income (loss) (0.01) 0.02 0.10 0.10 0.05 0.00!
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 4.11 3.34 3.32 4.70) 4.76 3.28
Net increase (decrease) from investment operations 4.10 3.36 3.42 (4.60) 4.81 3.28
Dividends and distributions from:
Net investment income (1.47)2 (0.02) (0.13) (0.09) (0.02)
Net realized gain (1.52) (1.01) (1.98) (2.20) (1.92)
Tax return of capital 0.57)
Total dividends and distributions (1.47) (1.54) (1.71) (2.07) (2.22) (1.92)
Net asset value, end of period $ 29.82 $ 27.19 $ 25.37 $ 23.66 $ 3033 $ 2774
Market price, end of period $ 28.43 $ 27.14 $ 2261 $ 21.62 $ 27.05 $ 2732
Total Investment Return3
Based on net asset value 15.66%* 13.69% 16.31% (15.55)% 18.62% 13.00%
Based on market price 10.47%* 27.33% 13.44% (13.47)% 7.42% 16.59%
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses 1.15%5 1.15% 1.15% 1.13% 1.13% 1.15%
Total expenses after fees waived 1.14%5 1.15% 1.15% 1.13% 1.13% 1.15%
Net investment income (0.10)%5 0.09% 0.37% 0.20% 0.15% 0.11)%
Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000) $ 226,394 $ 206,392 $ 192,602 $ 179,642 $ 230,280 $ 208,151
Portfolio turnover 129% 239% 167% 121% 89% 181%

1 Amounted to less than $0.01 per share outstanding.

2 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.

3 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and
distributions.

4 Aggregate total investment return.

5 Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Financial Highlights BlackRock International Growth and Income Trust (BGY)

Six Months Period
Ended May 30, 20071
April 30, 2011 Year Ended October 31, through October 31,

(Unaudited) 2010 2009 2008 2007

Per Share Operating Performance

Net asset value, beginning of period $ 10.52 $ 10.92 $ 10.41 $ 20.12 $ 19.102

Net investment income 0.05 0.14 0.29 0.27 0.14

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 0.95 1.05 2.04 (8.31) 1.50

Net increase (decrease) from investment operations 1.00 1.19 2.33 (8.04) 1.64

Dividends and distributions from:

Net investment income (0.68)3 0.12) (0.30) (0.30) (0.10)
Net realized gain (0.88) (0.50)
Tax return of capital (1.47) (1.52) (0.49)

Total dividends and distributions (0.68) (1.59) (1.82) (1.67) (0.60)
Offering costs resulting from the issuance of shares (0.02)
Net asset value, end of period $ 10.84 $ 10.52 $ 10.92 $ 10.41 $ 20.12
Market price, end of period $ 10.43 $ 10.56 $ 10.92 $ 9.09 $ 17.76
Total Investment Return4

Based on net asset value 9.86%° 12.06% 26.28% 41.76)% 8.93%>
Based on market price 5.30%3 12.49% 44.62% (42.39)% (8.17)%>5

Ratios to Average Net Assets

Total expenses 1.11%° 1.13% 1.12% 1.11% 1.07%%
Total expenses after fees waived 1.11%% 1.13% 1.12% 1.11% 1.07%%
Net investment income 0.95%° 1.40% 2.68% 2.34% 1.75%°%
Supplemental Data

Net assets, end of period (000) $ 1,192,559 $ 1,156,583 $ 1,178,647 $ 1,106,516 $ 2,138,523
Portfolio turnover 129% 247% 198% 123% 46%

Commencement of investment operations. This information includes the initial investment by BlackRock Funding, Inc.

Net asset value, beginning of period, reflects a deduction of $0.8975 per share sales charge from the initial offering price of $20.00 per share.
A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.

Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and
distributions.

5 Aggregate total investment return.

6 Annualized.

B T

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Financial Highlights BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust (BCF)
Six Months Period
Ended September 29, 2006!
through
April 30, 2011 Year Ended October 31, October 31,
(Unaudited) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 13.42 $ 1173 $ 944 $ 20.79 $ 15.33 $ 14.332
Net investment income 0.05 0.17 0.08 0.20 0.20 0.04
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 2.69 2.61 3.30 (10.16) 6.35 0.98
Net increase (decrease) from investment operations 2.74 2.78 3.38 (9.96) 6.55 1.02

Dividends and distributions from:

Net investment income (0.54)3 (0.74) 0.11) 0.17) (0.29)

Net realized gain (1.22) (0.80)

Tax return of capital (0.35) (0.98)

Total dividends and distributions (0.54) (1.09) (1.09) (1.39) (1.09)

Offering costs resulting from the issuance of shares (0.02)
Net asset value, end of period $ 15.62 $ 1342 $ 11.73 $ 944 $ 20.79 $ 15.33
Market price, end of period $ 15.70 $ 1346 $ 1145 $ 774 $ 17.59 $ 15.00
Total Investment Return

Based on net asset value 20.68%>5 24.65% 40.96% (50.149)% 45.34% 6.98%5
Based on market price 20.94%5 28.08% 67.81% (51.69)% 25.67% 5

Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses 1.29%°% 1.28% 1.32% 1.29% 1.21% 1.42%%

Total expenses after fees waived and paid

indirectly 1.08%°% 1.08% 1.12% 1.09% 1.08% 1.22%%
Net investment income 0.65%° 1.37% 0.68% 1.14% 1.37% 2.63%°
Supplemental Data

Net assets, end of period (000) $ 893,023 $ 765,463 $ 664,928 $ 535,257 $1,179,087 $ 820,283
Portfolio turnover 57% 71% 58% 29% 61% 0%

Commencement of investment operations. This information includes the initial investment by BlackRock Funding, Inc.

1

2 Net asset value, beginning of period, reflects a deduction of $0.675 per share sales charge from the initial offering price of $15.00 per share.

3 A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.

4 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and
distributions.

5 Aggregate total investment return.

6 Annualized.
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Financial Highlights

BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust (BCX)

Period
March 30, 2011'
through
April 30,2011
(Unaudited)

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 19.102
Net investment income 0.003
Net realized and unrealized gain 0.12
Net increase from investment operations 0.12
Capital charges with respect to the issuance of shares (0.03)
Net asset value, end of period $ 19.19
Market price, end of period $ 20.02
Total Investment Return4
Based on net asset value 0.47%>
Based on market price 0.10%>
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses 1.29%%
Total expenses after fees waived 1.05%°%
Net investment income 0.30%°
Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000) $ 839,853
Portfolio turnover 1%

1 Commencement of investment operations. This information includes the initial investment by BlackRock Funding, Inc.

2 Net asset value, beginning of period, reflects a deduction of $0.90 per share sales charge from the initial offering price of $20.00 per share.

3 Amounted to less than $0.01 per share outstanding.

4 Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and
distributions.

5 Aggregate total investment return.

6 Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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nien

Per Share Operating Performance
Net asset value, beginning of period

Net investment income
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)

Net increase (decrease) from investment operations

Dividends and distributions from:
Net investment income

Net realized gain

Tax return of capital

Total dividends and distributions

Net asset value, end of period

Market price, end of period

Total Investment Return3
Based on net asset value

Based on market price

Ratios to Average Net Assets
Total expenses

Total expenses after fees waived

Net investment income

Supplemental Data
Net assets, end of period (000)

Portfolio turnover

BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity Managed Trust (BQY)

Six Months

Ended

April 30,2011
(Unaudited)

$ 14.26

0.16
1.48

1.64

(0.50)!

(0.50)

$ 15.40

$ 14.27

12.02%*

10.13%*

1.22%>

1.22%>

2.27%3

$ 92,901

62%

0.33
1.36

1.69

(0.11)
(0.70)

(0.81)

$ 1426

14.08%

24.67%

1.23%

1.22%

2.40%

$ 86,047

59%

Year Ended October 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 12.38 $ 21.00 $ 1855
0.36 0.50 0.46
1.43 (8.22) 2.90
1.79 (7.72) 3.36
(0.39) (0.52) (0.44)
(0.33) 0.40)
(0.07) (0.38) (0.07)
(0.79) (0.90) 0.91)
$ 13.38 $ 12.38 $ 21.00
$ 11.54 $ 10.50 $ 18.07
17.64% (37.53)% 19.10%
19.63% (38.42)% 16.20%
1.17% 0.96% 1.20%
1.16% 0.96% 1.20%
3.39% 3.11% 2.45%
$80,716 $74,716 $ 126,706
64% 10% 12%

A portion of the dividends from net investment income may be deemed a tax return of capital or net realized gain at fiscal year end.

Amounted to less than $0.01 per share outstanding.

2006

$ 1598

0.39
3.22

3.61

(0.49)
(0.55)
0.002

(1.04)

$ 1855

$ 1636

24.34%

20.52%

1.13%

1.13%

2.45%

$ 111,925

10%

Total investment returns based on market value, which can be significantly greater or lesser than the net asset value, may result in substantially
different returns. Where applicable, total investment returns exclude the effects of sales charges and include the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions.
Aggregate total investment return.
Annualized.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Unaudited)
1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:

BlackRock Equity Dividend Trust ( BDV ), BlackRock Enhanced Equity Dividend Trust ( BDJ ), BlackRock Strategic Equity Dividend Trust

( BDT ), BlackRock EcoSolutions Investment Trust ( BQR ), BlackRock Energy and Resources Trust ( BGR ) BlackRock Global Opportunities

Equity Trust ( BOE ), BlackRock Health Sciences Trust ( BME ), BlackRock International Growth and Income Trust ( BGY ), BlackRock Real

Asset Equity Trust ( BCF ), BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy Trust ( BCX ) and BlackRock S&P Quality Rankings Global Equity

Managed Trust ( BQY ) (collectively, the Trusts ) are organized as Delaware statutory trusts. All Trusts, except BQR, BGR, BME, BGY, BCF and

BCX are registered as diversified, closed-end management investment companies under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the
1940 Act ). BQR, BGR, BME, BGY, BCF and BCX are registered as non-diversified, closed-end management investment companies under the

1940 Act. Prior to commencement of operations on March 30, 2011, BCX had no operations other than those relating to organizational matters

and the sale of 6,964 Common Shares on February 11, 2011 to BlackRock HoldCo 2, Inc. for $100,012. Investment operations for BCX

commenced on March 30, 2011. The Trusts financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America ( US GAAP ), which may require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and

disclosure in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Trusts determine and make available for publication

the net asset values of their shares on a daily basis.

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Trusts:

Valuation: US GAAP defines fair value as the price the Trust would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Trust fair values their financial instruments at market value using independent dealers
or pricing services under policies approved by the Board of Trustees (the Board ). Equity investments traded on a recognized securities exchange
or the NASDAQ Global Market System ( NASDAQ ) are valued at the last reported sale price that day or the NASDAQ official closing price, if
applicable. For equity investments traded on more than one exchange, the last reported sale price on the exchange where the stock is primarily
traded is used. Equity investments traded on a recognized exchange for which there were no sales on that day are valued at the last available bid
price. If no bid price is available, the prior day s price will be used unless it is determined that such prior day s price no longer reflects the fair
value of the security. Investments in open-end investment companies are valued at net asset value each business day. Short-term securities with
remaining maturities of 60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

The Trusts value their investments in BlackRock Liquidity Series, LLC Money Market Series (the Money Market Series ) at fair value, which is
ordinarily based upon its pro rata ownership in the net assets of theunderlying fund. The Money Market Series seeks current income consistent
with maintaining liquidity and preserving capital. Although the Money Market Series is not registered under the 1940 Act, its investments will
follow the parameters of investments by a money market fund that is subject to Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act. The Trusts may withdraw up to
25% of their investment daily, although the manager of the Money Market Series, in its sole discretion, may permit an investor to withdraw

more than 25% on any one day.

Securities and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US dollars using exchange rates determined as of
the close of business on the New York Stock Exchange ( NYSE ). Foreign currency exchange contracts are valued at the mean between the bid
and ask prices and are determined as of the close of business on the NYSE. Interpolated values are derived when the settlement date of the
contract is an interim date for which quotations are not available.

Exchange-traded options are valued at the mean between the last bid and ask prices at the close of the options market in which the options trade.
An exchange-traded option for which there is no mean price is valued at the last bid (long positions) or ask (short positions) price. If no bid or
ask price is available, the prior day s price will be used, unless it is determined that such prior day s price no longer reflects the fair value of the
option. Over-the-counter ( OTC ) options are valued by an independent pricing service or through brokers using a mathematical model which
incorporates a number of market data factors, such as the trades and prices of the underlying instruments.

In the event that application of these methods of valuation results in a price for an investment which is deemed not to be representative of the
market value of such investment or is not available, the investment will be valued in accordance with a policy approved by the Board as

reflecting fair value ( Fair Value Assets ). When determining the price for Fair Value Assets, the investment advisor and/or sub-advisor seeks to
determine the price that each Trust might reasonably expect to receive from the current sale of that asset in an arm s-length transaction. Fair value
determinations shall be based upon all available factors that the investment advisor and/or sub-advisor deems relevant. The pricing of all Fair
Value Assets is subsequently reported to the Board or a committee thereof.
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Generally, trading in foreign instruments is substantially completed each day at various times prior to the close of business on the NYSE.
Occasionally, events affecting the values of such instruments may occur between the foreign market close and the close of business on the
NYSE that may not be reflected in the computation of the Trust s net assets. If events (for example, a company announcement, market volatility
or a natural disaster) occur during such periods that are expected to materially affect the value of such instruments, those instruments may be
Fair Value Assets and be valued at their fair value, as determined in good faith by the investment advisor using a pricing service and/or policies
approved by the Board. Each business day, the Trust uses a
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pricing service to assist with the valuation of certain foreign exchange-traded equity securities and foreign exchange-traded and OTC options
(the Systematic Fair Value Price ). Using current market factors, the Systematic Fair Value Price is designed to value such foreign securities and
foreign options at fair value as of the close of business on the NYSE, which follows the close of the local markets.

Foreign Currency Transactions: Each Trust s books and records are maintained in US dollars. Purchases and sales of investment securities are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date the transactions are entered into. Generally, when the US dollar rises in value against a
foreign currency, the Trust s investments denominated in that currency will lose value because its currency is worth fewer US dollars; the
opposite effect occurs if the US dollar falls in relative value.

Each Trust reports realized currency gains (losses) on foreign currency related transactions as components of net realized gain (loss) for financial
reporting purposes, whereas such components are treated as ordinary income for federal income tax purposes.

Segregation and Collateralization: In cases in which the 1940 Act and the interpretive positions of the Securities and Exchange Commission

( SEC ) require that a Trust either delivers collateral or segregates assets in connection with certain investments (e.g., options written or foreign
currency exchange contracts), each Trust will, consistent with SEC rules and/or certain interpretive letters issued by the SEC, segregate
collateral or designate on its books and records cash or liquid securities having a market value at least equal to the amount that would otherwise
be required to be physically segregated. Furthermore, based on requirements and agreements with certain exchanges and third party
broker-dealers, each party to such transactions has requirements to deliver/deposit securities as collateral for certain investments.

Investment Transactions and Investment Income: For financial reporting purposes, investment transactions are recorded on the dates the
transactions are entered into (the trade dates). Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are determined on the identified cost basis.
Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend dates. Dividends from foreign securities where the ex-dividend date may have passed are
subsequently recorded when a Trust is informed of the ex-dividend date. Under the applicable foreign tax laws, a withholding tax at various rates
may be imposed on capital gains, dividends and interest. Upon notification from issuers, some of the dividend income received from a real estate
investment trust may be redesignated as a reduction of cost of the related investment and/or realized gain. Interest income, including
amortization and accretion of premiums and discounts on debt securities, is recognized on the accrual basis.

Dividends and Distributions: Dividends and distributions paid by the Trusts are recorded on the ex-dividend dates. Subject to each Trust s level
distribution plan, a Trust intends to make monthly cash dividends and/or distributions to shareholders, which may consist of net investment
income, net options premium and net realized and unrealized gains on investments. The portion of dividends and distributions that exceeds a
Trust s current and accumulated earnings and profits, which are measured on a tax basis, may be treated as a tax return of capital. The character
of dividends and distributions are determined in accordance with federal income tax regulations, which may differ from US GAAP.

Securities Lending: The Trusts may lend securities to approved borrowers, such as banks, brokers and other financial institutions. The borrower
pledges cash, securities issued or guaranteed by the US government or irrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank as collateral, which will be
maintained at all times in an amount equal to at least 100% of the current market value of the loaned securities. The market value of the loaned
securities is determined at the close of business of the Trusts and any additional required collateral is delivered to the Trust on the next business
day. Securities lending income, as disclosed in the Statements of Operations, represents the income earned from the investment of the cash
collateral, net of rebates paid to, or fees paid by, borrowers and less the fees paid to the securities lending agent. During the term of the loan, the
Trusts earn dividends and interest on the securities loaned but do not receive dividend or interest income on the securities received as collateral.
Loans of securities are terminable at any time and the borrower, after notice, is required to return borrowed securities within the standard time
period for settlement of securities transactions. In the event that the borrower defaults on its obligation to return borrowed securities because of
insolvency or for any other reason, the Trusts could experience delays and costs in gaining access to the collateral. The Trusts also could suffer a
loss if the value of an investment purchased with cash collateral falls below the market value of loaned securities or if the value of an investment
purchased with cash collateral falls below the value of the original cash collateral received. During the period, participating Trusts accepted only
cash collateral in connection with securities loaned.

Income Taxes: It is the Trusts policy to comply with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, applicable to
regulated investment companies and to distribute substantially all of its taxable income to its shareholders. Therefore, no federal income tax
provision is required.

The Trusts file US federal and various state and local tax returns. No income tax returns are currently under examination. The statute of
limitations on the Trusts US federal tax returns remains open for each of the four periods ended October 31, 2010. The statute of limitations on
the Trusts state and local tax returns may remain open for an additional year depending upon the jurisdiction. Management does not believe
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there are any uncertain tax positions that require recognition of a tax liability.

Dividend Achievers Universe: BDV, BDJ and BDT have been granted a revocable license by Indxis, Inc. ( Indxis ) to use the Dividend
Achievers™ universe of common stocks. If Indxis revokes each Trust s license to use the Dividend Achiever$¥ universe, the Board of that Trust
may need to adopt a new investment strategy and/or new investment policies. There is no assurance that a Trust would pursue or achieve its
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investment objective during the period in which it implements these replacement investment policies or strategies. Indxis and Dividend
Achievers™  are trademarks of Indxis and have been licensed for use by BDV, BDJ, and BDT. The products are not sponsored, endorsed, sold or
promoted by Indxis and Indxis makes no representation regarding the advisability of investing in any of these three Trusts. The Trusts are
required to pay a quarterly licensing fee, which is shown in the Statements of Operations as licensing. Effective May 9, 2011, the Dividend
Achievers Universe is no longer used by BDV, BDJ and BDT.

S&P Quality Rankings: BQY has been granted a license by Standard & Poor $( S&P ) to use the S&P Quality Rankings and the S&P

International Quality Rankings. If S&P terminates the license to use either the S&P Quality Rankings or the S&P International Quality
Rankings, the Board may need to adopt a new investment strategy and/ or new investment policies. There is no assurance that the Trust would
pursue or achieve its investment objective during the period in which it implements these replacement investment policies or strategies.

Standard & Poor s, S&P, Standard & Poor s Earnings and Dividend Rankings, = S&P Earnings and Dividend Rankings,  Standard & Poor s (
Rankings, Standard & Poor s International Quality Rankings, =~ S&P International Quality Rankings and S&P Quality Rankings are trademarks of
S&P and have been licensed for use by the Trust. The Trust is not sponsored, endorsed, managed, sold or promoted by S&P and S&P makes no
representation regarding the availability of investing in each Trust. The Trust is required to pay a quarterly licensing fee, which is shown in the
Statements of Operations as licensing.

Deferred Compensation and BlackRock Closed-End Share Equivalent Investment Plan: Under the deferred compensation plan approved

by each Trust s Board, independent Trustees ( Independent Trustees ) may defer a portion of their annual complex-wide compensation. Deferred
amounts earn an approximate return as though equivalent dollar amounts had been invested in common shares of certain other BlackRock
Closed-End Funds selected by the Independent Trustees. This has approximately the same economic effect for the Independent Trustees as if the
Independent Trustees had invested the deferred amounts directly in other certain BlackRock Closed-End Funds.

The deferred compensation plan is not funded and obligations thereunder represent general unsecured claims against the general assets of each
Trust. Each Trust may, however, elect to invest in common shares of certain other BlackRock Closed-End Funds selected by the Independent
Trustees in order to match its deferred compensation obligations. Investments to cover the Trusts deferred compensation liability, if any, are
included in other assets in the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Dividends and distributions from the BlackRock Closed-End Fund
investments under the plan are included in income affiliated in the Statements of Operations, if any.

Other: Expenses directly related to a Trust are charged to that Trust. Other operating expenses shared by several funds are pro rated among
those funds on the basis of relative net assets or other appropriate methods.

2. Derivative Financial Instruments:

The Trusts engage in various portfolio investment strategies using derivative contracts both to increase the returns of the Trusts and to
economically hedge, or protect, their exposure to certain risks such as equity risk and foreign currency exchange rate risk. These contracts may
be contracted on an exchange or OTC.

Losses may arise if the value of the contract decreases due to an unfavorable change in the market rates or values of the underlying instrument or
if the counterparty does not perform under the contract. The Trusts maximum risk of loss from counterparty credit risk on OTC derivatives is
generally the aggregate unrealized gain netted against any collateral pledged by/posted to the counterparty. For OTC options purchased, the
Trusts bear the risk of loss in the amount of the premiums paid plus the positive change in market values net of any collateral received on the
options should the counterparty fail to perform under the contracts. Options written by the Trusts do not give rise to counterparty credit risk, as
options written obligate the Trusts to perform and not the counterparty. Counterparty risk related to exchange-traded options is deemed to be
minimal due to the protection against defaults provided by the exchange on which these contracts trade.

The Trusts mitigate counterparty risk by procuring collateral and through netting provisions included within an International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. master agreement ( ISDA Master Agreement ) implemented between a Trust and each of its respective
counterparties. The ISDA Master Agreement allows each Trust to offset with each separate counterparty certain derivative financial instrument s
payables and/or receivables with collateral held. The amount of collateral moved to/from applicable counterparties is generally based upon
minimum transfer amounts of up to $500,000. To the extent amounts due to the Trusts from their counterparties are not fully collateralized
contractually or otherwise, the Trusts bear the risk of loss from counterparty non-performance. See Note 1 Segregation and Collateralization for
information with respect to collateral practices. In addition, the Trusts manage counterparty risk by entering into agreements only with
counterparties that it believes have the financial resources to honor their obligations and by monitoring the financial stability of those

Table of Contents 196



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

counterparties.

Certain ISDA Master Agreements allow counterparties to OTC derivatives to terminate derivative contracts prior to maturity in the event the
Trusts net assets decline by a stated percentage or the Trusts fail to meet the terms of its ISDA Master Agreements, which would cause the
Trusts to accelerate payment of any net liability owed to the counterparty.

Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts: Certain Trusts may enter into foreign currency exchange contracts as an economic hedge against
either specific transactions or portfolio instruments or to obtain exposure to foreign currencies (foreign currency exchange rate risk). A foreign
currency exchange contract is an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency at a set exchange rate on a future date. Foreign
currency exchange contracts, when used by a Trust, help to manage the overall exposure to the currencies in which some of the
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investments held by a Trust are denominated. The contract is marked-to-market daily and the change in market value is recorded by a Trust as an
unrealized gain or loss. When the contract is closed, a Trust records a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value at the time it
was opened and the value at the time it was closed. The use of foreign currency exchange contracts involves the risk that the value of a foreign
currency exchange contract changes unfavorably due to movements in the value of the referenced foreign currencies and the risk that a
counterparty to the contract does not perform its obligations under the agreement.

Options: The Trusts purchase and write call and put options to increase or decrease their exposure to underlying instruments (including equity
risk and/or interest rate risk) and/or, in the case of options written, to generate gains from options premiums. A call option gives the purchaser of
the option the right (but not the obligation) to buy, and obligates the seller to sell (when the option is exercised), the underlying instrument at the
exercise or strike price at any time or at a specified time during the option period. A put option gives the holder the right to sell and obligates the
writer to buy the underlying instrument at the exercise or strike price at any time or at a specified time during the option period.

When the Trust purchases (write) an option, an amount equal to the premium paid (received) by the Trust is reflected as an asset (liability). The
amount of the asset (liability) is subsequently marked-to-market to reflect the current market value of the option purchased (written). When an
instrument is purchased or sold through an exercise of an option, the related premium paid (or received) is added to (or deducted from) the basis

of the instrument acquired or deducted from (or added to) the proceeds of the instrument sold. When an option expires (or the Trust enters into a
closing transaction), the Trust realizes a gain or loss on the option to the extent of the premiums received or paid (or gain or loss to the extent the
cost of the closing transaction exceeds the premiums received or paid). When the Trust writes a call option, such option is covered, meaning that
the Trust holds the underlying instrument subject to being called by the option counterparty. When the Trust writes a put option, such option is
covered by cash in an amount sufficient to cover the obligation.

In purchasing and writing options, a Trust bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the value of the underlying instrument or the risk that the

Trusts may not be able to enter into a closing transaction due to an illiquid market. Exercise of a written option could result in a Trust purchasing
or selling a security at a price different from the current market value.

Derivative Instruments Categorized by Risk Exposure:

Fair Values of Derivative Financial Instruments as of April 30, 2011*
Asset Derivatives
Statements of

Assets and
Liabilities

Location BOE BME BGY BCF BCX
Foreign currency exchange contracts Unrealized

appreciation on
foreign currency

exchange contracts  $92,713 $ 414 $ 33,123 $ 6 $ 74,061

Liability Derivatives
Statements of BDV BDJ BDT BQR BGR BOE

Assets and
Liabilities
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Equity contracts

Foreign currency exchange
contracts

Total
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Location
Options
written at
value
Unrealized
depreciation
on foreign
currency
exchange
contracts

$4,523,000 $ 13,412,746

$4,523,000 $ 13,412,746
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$ 2,263,291

$ 2,263,291

$2,481,866  $12,111,791
537
$2,482,403  $12,111,791
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$ 37,169,697

9,747

$ 37,179,444
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Liability Derivatives
Statements of

Assets and
Liabilities
Location BME BGY BCF BCX BQY

Equity contracts Investments at

value

unaffiliated $4,425,149  $33,854,857 $14,604,048 $4,412978 $1,418,557
Foreign currency exchange contracts Unrealized

depreciation

on foreign

currency

exchange

contracts 2,298 15,925 9,160 5,032 63
Total $4,427,447  $33,870,782  $14,613,208 $4,418,010 $ 1,418,620

The Effect of Derivative Financial Instruments in the Statements of Operations
Period Ended April 30, 2011
Net Realized Gain (Loss) from
BDV BDJ BDT BQR BGR BOE

Foreign currency exchange contracts:
Foreign currency transactions $ 45812 $ 28724 $ (25353)
Equity contracts:

Options** $2,927,373 $8,696,282  $2,002,268 1,972,990 9,052,217 30,103,319
Total $2,927,373 $8,696,282  $2,002,268  $2,018,802  $9,080,941  $30,077,966
Net Realized Gain (Loss) from

BME BGY BCF BCX BQY
Foreign currency exchange contracts:
Foreign currency transactions $26,537 $ 239,757 $ 16,707 $ (286,390) $ 23,215
Equity contracts:

Options** 3,184,756 21,147,179 3,205,559 1,445,548 1,185,887
Total $3,211,293 $21,386,936  $3,222,266  $1,159,158  $1,209,102
Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation/Depreciation on

BDV BDJ BDT BQR BGR BOE
Foreign currency exchange contracts:
Foreign currency transactions $17,904 3 267  $477,487
Equity contracts:
Options** $(1,467,802) $(5.492,975) $(209,533) 60,811 4,505,904 159,643
Total $(1,467,802) $(5492,975) $(209,533) $78,715 $4,506,171  $637,130

Table of Contents

200



Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation/Depreciation on

BME BGY BCF BCX BQY
Foreign currency exchange contracts:
Foreign currency transactions $ (7,924) $ 263,379 $§ 435994 $ 269 $ 1934
Equity contracts:
Options** (1,348,036) (4,162,066) 8,632,424 880,361 (583,175)
Total $(1,355,960) $(3,898,687) $9,068418  $880,630  $(581,241)
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For the period ended April 30, 2011, the average quarterly balances of outstanding derivative financial instruments were as follows:

BDV BDJ BDT BQR BGR BOE
Foreign currency transactions:
Average number of contracts US
dollars purchased 6 8
Average number of contracts US
dollars sold 1 8
Average US dollar amounts
purchased $ 204,388 $ 7,362,713
Average US dollar amounts sold $ 111,880 $ 11,278,645
Options:
Average number of contracts
Purchased 36,350
Average number of contracts written 813,738 2,480,276 1,084,977 10,824,054 1,903,917 32,819,075
Average notional value of contracts
purchased $ 2,543,425
Average notional value of contracts
written $107,077,106  $309,051,996  $60,504,463  $58,815,512  $276,275,591  $724,926,398

BME BGY BCF BCX BQY

Foreign currency transactions:
Average number of contracts US dollars purchased 1 9 4 2 4
Average number of contracts US dollars sold 3 9 6
Average US dollar amounts purchased $ 54,723 $ 5,908,593 $ 614,862 $ 359,228 $ 72,384
Average US dollar amounts sold $ 788,136 $ 6,972,561 $ 16,254,500
Options:
Average number of contracts purchased 125 1,210
Average number of contracts written 356,617 57,753,965 10,065,449 1,728,390 965,649
Average notional value of contracts purchased $ 275,000 $ 2,244,241
Average notional value of contracts written $ 67,572,264 $ 619,584,694 $221,729,518 $ 183,298,029 $ 33,416,660

3. Investment Advisory Agreement and Other Transactions with Affiliates:

As of April 30, 2011, the PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. ( PNC ), Bank of America Corporation ( BAC ) and Barclays Bank PLC ( Barclays )
were the largest stockholders of BlackRock, Inc. ( BlackRock ). Due to the ownership structure, PNC is an affiliate of the Trusts for 1940 Act
purposes, but BAC and Barclays are not.

Each Trust entered into an Investment Advisory Agreement with BlackRock Advisors, LLC (the Manager ), the Trusts investment advisor, an
indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of BlackRock, to provide investment advisory and administration services. The Manager is responsible for the
management of each Trust s portfolio and provides the necessary personnel, facilities, equipment and certain other services necessary to the
operations of each Trust. For such services, each Trust, except BCX, pays the Manager a monthly fee at the following annual rates of the

average weekly value of each Trust s net assets: 0.65% for BDV, 1.00% for BDJ, 0.75% for BDT, 1.20% for BQR, 1.20% for BGR, 1.00% for
BOE, 1.00% for BME, 1.00% for BGY, 1.20% for BCF and 0.75% for BQY. BCX pays the Manager a monthly fee at the annual rate of 1.20%
the average daily value of the Trust s net assets. The Manager has voluntarily agreed to waive a portion of the investment advisory fees on BGR
and BCF as a percentage of their average weekly net assets as follows: 0.20% for the first five years of the Trusts operations (2006 through 2011
for BCF), 0.15% in 2010 for BGR and in 2012 for BCF, 0.10% in 2011 for BGR and in 2013 for BCF and 0.05% in 2012 for BGR and in 2014
for BCF. The Manager has voluntarily agreed to waive a portion of the investment advisory fee on BCX as a percentage of its average daily net
assets as follows: 0.20% for the first five years of the Trust s operations (2011 through 2015), 0.15% in 2016, 0.10% in 2017 and 0.05% in 2018.
These waivers are shown as fees waived by advisor in the Statement of Operations.

The Manager entered into separate sub-advisory agreements with BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. for BDV, BDJ, BDT and BQY, State
Street Research & Management Company for BGR, BlackRock Investment Management, LLC ( BIM ) and BlackRock Capital Management, Inc.
for BGY, BCF and BCX, and BlackRock International Limited for BQR and BCF, each an affiliate of the Manager. The Manager pays each
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sub-advisor for services they provide, a monthly fee that is a percentage of the investment advisory fee paid by each Trust to the Manager.

The Trusts have received an exemptive order from the SEC permitting them, among other things, to pay an affiliated securities lending agent a
fee based on a share of the income derived from the securities lending activities and has retained BIM as the securities lending agent. BIM may,
on behalf of the Trusts, invest cash collateral received by the Trusts for such loans, among other things, in a private investment company
managed by the Manager or in registered money market funds advised by the Manager or its affiliates. The market value of securities on loan
and the value of the related collateral, if applicable, are shown in the Statements of Assets and Liabilities as securities loaned at value and
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collateral on securities loaned at value, respectively. The cash collateral invested by BIM is disclosed in the Schedules of Investments. The share
of income earned by the Trusts on such investments is shown as securities lending  affiliated in the Statements of Operations. For the period
ended April 30, 2011, BIM received $9,210 in securities lending agent fees related to securities lending activities for the Trusts.

Certain officers and/or trustees of the Trusts are officers and/or trustees of BlackRock Inc. or its affiliates. The Trusts reimburse the Manager for
compensation paid to the Trusts Chief Compliance Officer.

4. Investments:

Purchases and sales of investment securities, excluding short-term securities for the period ended April 30, 2011, were as follows:

Purchases Sales
BDV $ 204,585,087 $ 210,119,649
BDJ $ 614,589,361 $ 617,611,255
BDT $ 105,633,920 $ 107,165,715
BOQR $ 71015782 $§ 70,696,047
BGR $ 710972,494 $ 753,668,732
BOE $1,999,691,903  $1,970,829,308
BME $ 259,989,761 $ 259,729,179
BGY $1,500,374,757  $ 1,446,665,063
BCF $ 473729828 $ 483,488,071
BCX $ 399,097,148 § 1,420,239
BQY $ 51,219,291 $ 51,723,288
Transactions in options written for the period ended April 30, 2011, were as follows:
Calls
Premiums
Contracts Received
BDV
Options outstanding at beginning of period 1,058,624 $ 2,081,824
Options written 3,023,994 8,222,635
Options expired (1,274,885) (2,437,541)
Options closed (94,485) (787,596)
Options exercised (1,857,764) 4,672,717)
Options outstanding at end of period 855,484 $ 2,406,605
BDJ
Options outstanding at beginning of period 3,415,728 $ 5,867,239
Options written 9,267,118 23,514,154
Options expired (4,114,613) (7,404,762)
Options closed (306,471) (1,473,884)
Options exercised (5,626,425) (13,612,897)
Options outstanding at end of period 2,635,337 $ 6,889,850
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BDT

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BQR

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BGR

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BOE

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BME

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period
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Calls Puts
Premiums Premiums
Contracts Received Contracts Received
1,184,538 $ 1,666,095
3,641,167 5,069,189
(1,289,568) (1,699,301)
(246,660) (499,011)
(2,200,772) (2,955,000)
1,088,705 $ 1,581,972
10,733,762 $ 1,877,185
41,514,089 6,415,680
(18,682,339) (3,021,613)
(17,814,342) (1,275,704)
(4,851,548) (2,185,995)
10,899,622 $ 1,809,553
3,926,254 $ 10,749,311 60,000 $ 54,000
7,359,971 35,926,984 30 2,820
(2,324,498) (7,790,392) (60,030) (56,820)
(1,369,558) (5,466,787)
(5,715,202) (22,612,023)
1,876,967 $ 10,807,093
38,327,827 $ 21,081,150 61,617 $ 703,043
131,554,294 85,657,061 448,728 1,003,640
(56,508,427) (30,370,902) (451,240) (665,538)
(41,699,003) (21,619,346) (3,970) (373,227)
(40,541,094) (33,158,822) (49,865) (235,730)
31,133,597 $ 21,589,141 5,270 $ 432,188
876,625 $ 2,356,405 491,849 $ 679,120
1,179,792 6,461,250 8,293 419,527
(545,302) (1,842,570) (128,804) (591,430)
(267,054) (1,570,606) (35,194) (247,909)
(740,362) (3,453,022) (335,784) (217,914)
503,699 $ 1,951,457 360 $ 41,394
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BGY

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BCF

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BCX

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

BQY

Options outstanding at beginning of period
Options written

Options expired

Options closed

Options exercised

Options outstanding at end of period

Calls
Premiums
Contracts Received
95,251,880 $ 20,135,143
271,861,360 78,711,015
(114,046,563) (31,560,489)

(133,257,203)
(63,279,515)

56,529,959

11,941,951
34,044,203
(15,761,610)

(9,763,501)
(10,605,189)

9,855,854

1,021,290

1,021,290

(21,233,034)
(25,262,138)

$ 20,790,497

$ 11,565,925
37,490,499
(11,304,812)
(10,508,056)
(16,720,284)

$ 10,523,272

$ 2,531,169

$ 2,531,169

As of April 30, 2011, the value of portfolio securities subject to covered call options written were as follows:
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Puts

Contracts

189,715
1,059,366
(1,205,341)

(1,550)
(42,190)

17,690
725
(18,415)

1,922,148
(759,805)
(107,030)

(348,213))

707,100

Calls

Contracts

958,208
3,033,639
(1,738,165)
(366,889)
(906,981)

979,812

Premiums
Received

$ 307,112
888,686
(718,113)
(209,225)
(268,460)

$ 23,507
41,393
(64,900)

$ 5,732,605
(1,383,881)
(108,420)
(1,478,134

$ 2,762,170

Premiums
Received

$ 783,029
2,632,581
(1,070,945)
(354,862)
(1,238,227)

$ 751,576
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Value
BDV $ 114,927,204
BDJ $ 330,496,802
BDT $ 63,144,942
BQR $ 59,967,331
BGR $ 281,833,453
BOE $722,629,191
BME $ 71,249,314
BGY $ 647,729,247
BCF $ 300,179,064
BCX $ 80,282,791
BQY $ 34,930,487

5. Capital Loss Carryforwards:

As of October 31, 2010, the Trusts had capital loss carryforwards available to offset future realized capital gains through the indicated expiration
dates:

Expires October 31 BDV BDJ BDT BQR BOE BGY BCF
2015 $ 19,715,459

2016 $ 26,663,834 $ 29,702,025 162,655,860

2017 121,777,683 196,333,943  $42,127,622  $21,140,114 38,148,041  $525935486  $7,772,360
2018 8,526,748 9,080,494 55,605,462

Total $148.441,517  $234562,716  $42,127,622  $30,220,608 $220,519,360  $ 581,540,948  $7,772,360

Under the recently enacted Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2010, capital losses incurred by the Fund after October 31,
2011 will not be subject to expiration. In addition, these losses must be utilized prior to the losses incurred in pre-enactment taxable years.

6. Concentration, Market and Credit Risk:

BOE and BQY invest a substantial amount of their assets in issuers located in a single country or a limited number of countries. When such
Trusts concentrate their investments in this manner, they assume the risk that economic, political and social conditions in those countries may
have a significant impact on their investment performance. Please see the Schedules of Investments for concentrations in specific countries. In
the normal course of business, the Trusts invest in securities and enter into transactions where risks exist due to fluctuations in the market
(market risk) or failure of the issuer of a security to meet all its obligations (issuer credit risk). The value of securities held by the Trusts may
decline in response to certain events, including those directly involving the issuers whose securities are owned by the Trusts; conditions
affecting the general economy; overall market changes; local, regional or global political, social or economic instability; and currency and
interest rate and price fluctuations. Similar to issuer credit risk, the Trusts may be exposed to counterparty risk, or the risk that an entity with
which the Trusts have unsettled or open transactions may fail to or be unable to perform on its commitments. The Trusts manages counterparty
credit risk by entering into transactions only with counterparties that it
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believes have the financial resources to honor their obligations and by monitoring the financial stability of those counterparties. Financial assets,
which potentially expose the Trusts to market, issuer and counterparty credit risks, consist principally of financial instruments and receivables
due from counterparties. The extent of the Trusts exposure to market, issuer and counterparty credit risks with respect to these financial assets is
generally approximated by their value recorded in the Trusts Statements of Assets and Liabilities, less any collateral held by the Trusts.

The Trusts listed below invest a significant portion of their assets in securities in the following sectors:

Consumer Staples BDV, BDJ
Financials BDT
Materials BQR, BCF, BCX
Utilities BDT, BQR
Energy BGR, BCF, BCX
Health Care BME

Changes in economic conditions affecting these sectors would have a greater impact on these Trusts, and could affect the value, income and/or
liquidity of positions in such securities.

As of April 30, 2011, the Trusts listed below had the following industry classifications:

Industry BOE BGY BQY
QOil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 8% 8% 12%
Commercial Banks 9 14 13
Pharmaceuticals 5 8
Insurance 5

Metals & Mining 5 8

Diversified Telecommunication 5
Other* 68 70 62

* All other industries held were each less than 5% of long-term investments.
7. Capital Share Transactions:

There are an unlimited number of $0.001 par value common shares of beneficial interest authorized for each Trust. At April 30, 2011, the shares
owned by an affiliate of the Manager of the Trusts were as follows:

Common

Shares Owned
BDV 8,028
BDJ 8,028
BDT 8,028
BQR 6,964
BGR 4,817
BOE 12,927
BME 4,817
BGY 6,178
BCF 8,028
BCX 6,964
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BQY 8,028
Transactions in common shares of beneficial interest for the period ended April 30, 2011 were as follows:

Underwriters
Exercising
Commencement Initial the
of Investment Public Over-allotment
Trust Operations Offering Option

BCX March 30, 2011 43,756,964
Shares issued and outstanding during the period ended April 30, 2011 and the year ended October 31, 2010 increased by the following amounts
as a result of dividend reinvestments:

Period Ended
April 30, Year Ended

2011 October 31, 2010

BDV 120,588
BDJ 451,773 874,108
BQR 160,299 279,540
BOE 224,318 486,833
BGY 2,045,205
BCF 128,189 337,063

Shares issued and outstanding remained constant for BDT, BGR, BME and BQY for the period ended April 30, 2011 and the year ended
October 31, 2010.

8. Subsequent Events:

Management s evaluation of the impact of all subsequent events on the Trusts financial statements was completed through the date the financial
statements were issued and the following items were noted:

Subsequent to April 30, 2011, the Board declared distributions per common share as follows:

Distribution
Record Payable per Common
Date Date Share
BDV 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.162500
BDJ 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.170000
BDT 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.162500
BQR 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.235000
BGR 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.405000
BOE 5/16/11 5/31/11 $ 0.568750
BME 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.384375
BGY 6/15/11 6/30/11 $  0.340000
BCF 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0271800
BCX 6/15/11 6/30/11 $ 0.350000
BQY 5/16/11 5/31/11 $ 0.250000
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The Board of Trustees (the Board, the members of which are referred to as Board Members ) of BlackRock Resources & Commodities Strategy
Trust (the Trust ) met on February 11, 2011 to consider the approval of the Trust s investment advisory agreement (the Advisory Agreement )
among the Trust, BlackRock Cayman Resources & Commodities Strategy Fund, Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trust formed in the

Cayman Islands (the Subsidiary ), and BlackRock Advisors, LLC (the Manager ), the Trust s and the Subsidiary s investment advisor. The Board
also considered the approval of the sub-investment advisory agreement (the Sub-Advisory Agreement ) between the Manager and BlackRock
Capital Management, Inc. (the Sub-Advisor ), with respect to the Trust and the Subsidiary. The Manager and the Sub-Advisor are referred to

herein as BlackRock. The Advisory Agreement and the Sub-Advisory Agreement are referred to herein as the Agreements. The Trust and the
Subsidiary sometimes are referred to herein collectively as the Fund.

Activities and Composition of the Board

At the time the Board considered the Agreements, the Board consisted of ten individuals, eight of whom were not interested persons of the Trust
as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the 1940 Act ) (the Independent Board Members ). The Board Members are responsible for
the oversight of the operations of the Fund and perform the various duties imposed on the directors of investment companies by the 1940 Act.

The Independent Board Members have retained independent legal counsel to assist them in connection with their duties. The Chairman of the

Board is an Independent Board Member. The Board has established five standing committees: an Audit Committee, a Governance and

Nominating Committee, a Compliance Committee, a Performance Oversight Committee and an Executive Committee, each of which is

composed of Independent Board Members (except for the Executive Committee, which also has one interested Board Member) and is chaired by

an Independent Board Member. The Board also has one ad hoc committee, the Joint Product Pricing Committee, which consists of Independent
Board Members and the directors/trustees of the boards of certain other BlackRock-managed funds, who are not interested persons of their
respective funds.

The Agreements

Pursuant to the 1940 Act, the Board is required to consider the initial approval of the Agreements. In connection with this process, the Board
assessed, among other things, the nature, scope and quality of the services to be provided to the Fund by the personnel of BlackRock and its
affiliates, including investment management, administrative and shareholder services, oversight of fund accounting and custody, marketing
services and assistance in meeting applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Board Considerations in Approving the Agreements

The Approval Process: Prior to the February 11, 2011 meeting, the Board received materials specifically relating to the Agreements. The
materials provided in connection with the February 11, 2011 meeting included information regarding (i) the investment objectives and policies

of the Fund; (ii) the team of investment advisory personnel assigned to the Fund; (iii) the Fund s management fee and estimated total operating
expenses as compared with a peer group of funds as determined by Lipper, Inc. ( Lipper ); and (iv) certain anticipated direct and indirect fallout
benefits to BlackRock from its relationship with the Fund. Periodically, the Board Members, in connection with their duties as trustees or

directors of other funds in the BlackRock family of closed-end funds, have received other information including general information regarding
BlackRock s management of such funds, BlackRock s management of relationships with service providers to such funds, resources devoted to
compliance with such funds investment objectives and policies, the structure and expertise of the Advisors and their parent companies,
BlackRock s policies and procedures in respect of execution of portfolio transactions and other matters.

At a meeting with the Independent Board Members attending in person, on February 11, 2011, the Board, including the Independent Board
Members, reviewed materials relating to its consideration of the Agreements and thereafter unanimously approved the Advisory Agreement
among the Manager, the Trust and the Subsidiary and the Sub-Advisory Agreement between the Manager and the Sub-Advisor, with respect to
the Trust and the Subsidiary. In approving the Agreements, the Board considered, among other factors: (a) the nature, extent and quality of the
services provided by BlackRock; (b) the investment performance of BlackRock portfolio management in general; (c) the advisory fee and the
cost of the services and profits to be realized by BlackRock and its affiliates from their relationship with the Fund; (d) economies of scale; and
(e) other factors deemed relevant by the Board Members.

The Board also considered other matters it deemed important to the approval process, such as services related to the valuation and pricing of
Fund portfolio holdings, direct and indirect benefits to BlackRock and its affiliates and significant shareholders from their relationship with the
Fund and advice from independent legal counsel with respect to the review process and materials submitted for the Board s review. The Board
noted the willingness of BlackRock personnel to engage in open, candid discussions with the Board. The Board did not identify any particular
information as controlling, and each Board Member may have attributed different weights to the various items considered.
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A. Nature, Extent and Quality of the Services Provided by BlackRock

The Board, including the Independent Board Members, considered the nature, extent and quality of services to be provided by BlackRock. The
Board considered, among other factors, BlackRock s compliance record, including whether other funds advised by BlackRock have operated
within their investment objectives, policies and restrictions, the Fund s investment objectives, policies and restrictions, the number, education and
experience of BlackRock s investment personnel generally and the Fund s portfolio management team, investments by portfolio managers in the
funds they manage, BlackRock s portfolio trading capabilities, BlackRock s use of technology, BlackRock s commitment to compliance,
BlackRock s credit analysis capabilities, BlackRock s risk analysis capabilities and BlackRock s approach to training and retaining portfolio
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managers and other research, advisory and management personnel. The Board also reviewed a general description of BlackRock s compensation
structure with respect to the Fund s portfolio management team and BlackRock s ability to attract and retain high-quality talent.

In addition to advisory services, the Board considered the quality of the administrative and non-investment advisory services to be provided to
the Fund. BlackRock and its affiliates and significant shareholders provide the Fund with certain administrative and other services (in addition to
any such services provided to the Fund by third parties) and officers and other personnel as are necessary for the operations of the Fund. In
addition to investment advisory services, BlackRock and its affiliates provide the Fund with other services, including (i) preparing disclosure
documents, such as the prospectus and the statement of additional information in connection with the initial public offering and periodic
shareholder reports; (ii) preparing communications with analysts to support secondary market trading of the Fund; (iii) assisting with daily
accounting and pricing; (iv) preparing periodic filings with regulators and stock exchanges; (v) overseeing and coordinating the activities of
other service providers; (vi) organizing Board meetings and preparing the materials for such Board meetings; (vii) providing legal and
compliance support; and (viii) performing other administrative functions necessary for the operation of the Fund, such as tax reporting, fulfilling
regulatory filing requirements, and call center services. The Board reviewed the structure and duties of BlackRock s fund administration,
accounting, legal and compliance departments and considered BlackRock s policies and procedures for assuring compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

B. The Investment Performance of Portfolio Management

The Board, including the Independent Board Members, previously received and considered information about BlackRock s investment
performance for other BlackRock-advised funds. The Board, however, did not consider the performance history of the Fund because the Fund
was newly organized and had not yet commenced operations as of the February 11, 2011 meeting.

C. Consideration of the Advisory Fees:

The Board, including the Independent Board Members, reviewed the Fund s contractual management fee ratio compared with the other funds in
its Lipper category. It also compared the Fund s total expense ratio, as well as the actual management fee ratio, to those of other funds in its
Lipper category. The funds within the peer group were selected by Lipper, which is not affiliated with the Manager. The Board noted that the net
asset value of the Trust s investment in the Subsidiary is not included in the calculation of the Trust s management fee. The Board also noted the
fees paid to the Manager by the Subsidiary.

The peer group selected by Lipper for the Fund contained seven non-leveraged closed-end funds, which included the Fund, two sector equity
funds and four real estate funds. The peer group comparison was done within five sub categories of fees and expenses: (i) contractual
management fees; (ii) total expenses including investment related expenses and taxes; (iii) total expenses excluding investment related expenses
and taxes; (iv) management fees based on common shares; and (v) non-management expenses.

When compared to all the funds in the peer group with fees and expenses expressed as a percentage of net assets, the Fund s contractual
management fee, before giving effect to any fee waivers by the Manager, was above the median, while the Fund s actual management fees and
actual expenses, after giving effect to any fee waivers by the Manager, was generally below or in-line with the median. The Board also
compared the Fund s management fees and total expenses to certain other closed-end funds of similar strategy and noted that the Fund s
management fees and total expenses were comparable to the management fees and total expenses of such funds.

During the Board Members deliberations in connection with its approval of the management fee, the Board Members were aware that
BlackRock intended to pay compensation, out of its own assets, to the lead underwriter and to certain qualifying underwriters of the Trust s
common shares and of the anticipated amounts of such compensation and the general nature of the services to be rendered to BlackRock in
consideration of such compensation. The Board Members also considered whether the management fee met applicable standards in light of the
services provided by the Manager, without regard to whether the Manager ultimately pays any portion of the anticipated compensation to the
underwriters. The Board also considered whether BlackRock has the financial resources necessary to attract and retain high quality investment
management personnel to perform its obligations under the Agreements and to continue to provide the high quality of services that is expected
by the Board.

As the Fund had not commenced operations as of the date of the February 11, 2011 meeting, BlackRock was not able to provide the Board with
specific information concerning the expected profits to be realized by BlackRock and its affiliates from their relationships with the Fund.
BlackRock, however, will provide the Board with such information at future meetings.
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Following consideration of this information, the Board, including the Independent Board Members, concluded that the fees to be paid pursuant
to the Agreements were fair and reasonable in light of the services to be provided.

D. Economies of Scale

The Board, including the Independent Board Members, considered the extent to which economies of scale might be realized as the assets of the
Fund increase. The Board also considered the extent to which the Fund may benefit from such economies and whether there should be changes
in the advisory fee rate or structure in order to enable the Fund to participate in these economies of scale, for example through the use of
breakpoints in the advisory fee based upon the asset level of the
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Disclosure of Investment Advisory Agreement and Sub-Adyvisory Agreement (concluded)

Fund. Based on the ad hoc Joint Product Pricing Committee s and the Board s review and consideration of this issue, the Board concluded that
closed-end funds are typically priced at scale at a fund s inception; therefore, the implementation of breakpoints was not necessary.

The Board noted that most closed-end fund complexes do not have fund level breakpoints because closed-end funds generally do not experience
substantial growth after the initial public offering. The Board noted that only one closed-end fund in the Fund Complex has breakpoints in its fee
structure.

E. Other factors Deemed Relevant by the Board Members

The Board, including the Independent Board Members, also took into account other ancillary or fall-out benefits that BlackRock or its affiliates
and significant shareholders may derive from their respective relationships with the Fund, both tangible and intangible, such as BlackRock s
ability to leverage its investment professionals who manage other portfolios, an increase in BlackRock s profile in the investment advisory
community, and the engagement of BlackRock s affiliates and significant shareholders as service providers to the Fund, including for
administrative and distribution services. The Board also considered BlackRock s overall operations and its efforts to expand the scale of, and
improve the quality of, its operations. The Board also noted that BlackRock may use and benefit from third party research obtained by soft

dollars generated by certain registered fund transactions to assist in managing all or a number of its other client accounts. The Board further

noted that BlackRock s funds may invest in affiliated exchange-traded funds without any offset against the management fees payable by the
funds to BlackRock.

In connection with its consideration of the Agreements, the Board also received information regarding BlackRock s brokerage and soft dollar
practices. The Board received reports from BlackRock, which included information on brokerage commissions and trade execution practices for
BlackRock closed-end funds throughout the year.

The Board, including all of the Independent Board Members, concluded that these ancillary benefits that BlackRock and its affiliates could
receive with regard to providing investment advisory and other services to the Fund were consistent with those generally available to other fund
sponsors.

The Board noted the competitive nature of the closed-end fund marketplace, and that shareholders are able to sell their Trust shares in the
secondary market if they believe that the Fund s fees and expenses are too high or if they are dissatisfied with the performance of the Fund.

Conclusion

The Board, including the Independent Board Members, unanimously approved the Advisory Agreement among the Manager, the Trust and the
Subsidiary and the Sub-Advisory Agreement between the Manager and the Sub-Advisor, each with respect to the Trust and the Subsidiary.
Based upon its evaluation of all of the aforementioned factors in their totality, the Board, including the Independent Board Members, was
satisfied that the terms of the Agreements were fair and reasonable and in the best interest of the Fund and its shareholders. In arriving at its
decision to approve the Agreements, the Board did not identify any single factor or group of factors as all-important or controlling, but
considered all factors together, and different Board Members may have attributed different weights to the various factors considered. The
Independent Board Members were also assisted by the advice of independent legal counsel in making this determination.
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Section 19(a) Notices

These reported amounts and sources of distributions are estimates and are not being provided for tax reporting purposes. The actual amounts and
sources for tax reporting purposes will depend upon each Trust s investment experience during the year and may be subject to changes based on
the tax regulations. Each Trust will provide a Form 1099-DIV each calendar year that will explain the character of these dividends and
distributions for federal income tax purposes.

April 30,2011
Total Cumulative Distributions % Breakdown of the Total Cumulative
for the Fiscal Year Distributions for the Fiscal Year
Net Net Realized Net Realized Return Net Net RealizedNet Realized Return
Investment Capital Gains Capital Gains of Total Per Investme@apital Gaiksapital Gains of Total Per
Income (Short-Term) (Long-Term) Capital Common ShardncomgShort-Tern{Long-Term) CapitalCommon Share

BDV $0.102213 $ $ $0.222787 $ 0.325000 31% 0% 0% 69% 100%
BDJ $0.071362 $ $ $0.418638 $ 0.490000 15% 0% 0% 85% 100%
BDT $0.114725 $ $ $0.210275 $ 0.325000 35% 0% 0% 65% 100%
BQR $0.003015 $ $ $0.596985 $ 0.600000 1% 0% 0% 99% 100%
BGR $0.041851 $ 0.202719 $ 0.163847 $0.401583 $ 0.810000 5% 25% 20% 50% 100%
BOE $0.023932 $ $ $1.113568 $ 1.137500 2% 0% 0% 98% 100%
BME $ $ 1.117916 $ 0350834 § $  1.468750 0% 76% 24% 0% 100%
BGY $0.019335 $ $ $0.660665 $ 0.680000 3% 0% 0% 97% 100%
BCF $0.027539 $ $ $0.516061 $ 0.543600 5% 0% 0% 95% 100%
BQY $0.077819 $ 0.138372 $ 0.283809 $ $  0.500000 16% 28% 57% 0% 100%

Each Trust estimates that it has distributed more than the amount of earned income and net realized gains; therefore, a portion of the distribution

may be a return of capital. A return of capital may occur, for example, when some or all of the shareholder s investment in a Trust is returned to

the shareholder. A return of capital does not necessarily reflect a Trust s investment performance and should not be confused with yield or
income.

General Information

The Trusts do not make available copies of their Statements of Additional Information because the Trusts shares are not continuously offered,
which means that the Statement of Additional Information of each Trust has not been updated after completion of the respective Trust s offerings
and the information contained in each Trust s Statement of Additional Information may have become outdated.

Other than the revisions discussed in the Board approvals on page 123, there were no material changes in the Trusts investment objectives or
policies or to the Trusts charters or by-laws that were not approved by the shareholders or in the principal risk factors associated with investment
in the Trusts. There have been no changes in the persons who are primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the Trusts portfolio.

Quarterly performance, semi-annual and annual reports and other information regarding each Trust may be found on BlackRock s website, which
can be accessed at http://www.blackrock.com. This reference to BlackRock s website is intended to allow investors public access to information
regarding each Trust and does not, and is not intended to, incorporate BlackRock s website into this report.

Electronic Delivery

Electronic copies of most financial reports are available on the Trusts websites or shareholders can sign up for e-mail notifications of quarterly
statements, annual and semi-annual reports and prospectuses by enrolling in the Trusts electronic delivery program.

Shareholders Who Hold Accounts with Investment Advisors, Banks or Brokerages:

Please contact your financial advisor. Please note that not all investment advisors, banks or brokerages may offer this service.
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Householding

The Trusts will mail only one copy of shareholder documents, including annual and semi-annual reports and proxy statements, to shareholders
with multiple accounts at the same address. This practice is commonly called householding and it is intended to reduce expenses and eliminate
duplicate mailings of shareholder documents. Mailings of your shareholder documents may be householded indefinitely unless you instruct us
otherwise. If you do not want the mailing of these documents to be combined with those for other members of your household, please contact the
Trusts at (800) 441-7762.

Availability of Quarterly Schedule of Investments

The Trusts file their complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) for the first and third
quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-Q. Each Trust s Forms N-Q are available on the SEC s website at http://www.sec.gov. and may also
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Additional Information (continued)
General Information (concluded)

be reviewed and copied at the SEC s Public Reference Room in Washington, DC. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room
may be obtained by calling (800) SEC-0330. Each Trust s Forms N-Q may also be obtained upon request and without charge by calling
(800) 441-7762.

Availability of Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

A description of the policies and procedures that the Trusts use to determine how to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities is available
(1) without charge, upon request, by calling toll-free (800) 441-7762; (2) at www.blackrock.com; and (3) on the SEC s website at http://
WWW.SEC.gov.

Availability of Proxy Voting Record

Information about how each Trust voted proxies relating to securities held in each Trust s portfolio during the most recent 12-month period ended
June 30 is available upon request and without charge (1) at www.blackrock.com or by calling (800) 441-7762 and (2) on the SEC s website at
http://www.sec.gov.

Availability of Trust Updates

BlackRock will update performance and certain other data for the Trusts on a monthly basis on its website in the Closed-end Funds section of
www.blackrock.com. Investors and others are advised to periodically check the website for updated performance information and the release of
other material information about the Trusts.

Board Approval

BDV s,BDJ s,and BDT s Boards each approved changes to certain non-fundamental investment objectives and policies employed by each Trust.
As a result of these changes, the Trusts no longer use Indxis s Dividend AchieversTM as the underlying universe for investment in equity
securities. Pursuant to the new non-fundamental investment objectives and policies, effective March 9, 2011, each Trust broadened its

investment guidelines to investing across the broader spectrum of dividend paying equities. Under normal market conditions, at least 80% of the
Trust s total assets will be invested in dividend paying equities. Also, for BDT, under normal market conditions, at least 80% of the Trust s total
assets will be invested in small- and mid-capitalization companies, as defined by the Russell Mid Cap Index. Similarly, the investment strategy
described in the Trusts non-fundamental investment objectives or investment policies, as the case may be for each Trust, has been modified to
remove reference to above average dividend paying equities.

The Board has taken this action as a consequence of recent market events, during which a number of companies reduced, suspended or failed to
raise their dividends over the past several years, resulting in their exclusion from consideration as Dividend AchieversTM and reducing the
number of available companies for purchase in the Trusts. Given the need to raise dividends for at least ten consecutive calendar years, such
companies would be excluded from consideration as Dividend AchieversTM for the foreseeable future.

In addition to the foregoing, the Board also approved changes to the Trusts restriction on other eligible investments. Previously, the Trusts were
restricted to investing, under normal market conditions, no more than 20% of their total assets in equity securities that are not identified as
Dividend AchieversTM by Indxis, Inc. In similar concept to the 80% policy change, the amended policy allows the Trusts to invest, under
normal market conditions, up to 20% in equity securities of issuers that do not pay dividends.

Each Trust has also removed investment policies limiting the market cap, position size or number of holdings permitted in such Trust.

BDT has removed its policy that under current market conditions, BDT s investment advisor and subadvisor will consider an issuer with a market
capitalization ranking in the bottom 90% of the market capitalization of all issuers included in the Russell 3000 Index to be a small to
mid-capitalization company.

BDT will now invest at least 80% of its total assets in small to mid-capitalization companies, as defined by the Russell Mid Cap Index. BDV and
BDJ have each removed its policy limiting its maximum weighting of any individual issuer in its portfolio to 5% at the time of purchase. BDT
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has removed its policy limiting its investments under current market conditions to no more than (i) 2% of its total assets in mid-capitalization
issuers; (ii) 1.5% of its total assets in any small/mid-capitalization issuer; and (iii) 0.5% of its total assets in any small capitalization issuer, at the
time of purchase.

BDYV and BDJ have each removed its policy limiting its portfolio to approximately 60 to 90 issuers from the top 100 highest yielding common
stocks in the Dividend AchieversTM Universe. BDT has removed its policy limiting its portfolio to approximately 100 small to
mid-capitalization companies included in the Russell 3000 Index.

Each Trust will remain subject to the fundamental investment restriction that such Trust may not invest 25% or more of the value of its total
assets in any one industry or invest, with respect to 75% of its total assets, more than 5% of the value of its total assets in the securities of any
single issuer or purchase more than 10% of the outstanding securities of any one issuer.

As disclosed in its prospectus, each Trust is required to provide shareholders 60 days notice of a change to its current non-fundamental policies
described above. Accordingly, a notice describing the changes
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discussed above were mailed to shareholders of record as of March 9, 2011. No action is required by shareholders of the Trusts in connection
with this change.

Upon the completion of the 60-day notice period, each Trust s name changed to reflect this change in non-fundamental policy. Each Trust will
continue to trade on the New York Stock Exchange under its current ticker symbol even after the name change becomes effective.

Dividend Policy

The Trusts dividend policy is to distribute all or a portion of its net investment income to its shareholders on a quarterly basis. In order to
provide shareholders with a more stable level of dividend distributions, the Trusts may at times pay out less than the entire amount of net
investment income earned in any particular quarter and may at times in any particular quarter pay out such accumulated but undistributed
income in addition to net investment income earned in that quarter. As a result, the dividends paid by the Trusts for any particular quarter may
be more or less than the amount of net investment income earned by the Trusts during such quarter. The Trusts current accumulated but
undistributed net investment income, if anys, is disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, which comprises part of the financial
information included in this report.

BlackRock Privacy Principles

BlackRock is committed to maintaining the privacy of its current and former fund investors and individual clients (collectively, Clients ) and to
safeguarding their non-public personal information. The following information is provided to help you understand what personal information
BlackRock collects, how we protect that information and why in certain cases we share such information with select parties.

If you are located in a jurisdiction where specific laws, rules or regulations require BlackRock to provide you with additional or different
privacy-related rights beyond what is set forth below, then BlackRock will comply with those specific laws, rules or regulations.

BlackRock obtains or verifies personal non-public information from and about you from different sources, including the following:

(1) information we receive from you or, if applicable, your financial intermediary, on applications, forms or other documents; (ii) information
about your transactions with us, our affiliates, or others; (iii) information we receive from a consumer reporting agency; and (iv) from visits to
our websites. BlackRock does not sell or disclose to non-affiliated third parties any non-public personal information about its Clients, except as
permitted by law or as is necessary to respond to regulatory requests or to service Client accounts. These non-affiliated third parties are required
to protect the confidentiality and security of this information and to use it only for its intended purpose.

We may share information with our affiliates to service your account or to provide you with information about other BlackRock products or
services that may be of interest to you. In addition, BlackRock restricts access to non-public personal information about its Clients to those
BlackRock employees with a legitimate business need for the information. BlackRock maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards
that are designed to protect the non-public personal information of its Clients, including procedures relating to the proper storage and disposal of
such information.
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This report is transmitted to shareholders only. It is not a prospectus. Past performance results shown in this report should not be considered a
representation of future performance. Statements and other information herein are as dated and are subject to change.

#CEF-SAR-BK11-0411
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Item 6

Item 7

Item 8

Item 9
Item 10

Item 11

Item 12

n

Code of Ethics  Not Applicable to this semi-annual report

Audit Committee Financial Expert Not Applicable to this semi-annual report
Principal Accountant Fees and Services Not Applicable to this semi-annual report
Audit Committee of Listed Registrants Not Applicable to this semi-annual report
Investments

(a) The registrant s Schedule of Investments is included as part of the Report to Stockholders filed under Item 1 of this Form.

(b) Not Applicable due to no such divestments during the semi-annual period covered since the previous Form N-CSR filing.

Disclosure of Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures for Closed-End Management Investment Companies Not Applicable to this
semi-annual report

Portfolio Managers of Closed-End Management Investment Companies
(a) Not Applicable to this semi-annual report

(b) As of the date of this filing, there have been no changes in any of the portfolio managers identified in the most recent annual
report on Form N-CSR.

Purchases of Equity Securities by Closed-End Management Investment Company and Affiliated Purchasers Not Applicable
Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders There have been no material changes to these procedures.
Controls and Procedures

(a) The registrant s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, have concluded
that the registrant s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 30a- 3(c) under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended (the 1940 Act )) are effective as of a date within 90 days of the filing of this report based on the evaluation of these
controls and procedures required by Rule 30a-3(b) under the 1940 Act and Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

(b) There were no changes in the registrant s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 30a-3(d) under the 1940
Act) that occurred during the second fiscal quarter of the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant s internal control over financial reporting.

Exhibits attached hereto

(a)(1) Code of Ethics Not Applicable to this semi-annual report
(a)(2) Certifications Attached hereto

(a)(3) Not Applicable

(b) Certifications Attached hereto
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12(c) Notices to the registrant s common shareholders in accordance with the order under Section 6(c) of the 1940 Act granting an
exemption from Section 19(b) of the 1940 Act and Rule 19b-1 under the 1940 Act, dated May 9, 2009!

The Fund has received exemptive relief from the Securities and Exchange Commission permitting it to make periodic distributions of
long-term capital gains with respect to its outstanding common stock as frequently as twelve times each year, and as frequently as
distributions are specified by or in accordance with the terms of its outstanding preferred stock. This relief is conditioned, in part, on an
undertaking by the Fund to make the disclosures to the holders of the Fund s common shares, in addition to the information required by
Section 19(a) of the 1940 Act and Rule 19a-1 thereunder. The Fund is likewise obligated to file with the SEC the information contained in
any such notice to shareholders and, in that regard, has attached hereto copies of each such notice made during the period.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust

By: /s/ John M. Perlowski
John M. Perlowski
Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of

BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust
Date: July 5, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ John M. Perlowski
John M. Perlowski
Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of
BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust

Date: July 5, 2011

By: /s/ Neal J. Andrews
Neal J. Andrews
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of

BlackRock Real Asset Equity Trust
Date: July 5, 2011
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